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Corporate Profile and Corporate Information

23 7 i A B 24 7 OB

HL Technology Group Limited (the “Company”, “our” or “we") is a
leading services and products provider for the global computer,
communication, consumer electronics and telecommunication markets.
Our shares were first listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16 November 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chi Shaolin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO"))

Mr. Cheng Wen (Vice CEO)
Mr. Lu Chengye (Vice CEO)
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Mr. Thomas Tam

Mr. Pao Ping Wing
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Mr. Thomas Tam (Chairman)
Mr. Pao Ping Wing

Ms. Zheng Lin

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
COMMITTEE

Ms. Zheng Lin (Chairman)

Mr. Lu Chengye

Mr. Thomas Tam

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chi Shaolin (Chairman)

Mr. Thomas Tam

Mr. Pao Ping Wing

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ho Wing Yan, Acis, ACS(PE)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Lu Chengye
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Corporate Profile and Corporate Information

REGISTERED OFFICE
Floor 4, Willow House

Cricket Square

P.0O. Box 2804

Grand Cayman KY1-1112
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTER

Pudong Road, Economic and
Technological Development Zone
Weihai

Shandong Province

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

33rd Floor, Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China

Agricultural Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Guangfa Bank

LEGAL ADVISERS
Loong & Yeung (as to Hong Kong law)
Beijing DHH Law Firm* (as to PRC law)

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young

SHARE REGISTRAR

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

LISTING EXCHANGE INFORMATION
Place of Listing
Main Board, The Stock Exchange

STOCK CODE
1087

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.hong-lin.com.cn

*  English name is for identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement

FR A

Mr. Chi Shaolin B> # %4

Chairman, Executive Director and CEO
(/8 PITEFEFHEZ)

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of HL Technology Group Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present to you the audited annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

In 2013, the growth of global economy remained in a low pace and
uncertainties still existed. The traditional consumer electronic and
computer industries were experiencing difficulties and challenges in an
unfavorable global environment. Hence, a decline of the procurement
amount from our customers and the average selling price of our
products were recorded in these fields in 2013. However, in the
meantime, performance of communication and telecommunication

HMBARR

AANBLARTAMB I EBER AR REHE
AR (i [ AEE]) - AR REAEEEE
CE-ZHF T A=t RLEFENREZSF

KB RECE

RoT—=%  2REEEREABERTE
TEEEE - 2RERTRSBHEBBTR
BYTREHEE - Bl R=B—=% &
EEN S AN B REERERFHER
BHTR - AT - RULRE - MREMRITE
BMBTRE(4G]) RDEBHBRLETH
BEER - SBEARBMITERRERD N



industries was booming with stronger momentum and increasing
revenue and number of end users as Fourth Generation (“4G")
technology, Mobile Internet technology and enterprise Private Network
technology had widely used. The market was more optimistic to the
communication and telecommunication industries.

After the completion of Rosy Sun Acquisition (further details of which
are set out in the paragraph headed “Major and Connected Transaction
in Relation to the Rosy Sun Acquisition” in the section “Management
Discussion & Analysis”), the terminals and networks segments
(collectively the “"Newly Acquired Business”) were newly added to the
Group's business portfolio, and the revenue generated from the Newly
Acquired Business amounted to approximately RMB1,047.0 million,
representing an increase by approximately 80.4% as compared with
that for the period from 13 June 2012 to 31 December 2012 mainly due
to (i) the booming market demands on 4G products and related services
as well as Private Network solutions since 4G technology, Mobile
Internet technology and Private Network technology become widely
used; (ii) the Group has made great efforts in the marketing and
research and development to expand market share and strengthen its
customer base in both Operator Networks and enterprise Private
Network; and (iii) revenue from the Newly Acquired Business was
consolidated into the Group since 13 June 2012 as compared with that
for the full year of 2013. For the original businesses of the Group,
including external and internal signal cable assembly, power cord
assembly, signal transmission wire and cable, connectors, antennas
and automotive wiring harness (collectively, the “Signal Transmission
and Connectivity Product Segments”, or the “Original Business”), the
revenue decreased from approximately RMB1,933.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012 to approximately RMB1,665.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013, representing a decrease by
approximately 13.9%. The decrease in revenue from the Original
Business was mainly due to (i) the continuing challenges and
uncertainties in the global economies and severe effects on the
computer and consumer electronics industries, resulting in both the
procurement amount and the average selling price across most product
lines within the Original Business in the tough competitive operating
environment declined; and (ii) the negative effects on and cease of
contribution to the revenue by certain relevant subsidiaries of the
Company (the “Disposal Group”) as a result of the completion of the
disposal of the entire issued share capital of Sumptuous Wealth Limited
("Sumptuous Wealth”) by the Group on 26 November 2013 (the
“Sumptuous Wealth Disposal”). Details of which can be referred in the
circular of the Company dated 27 June 2013. As a result of the
aforesaid, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB2,712.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2013, representing
a growth of approximately 7.9% as compared with that for the year
ended 31 December 2012.
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW (continued)

The gross profit generated from the Newly Acquired Business amounted
to approximately RMB159.1 million, or representing an increase by
approximately 230.7% as compared with that for the period from 13
June 2012 to 31 December 2012, which was mainly due to (i) the rising
proportion of sale of network products with higher gross profit margin
due to the tailor-made services and products delivered to Private
Network customers; and (ii) gross profit from the Newly Acquired
Business was consolidated into the Group since 13 June 2012 as
compared with that for the full year of 2013. Gross profit generated
from the Original Business were approximately RMB199.0 million,
representing a decrease by approximately 29.3% as compared with that
for the year ended 31 December 2012. Such decrease in gross profit
from the Original Business was mainly due to the decline in the average
selling price and procurement amount across most of the product lines
within the Original Business along with increasingly fierce competition
and weaker demands from the Group’s major customers for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The Group's gross profit for the year ended
31 December 2013 amounted to approximately RMB358.0 million,
representing an increase by approximately 8.7% as compared with that
for the year ended 31 December 2012. The gross profit margin
increased from approximately 13.1% for the year ended 31 December
2012 to approximately 13.2% for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The net profit recorded by the Newly Acquired Business was
approximately RMB71.6 million, after consolidating the net profit of
approximately RMB87.3 million recorded by %5 7 5 i@ **“ﬁﬁﬂﬁ’&
7] (Shenyang New Postcom Co., Ltd.*, the "PRC Company”,
operating company indirectly wholly owned by Rosy Sun), which was
guaranteed by the vendor of Rosy Sun to the Company that its net profit
for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 shall not be less than
RMB85.0 million (please refer to the circular of the Company dated 31
December 2012 for further details) (the “Profit Guarantee”) and the
Profit Guarantee has thus been accomplished, and other costs of
approximately RMB15.7 million mainly composed of depreciation and
amortization of valuation premium of prepaid land lease payments,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets identified during
the Rosy Sun Acquisition. Whereas the net loss from the Original
Business for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately
RMB169.3 million which was mainly due to: (i) the decrease in gross
profit and other gains from the Original Business for the year ended 31
December 2013; (i) impairment loss on property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, trade and other receivables and inventories
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2013 since their
recoverable amount, or net realizable value was less than their carrying
amount. Furthermore, there was a substantial notional interest expense
of approximately RMB82.2 million incurred for the year ended 31
December 2013 mainly due to the early redemption of the promissory
note (which was issued by the Company as the consideration for the
Rosy Sun Acquisition, the “Promissory Note"”) as a result of the
Sumptuous Wealth Disposal which adds to the total loss of the Group.
The Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB180.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

*English name is for identification purposes only.
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW (continued)

To reverse losses and improve the efficiency and profitability, the Group
is dedicated to (i) redress its customer base, continuously enhance its
research and development capability, and improve management
efficiency by optimizing its financial and administration management
and products quality system; and (ii) proactively reorganise and
integrate its business portfolio by disposing loss-making businesses and
actively explore any methods to reverse loss, such as conducting
possible acquisitions and developing new products in prosperous
industries.

Efforts extended by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
were summarised as follows:

Redress Customer Base

As we vigorously maintained solid relationships with our existing
customers, the Group also entered into the supply chain of the three
major telecommunication services providers after completion of the
Rosy Sun Acquisition. Besides, the Group successfully developed
leading enterprise customers in the newly emerged Private Network
business, such as Zoomlion and Brilliance Auto.

Enhance Research and Development Capability

Following the entering into telecommunication industries upon
completion of the Rosy Sun Acquisition, the Group has proactively been
dedicated into the research and development in the 4G terminal
products and wireless Private Network solutions, for instance, the
newly developed Mobile Internet terminals for the telematics and the
wireless smart park projects developed by the Group, obtained profits
for the year ended 31 December 2013 due to the long term investments
in research and development and the accumulation of these new
technologies in the area of the 4G, Mobile Internet and Private
Networks. The Group developed these technologies relying on the
corporation between the Group and some leading enterprise partners.
The new type of specialty power cable Hybrid Cable for
Telecommunication was developed in 2013.

Improve Management Efficiency

To rationally reduce the operating costs and improve the operating
efficiency, the Group (i) tightened its credit and implemented cost
control and appropriate inventory policy, scaled back capital
expenditure in certain areas to better manage our operations; (ii)
adopted deepening training classes to core staff and appropriately
compress the overlapped crew to efficiently allocate management fund;
and (iii) further applied the transaction tracking system and e-quality
management system to facilitate our products quality control
endeavors.
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW (continued)

Business Restructuring

On 10 January 2014, the Group entered into two equity transfer
agreements to dispose of the entire equity interest in & m sl il
A B A 7 (Wuhan Honglin Technology Company Limited*, “Wuhan
Technology”) to two independent third parties (the “Wuhan Technology
Disposal”). The Wuhan Technology Disposal was consistent with the
whole development strategy of the Group and stopped its deficit.

On 27 September 2013, the Group entered into two equity transfer
agreements to dispose of the entire equity interest in &% /5L E
A R 2 A (Wuhan Honglin Electronic Company Limited*, the “Wuhan
Electronic”) to two independent third parties (“Wuhan Electronic
Disposal”). The Wuhan Electronic Disposal allowed the Group to
concentrate its superior resources and stopped its deficit.

On 9 June 2013, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Jia Ya Developments Limited (“Jia Ya") and Mr. Chi
Shaolin (“Mr. Chi") for the sale of the entire issued share capital of
Sumptuous Wealth (the “S&P Agreement of Sumptuous Wealth") (as
supplemented by the supplemental deeds dated 24 June 2013 and 26
November 2013 respectively). On 26 November 2013, with all the
precedent conditions of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal having been
completed, the completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal took
place, Sumptuous Wealth hence ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company. The Sumptuous Wealth Disposal allowed the Group to
dispose of part of its business in deficit and reserve its superior
resources for future possible better opportunities of profit-making.

Following the resolution for approving the Rosy Sun Acquisition being
duly passed by the independent shareholders of the Company on 28
January 2013, completion of the Rosy Sun Acquisition took place on 31
January 2013. Rosy Sun and, among others, the PRC Company became
subsidiaries of the Company since then.

*English name is for identification purposes only.
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW (continued)

Business Restructuring (Continued)

Upon the completion of the Rosy Sun Acquisition, the Group has started
to work with the three major telecommunication services providers in
the PRC as valuable customers and has taken part in the
telecommunication industry which has experienced significant growth
in recent years with the supporting policy by the PRC government, and
practically engaged in (i) the research and development, manufacturing
and sale of cell phones, which could run on 2G and/or 3G and/or 4G
networks such as GSM, 1S-95, COMA2000, TDSCDMA and TD-LTE/FDD-
LTE, as well as Mobile Internet terminals and related services provision
in the PRC; (ii) the sale of network equipment to three major
telecommunication services providers in the PRC, such as core network
equipments (“CN"), WLAN, IPRAN and xPON; (iii) the provision of
services to major telecommunication services providers in the PRC,
such as the installation, maintenance and upgrade of the network
equipment and/or wireless network optimization in the existing network
systems; and (iv) Private Network solutions to its newly developed
leading enterprise customers.

On 12 January 2013, the resolutions for approving the disposal of a 55%
equity interest in K& B /TEERK AR A F] (Tianjin Rituo Automotive
Electronics Co., Ltd.*, "Rituo Automotive”) (the “Rituo Disposal”) and the
acquisition of the entire equity interest in K& B &R AR A A
(Tianjin Rituo High Technology Co., Ltd*, “Rituo Technology”) (the “Rituo
Acquisition”) were duly passed by the independent shareholders of the
company.

OUTLOOK

New technologies and devices are emerging in our daily lives such as
wireless power charger, 4G technology, Mobile Internet technology and
related services and products which had changed and will keep
changing our lifestyle. The futures of the global computing and
consumer electronics markets are still unpredictable and full of
challenges. While the prospect of communication and
telecommunication industries seems much better with the wide
application of the 4G, Mobile Internet and Private Network. By entering
into the telecommunication industry and our great efforts made during
the past year, the Group expects to turn around loss position and make
profit in the near future. To achieve this goal, the Company will further
dedicate to the restructuring of its traditional business and make more
efforts and investments in the research and development and market
expansion in the area of 4G, Mobile Internet and Private Network. The
Company will keep dealing with the complicated situation with cautious,
fostering our strengths and circumventing the weaknesses to add value
to the Group. In summary, the Group is convinced that the continuous
enhancement and development of our business will eventually realise.

*English names are for identification purposes only.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board (the “Board"”) of the directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company, | express my sincere gratitude towards the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for your support and confidence in
our management team. | also wish to thank our colleagues on the Board
for your persistent contribution in the Company’s development and
progress. Furthermore, | thank all the staff who have been committed
to their duties and working hard for the development of the Group'’s
business. At last, | would like to thank all of you who constantly stood
by our side and supported us during the hard time, we will finally prove
that your patience is worthy!

Yours faithfully,

Chi Shaolin
Chairman and CEQ of HL Technology Group Limited

27 March 2014
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Profit/(Loss) Attributable to

Revenue the Owners of the Parent Total Assets
Wz BATRREMER, (FE8) mEE
RMB“;OO_O RMB’OO_O RMB’OO_O
AEBF T AEBF7 ARETT 3,506,275
2,712,525
2,513,955 152,670
2,500,000 150,000 3,000,000
116,071
100,000 2,417,922
2,294,139

2,000,000 1,865,376 88,265

50,000 2,000,000 1,981,220
1,500,000 1:413,960 (35,680) (177,510)

° |

1,000,000 872’396

-50,000 1,000,000 289,535
500,000 | 410,000 |

0 -200,000 0
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“EENE %% ZF——F ZF--F “T-=% “TTNF Z2-%F ZF—F Z2--F “2-=% ZTTNF ZT-TF “3——F ZT--F F-=F
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(@3) (385)) (@a5)

A summary of Revenue Breakdown in terms of End Markets is as follows: &M 5 &5 R EMEOT

%
13 11
100 e F—— 3.6 14 2.4
9.3
80 1.4 20.9 313
60 304
333
34.3
40
45.3
20 38.3
27.9
0
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“ETNE —E-% —T——F 2= —T-=fF
(Restated)
(lE3)
I Ccomputer BEY
[ consumer electronics SHEE T
Communication A
I Automotive P!

I Others Hith
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A highlight of results, selected financial ratios information, assets and

liabilities and cash flows is as follows:

RESULTS INFORMATION

X REEMBHLERER  BERAEBERA
TRENBELT

Year ended 31 December
BEt+t—-—A=1+—HLEEE

2013 2012

—E—=F —T——4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

(GENE|E))

(r&=751)

Revenue W25 2,712,525 2,513,955

Gross profit E=| 358,043 329,359

Loss before tax bR AT E R (155,191) (42,794)

Loss for the year FEEHE (180,211) (49,945)
Loss attributable to: FE(LEHE -

— Owners of the parent — B RRHEEA (177,510) (35,680)

— Non-controlling interests — Il RS (2,701) (14,265)

Loss per share EixEE
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) — HEAREEARED) (24.65) (4.96)
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SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS INFORMATION RETMBLLRESR

Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-HA=1T—HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010
= —T——F —T—F —ZT-FTF
(Restated)
(7&=71))
Gross profit margin EERER 13.2% 13.1% 20.3% 23.0% 22.7%
Net (loss)/profit margin BROFEE),
2t | (6.6%) (2.0%) 6.4% 11.0% 10.1%
Current ratio (times) BN R (%) 1.0 11 1.3 1.4 1.0
Gearing ratio™ BRAGBLEERO 25.9% 30.4% 28.4% 33.5% 35.7%
Return on total assets? BEERR? (6.1%) (1.7%) 5.6% 10.5% 9.9%
Return on total equity®? 1A O] 3R @ (16.0%) (3.9%) 11.8% 24.9% 32.3%

(M Calculated by using short-term borrowings divided by total assets.

2 Calculated by using average balances of total assets and total equity.

M

@

BEHERRIAREERH -

REGEERGRER  THEHRISE -
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES INFORMATION EEHAEER

As at 31 December
Rt+=—A=+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f —T-—fF —F—F —T-TF —_FTNF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTIT ARE®TT ARETT ARETT
(Restated) #

(r&=%1)

Cash and cash equivalents IR& MIBESZEHEY

(excluding pledged (TBREE M

deposits) T30 62,721 144,082 106,650 160,408 73,744
Current assets MEVEE 1,636,186 2,298,193 1,543,252 1,489,849 654,690
Non-current assets JEMEEE 781,736 1,208,082 750,887 491,371 334,845
Current liabilities mEAE 1,598,964 2,004,695 1,191,894 1,057,749 662,585
Non-current liabilities FErREEaE 23,341 39,045 9,718 - -
Equity attributable to ISTNCIEZEUN

owners of the parent FE(G 795,858 1,427,338 1,031,694 909,888 316,558
Non-controlling interests FE RS (241) 35,197 60,833 13,583 10,392

CASH FLOWS INFORMATION HEREER

Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-A=1+—HILEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—B-=F T T % ZT-TF ZTTNF

RMB'000  RMB'0O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AREBETRT ARETIT ARETE ARBTT

(Restated) #
€ <=2))
Net cash from/(used in) BIEEE
operating activities (Ffrﬂ% VIR EFEE 85,830 59,195 (167,546) (114,539) 470
Net cash (used in)/from WEEB(FTA),
investing activities FiSI & 558 (142,281) (183,715) 161,211 (549,936) 70,495
Net cash (used in)/from BMEEH(FTA)
financing activities TSR & /55 (19,872) 172,808 (47,423) 751,139 120,356

# The financial information was extracted from the Company's prospectus dated 3 # ZUBEMDBEEAAR —E—EF+—A=ZHMN
November 2010 (the “Prospectus”). BRER(THBRER]) -



A summary of consolidated results for the five years ended 31

December 2013 is as follows:
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HE_Z—=F+_"_A=+—HIAFEFEN
RAFENBENT

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+-HLHFE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
TB—=f ZT——F ZT——F ZT-FTF ZTThF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTT
(RENE]E)] #
(gE7)
Revenue U 25 2,712,525 2,513,955 1,865,376 1,413,960 872,396
Cost of sales SHEMNA (2,354,482) (2,184,596) (1,486,971) (1,088,346) (674,422)
Gross profit EF 358,043 329,359 378,405 325,614 197,974
Other income and gains Hab g A R s 21,083 41,105 23,593 6,058 9,344
Selling and distribution expenses $56€ & % $45i % (110,871) (79,378) (49,056) (27,233) (20,480)
Administrative expenses THRAE (154,813)  (144,551)  (116,714) (72,525) (47,978)
Research and development EER S
expenses (92,673) (83,198) (62,179) (30,932) (27,278)
Other expenses HEmA% (24,890) (44,486) (1,513) (8,637) (1,071)
Finance costs A& R AR (150,551) (61,645) (37,536) (19,090) (13,924)
Share of loss of an associate FEAE— B & A Rl 518 (270) = - - -
(Loss)/profit before tax SEICE R TLAD
from continuing operations (B18),/ % # (154,942) (42,794) 135,000 173,255 96,587
Income tax expense FTi5 R~ (25,020) (7,151) (15,640) (18,234) (8,090)
Loss for the year from BERIECEXELFE
a discontinued operation & (249) - - - -
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(E18) R7F (180,211) (49,945) 119,360 155,021 88,497
Other comprehensive Hizmibis,/ (EBE)
income/(loss)
Exchange differences on BEINE RS
translation of foreign operations & i, =58 (246) 278 (733) 742 -
Total comprehensive FE2@E(ER),/
(loss)/income for the year Wik Bz (180,457) (49,667) 118,627 155,763 88,497
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FEME (B518), /%7 -
— Owners of the parent —BRAREAA (177,510) (35,680) 116,071 152,670 88,265
— Non-controlling interests — IR (2,701) (14,265) 3,289 2,351 232
(180,211) (49,945) 119,360 155,021 88,497
Total comprehensive (I0ss)/ Ehzm(58),/
income attributable to: Wiz 458 -
— Owners of the parent — B AREA A (177,761) (35,402) 115,338 153,412 88,265
— Non-controlling interests — JEP R (2,696) (14,265) 3,289 2,351 232
(180,457) (49,667) 118,627 155,763 88,497
(Loss)/earnings per share — TR (EE), B —
Basic and diluted (RMB cents)  EARRiEE
(ANR#EESD) (24.7) (5.0) 16.1 27.5 16.9

# The financial information was extracted from the Prospectus.

# ZITEER S B ETR o
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BUSINESS REVIEW ¥KEE

As a result of the Rosy Sun Acquisition, the Group changed the  H R #E7TRosy SUNWEEEIE - REEBHHRK
structure of its internal organisation in a manner that caused the  ZRAR4KZE/E - BF H Al & 9 ZEHY A K L 35 &
composition of its reportable segments to change. Based on the new &) o 1R B4 AGZIB IS A EB BTN A 4 -
internal organisation incorporating the Newly Acquired Business, the  A&£BEIRE = F0] RELKLLHE - T AEBEE
Group has three reportable operating segments and the corresponding Z—E— -+ =-A=+—HI-EE 7 GEH
financial data of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 has  E&iE2 &%) -

been restated.

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE

2013 2012
—E-=f —E-Cf
Revenue % of Revenue Revenue % of Revenue Change in %
k&  GhEE i BYEESN U
RMB'000  (approximate) RMB'000 (@pproximate) (@pproximate)
ARETR (#4) ARBTT (Bi4) (B49)
Signal transmission and FREER
connectivity products BRER 1,665,534 61.4 1,933,675 769 (139
Terminals 87 350,453 12.9 246,271 98 423
Networks Rt 696,538 25.7 334,009 133 108.5
Total st 2,712,525 100.0 2,513,955 100.0 79
2013 Revenue Breakdown by Segments 2013 Revenue Breakdown by End Markets
TE-ZFE2FRITEs 2R “E-ZF2FRAGTHES 2RE
25.7% 27.9%
2013 34.3%
12.9% 24%“"
3.7%
31.8%
[ signal transmission and 1%‘%1:%{??@& 61.4% s computer HEH 27.9%
connectivity products BRER BN Consumer electronics HBET 34.3%
B Terminals s 12.9% I communication k) 31.8%
I Automotive B 3.7%

s Networks EFe 25.7% I Others Hit 2.4%
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The Group recorded a total revenue of approximately RMB2,712.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, representing a growth of
approximately 7.9% as compared with the revenue of approximately
RMB2,514.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2012. Revenue
generated from the Newly Acquired Business amounted to
approximately RMB1,047.0 million, representing approximately 38.6% of
the total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013,
or representing a significant increase by approximately 80.4% as
compared with that for the period from 13 June 2012 to 31 December
2012 which is mainly due to: (i) the booming market demand on 4G
products and related services as well as Private Network solutions since
4G technology, Mobile Internet technology and Private Network
technology become widely used; (i) the Group has made great efforts in
the marketing and research and development to get more market
shares and strengthen our customer base in both Operator Networks
and enterprise Private Network; and (iii) revenue from the Newly
Acquired Business was consolidated into the Group since 13 June 2012
as compared with that for the full year of 2013. While for the Original
Business, the revenue decreased from approximately RMB1,933.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to approximately
RMB1,665.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2013, representing
a decrease by approximately 13.9%. The decrease in revenue from the
Original Business was mainly due to (i) the continuing challenges and
uncertainties in the global economies and severe effects on the
computer and consumer electronics industries, resulting in both the
procurement amount and the average selling price across most product
lines within the Original Business in the tough competitive operating
environment declined; and (ii) the negative effects on and cease of
contribution to the revenue by the companies disposed of (that is,
Sumptuous Wealth and its subsidiaries) as a result of the completion of
the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal.

BRI i B 23 B

XD e
BE-_T—=-F+-_A=+—BULFE A%
B S RN ARE 272588 KBS
—E-——F+ A=+ —ALFEHKRIHA
RUE25140B &7 BNHN79%  BE-Z
—=ZFF+-_A=1+—HLEFE RKEFHEAZE
BRWEHOAARE10470B8ET  BERAK
EBBEWZEL386% WA T — _F XA
+=HEZZ——F+-A=+—HIHEX
138 IN4980.4% + = E A : ()R 4G H T
BHOBEREEREREMERER - %m?
o M a8 B RRTE A R BB 4% 7 =5 HOEE
() AL BB HEITE R inabumiﬁ
B RELENPEMNCEEEPRNETLE
F(i)FEAZEBE_ZE——F A +=HEA
R M-E—=FR2FAK - REKH@E -
WHEmEE—T——F+-_A=+—ALLEE
YAREE19337EETL BEEHE T — =4
+Z A=t —HILEFEHARKEI1665E8
*'ﬁrJz%’JB()% FREKHRZER L EBEH
() REEBEREMMEEE TITENRE X
TEHE)%I%H SRE YHBERMTEBKESE
YE NEBEBBRFHIUNELRE UK
FREBRBERABDERSNFHEEHT
BRATE: RIVARTEREHEE  CHEATR
(Eﬂ%%’\\&/ﬁﬂﬁ% AEKEmYEATER
BRULZEFTER ©

—=F4% g
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Signal Transmission and Connectivity Products

EiEOEE 2
ERERREEER

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE
2013 2012
ZE-=F g

Revenue % of revenue Revenue % Of revenue

6 WA At g WHEAL
RMB'000  (approximate) RMB'000 (@pproximate) (approximate)
ARBTR (%) ARETT (Bt40) (BE4)
External signal cable assembly MNEESSE 284,557 1741 333816 173 (14.8)
Internal signal cable assembly M &E 339,333 204 384,517 199 (118)
Power cord assembly Bl 465,517 28.0 463,814 2.0 04
Signal transmission wire & cable EREnRS 350,192 21.0 420,956 218 (168)
Connectors ERR 20,339 1.2 27,722 14 (26)
Antennas x5 67,470 41 71913 37 6.2
Automotive wiring hamess ABERR 120,376 7.2 127,454 66 (56)
Others it 17,750 1.0 103,483 53 (82.8)
Total @it 1,665,534 100.0 1,933,675 100.0 (139

Signal transmission and connectivity products segment recorded a total
revenue of approximately RMB1,665.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2013, which decreased by approximately RMB268.1 million,
or approximately 13.9% as compared with that for the year ended 31
December 2012 primarily due to (i) sales of external and internal signal
cable assembly dropped by approximately 14.8% and 11.8%
respectively due to the reduction of their unit selling price as a result of
the fierce competition and tough operating environment and the
decrease in sales volume in line with the decrease in market demands
on such relatively traditional products, also as a result of the completion
of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal; (ii) sales of power cord assembly
increased by approximately 0.4% as compared to the year ended 31
December 2012 due to our ability to increase market share from our
existing customers, while at the same time, the selling price of this
product decreased due to dropping copper price and challenging
operating environment; (iii) revenue of our signal transmission wire and
cable product decreased by approximately 16.8% mainly due to
significant drop in sales of our communication and consumer
electronics cable; and (iv) revenue of our automotive wiring harness
decreased by approximately 5.6% mainly due to negative effects of the
relocation of the production base and that the Company disposed of a
55% equity interest in Rituo Automotive and acquired the entire equity
interest in Rituo Technology and the Company lost some production
and customers during the disposal and acquisition.

EHERREEEMOTREBEE T —=F
+ZA=+—BLFE  SEARKREHARE
16665BEB T REEZ2_E——F+=A4
Z+—HIEFETHRHOARE2631HETT
4 13.9% + EEZHR)IMNEERBRAEMFRA
EEREAMHEEBRERS - N EEERIER
55 SHAIRENEE  UEREREZHES
BYHEZAZHED IR 14.8% 2 11.8% -
MEBKIEEMSHZSEREREFCIERZ
FRRE— (VERGAEZHEERES
—E-ZF+ - A=+-—BIEEEMND
04% AATEEEABRERFEATISN
BRAK - AEMHNESERRE TH®RREEIR
FREmMRD  (NEFREhEEERRE T
#168% TEHNBALEBEE ZHEKX
BER: RVAESRKE THLL.6% =
EHREZIEVEEREM  BEFE - L
AARHERBEARES% 2 BERKERLS
B2 - AR RN EE RIRERRE X
EBOEERTF °
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Terminals

Main products of terminals segment are cell phones which can run on
3G and/or 4G networks, such as CDMA2000, TD-SCDMA and TD-LTE/
FDD-LTE as well as Mobile Internet terminals. Revenue of the terminals
segment for the year ended 31 December 2013 were approximately
RMB350.5 million, representing approximately 12.9% of the total
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and also
representing an increase by approximately 42.3% as compared with
that for the period from 13 June 2012 to 31 December 2012 mainly due
to that revenue from this segment was consolidated into the Group
since 13 June 2012 as compared to the full year of 2013. While at the
same time, we also noted that most proportion of the revenue from this
segment for the year ended 31 December 2012 was generated in the
second half of the year, thus there was only an increase of
approximately 42.3% was recorded.

Networks

Main products and services of networks segment are network
equipment such as CN, WLAN, IPRAN and xPON, the installation,
maintenance and upgrade of the network equipment, wireless network
optimization on the existing wireless network systems of the three
major telecommunication services providers and Private Network
solutions provided to several leading enterprise customers in the PRC.
Revenue of networks segment for the year ended 31 December 2013
were approximately RMB696.5 million, representing approximately
25.7% of the total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 and also representing an increase by approximately
108.5% as compared with that for the period from 13 June 2012 to 31
December 2012 mainly due to the great efforts made by the Group on
the marketing and research and development in networks segment and
that revenue from networks segment was consolidated into the Group
since 13 June 2012 as compared with that for the full year of 2013.

BRI i B 23 B

¥KORE @
g
RIS DB B E T AR LA 3G &5 4G 434K
(48 CDMA2000 * TD-SCDMA % TD-LTE/FDD-LTE
AR B 4848 4500 ) BER) F 4 o 4R D 3R
BE-_Z—=F+=-F=+— Etifmuﬂzm
HABANRBI0SEETL  HAEEEE
—=F+=-A=+— EIM:EFE’J?@H&Z U
129% - A B -"F——"FXAF+=H=Z
:%—:¢+:ﬁz+—a¢%ﬁmm WE
#9423%  TERARZOS AW EHR T —=
FRAT=ZARBREAFTALRER  MZT—=
iﬁlJﬁiiiTmﬂ\ZﬁE@ At B B - B
AERIASHEE_ZE——F+-_A=+—8H
I FEARE DIk K§T¥$ A 2 SRS 4
42.3% Z3E K °

ke

Mg HHEEEm MRS ACN - WLAN
IPRAN Jz XPON & 4348 5848 - 8RB LE -
HENAREPE = ARENRBELHREGE
BABE RSN EGEEELRT  URREESE
BREBAFTRTHEABRELLERR - #
ECT—=ZFF+_A=+—RHULFEZR/ES
R BAREO6SABE T  EARNEEE
ETE—ZFF+_A=Z+—HILEFEZHKZE
49257%  NBH_E——_FXA+=HZF=
E-—_F+-A=+—BILHEEMDO
108.5% * FEMRMNAEE I ABLEE DI EH R
MENE - UEHEEIBOREHR T —=F
ANATZBRAGREFALER 2T —=
FRIBEFHRAFTANER -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Cost of Sales

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our cost of sales for the
year indicated:

5o % 12 R
HERK
TR B AR SEEROFIR A 0 85 B AR AR -

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t-HLEE

2013 2012
—Z2-=F —T——fF

RMB'000 % of total cost RMB'000 % of total cost
AR¥TR of sales ARETTT ofsales  Changein%

EHERA (Restated) HSHERA
aEFLt (lE5) BEANY - EIER
(approximate) (approximate)  (approximate)
(#4) (#40) (#4)
Raw material costs FMEAA 1,902,311 80.8 1,835,640 84.0 36
Utilities NEEZEHAR 20,655 0.9 20,031 0.9 3.1
Depreciation e 34,160 1.5 26,169 1.2 305
Labor costs BTRA 178,449 7.6 160,356 73 11.3
Outsourcing costs HMELAY AN 175,727 7.5 108,508 5.0 61.9
Others Hit 43,180 1.7 33,892 1.6 274
Total st 2,354,482 100.0 2,184,596 100.0 7.8

Among the total cost of sales of the Group, approximately RMB1,466.6
million was attributable to the Original Business, among which
approximately RMB1,117.5 million was attributable to the raw material
costs, representing approximately 76.2% of the total cost of sales of the
Original Business. Approximately RMB887.9 million was attributable to
the Newly Acquired Business, among which approximately RMB784.8
million was attributable to the raw material costs, representing
approximately 88.4% of the total cost of sales of the Newly Acquired
Business.

Cost of sales increased overall by approximately RMB169.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013, or representing an increase by
approximately 7.8% as compared with that for the year ended 31
December 2012. The increase was basically in line with the increase in
the revenue and primarily due to: (i) increase in cost of sales attributable
to the Newly Acquired Business was approximately RMB355.7 million or
approximately 66.8% mainly due to that the cost of sales from Newly
Acquired Business was consolidated into the Group since 13 June 2012
as compared with that for the full year of 2013; and (ii) cost of sales
from the Original Business decreased by approximately RMB185.8
million, or approximately 11.3%, as compared with that for the year
ended 31 December 2012, which was mainly as a result of the drop in
the total sales volume and the cease of contribution from the
companies disposed of (that is, Sumptuous Wealth and its subsidiaries)
upon the completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal.

AEEEENARER - HAREK,466.6 B 5
TTBRRER  ERHARE1117588TE
REDEBZEM B A - (hRER 2 HER A
WRAHI76.2% > K ANREESS7T O FH B ILENHTHE
AER  HERHARB/MMISHEETEREM
BEAA EFMBAEBZHEHERRNRBRELY
88.4% °

HE_Z—=F+"A=+—RHILFE - #HE
RABBE-_FT——F+-_A=+—RILFE
BEE MM ARE1699B E Tk #7.8% o 1
R R A E EUERIRRART - E2IRN : V¥
AEBIBNHERAHARKEILTBEET
H#66.8% TRRBFMBAERHHHERA
T —FR AT =—HEGAFALREEH
Mm-—F—=FRI2FHEEFAREE : K)R
EBHBEENEIABRBE_T——F+_H
St RALEFERIHOARK1BEE TN
MN3% TEHNAHETHK  URTERR
HREZREHEAR (MM EENBLR) T
BEREEKRAMK -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gross Profit and Margin

BRI i B 23 B

Bt IS EEE ()
EXNRENZE

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-ALEE

2013 2012
“B-=F —2—f
Gross profit Gross profit Change in
Gross profit margin (6ross profit margin £ross profit
el ER= =il EH= ENE
RMB'000 (approximate) RMB'000  (approximate)  (approximate)
ARETT (#4) ARETFT (#49) (BE49)
(%) (Restated) (%) (%)
(& =51)
Signal transmission and ERERR
connectivity products BEER 198,956 11.9 281,255 145 (293)
Terminals S 32,913 9.4 23,701 96 389
Networks a 126,174 18.1 24,403 73 417.0
Total @t 358,043 13.2 329,359 13.1 8.7

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to approximately RMB358.0 million, representing an increase
by approximately RMB28.7 million or approximately 8.7% as compared
with that for the year ended 31 December 2012. Gross profit generated
from the Newly Acquired Business increased to approximately
RMB159.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 from RMB48.1
million for the period from 13 June 2012 to 31 December 2012 mainly
due to (i) the revenue for the Newly Acquired Business increased
significantly and the rising proportion of network products with
relatively high gross profit margin due to the tailor-made services and
products delivered to Private Network customers; and (i) gross profit
from the Newly Acquired Business was consolidated into the Group
since 13 June 2012 as compared with that for the full year of 2013.
Gross profit generated from the Original Business decreased from
approximately RMB281.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2012
to approximately RMB199.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2013, representing a decrease by approximately 29.3%. Such decrease
in gross profit from the Original Business was mainly due to the decline
in the average selling price and procurement amount across most of
the product lines within the Original Business along with increasingly
fierce competition and weaker demands from the Group’s most
customers for the year ended 31 December 2013.

HE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HLFE K&
EEMHAAREILOES T KEHE

——FF+ AT RALEFEEENHOARE
287HETT &%SMMKQ%ﬁkﬁﬁm%
ME-—E——FRA+=ZHE-ZT——F+=
A=+— Ei%ﬁZAE%%JE%ﬁE #H
E_E-=F+-A=+—BLFEHARI
159188 FERA (VB AEBNRE
RIEIGIN - AREFTRBREERN FEEFN
BEFHNEMFEAERSENENENGLER
mﬂ%m:&n%%ﬁﬁ%m%ﬂm—-
FRAT=ZARGEFALEER M=

FRZFHRETALRER - $E@E¥%E$
Z2ENBABEE-_T——F+_A=1+—HILHF
EHOARBIIEETRIEEE-_E—=
FH+_A=+T " HLTFENHARE19908H

BT BiERI29.3% o REB 2 ERBKE I E
EHREBE_T—=Ft_A=1T—HLLFE
A BEFEREHN - AEEREOEFPNT
FORSE - SREBOABAERGNTFIHEE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Gross Profit and Margin (Continued)

Gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2013 increased
from approximately 13.1% to approximately 13.2% for the year ended
31 December 2012. The gross profit margin for the Newly Acquired
Business improved significantly mainly due to the rising proportion of
network products with higher gross profit margin, especially the tailor-
made solutions delivered to Private Network customers; while the gross
profit margin for the Original Business decreased to approximately
11.9% for the year ended 31 December 2013 from approximately 14.5%
for the year ended 31 December 2012 mainly due to the decline in the
average selling price across most of the Group's product lines.

Other Income and Gains

The Group recorded other income and gains of approximately RMB21.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, among which
approximately RMB5.9 million was the government grants released
during the year, approximately RMB4.2 million was bank and other
interest income and approximately RMB7.8 million was discounted
amount of trade receivables arising from the passage of time; we also
recorded a net gain on disposals of subsidiaries of approximately
RMB1.9 million.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately RMB31.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, or approximately 39.7%,
as compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2012, mainly
attributable to the increase in staff costs and related expenses from the
Newly Acquired Business along with the increasing general marketing
activities and the establishment of a sound marketing network in the
PRC.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB10.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013, or approximately 7.1%, as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2012, which was
mainly due to, among others, audit and other professional fees
increased by approximately RMB15.7 million as a result of the mass
professional fees occurred during the Rituo Disposal and the Sumptuous
Wealth Disposal. However, this significant increase was partially net off
by the overall decrease in administrative expenses from Original
Business by virtue of the completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal
on 26 November 2013.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased by approximately
RMB9.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2013, or approximately
11.4%, as compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2012.
The increase was mainly attributable to the rising staff costs and co-
development expenses from the Newly Acquired Business of
approximately RMB6.8 million and RMB4.5 million, respectively, along
with the expansion of its research and development activities in terms
of both scope and scale, especially on 4G terminals, Mobile Internet
terminals and enterprise Private Network solutions.

Other Expenses

Other expenses amounted to approximately RMB24.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013, which was primarily attributable to loss
from disposal of property, plant and equipment and impairment loss
recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, trade receivables and prepayments and other receivables.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB88.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013, or approximately 144.2%, as compared with
that for the year ended 31 December 2012, which was mainly
attributable to the substantial notional interest expense of
approximately RMB82.2 million incurred mainly due to the early
redemption of the Promissory Note as a result of the completion of the
Sumptuous Wealth Disposal on 26 November 2013.

Income Tax Expense

We incurred income tax expense of approximately RMB25.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 primarily due to (i) the current PRC
Enterprise Income Tax expense occurred from the Newly Acquired
Business of approximately RMB14.3 million and current withholding tax
from the Original Business of approximately RMB12.8 million relating to
profit distribution to the Company; and (i) deferred tax of approximately
RMB2.7 million. On an overall basis, the Group's effective tax rate for
the year ended 31 December 2013 was -16.15%, contrasting to -16.71%
for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Loss for the Year

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB180.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013. The net profit recorded by the Newly
Acquired Business was approximately RMB71.6 million, after
consolidating the net profit of approximately RMB87.3 million recorded
by the PRC Company, which means the Profit Guarantee has been
accomplished, and other costs of approximately RMB15.7 million mainly
composed of depreciation and amortization of valuation premium of
prepaid land lease payments, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets identified during the Rosy Sun Acquisition. Whereas
the net loss from the Original Business for the year ended 31 December
2013 was approximately RMB169.3 million which was mainly due to: (i)
the decrease in gross profit and other gains from the Original Business
for the year ended 31 December 2013; and (ii) impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, trade and other
receivables and inventories recognised during the year ended 31
December 2013 since their recoverable amount, or net realizable value
was less than their carrying amount. Furthermore, there was a
substantial notional interest expense of approximately RMB82.2 million
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2013 mainly due to the early
redemption of the Promissory Note as a result of the Sumptuous Wealth
Disposal which add to the total loss of the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group will continue to implement prudent financial management
policies and maintain a reasonable gearing ratio during its operation. As
at 31 December 2013, the Group's gearing ratio (measured by total
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as a percentage of total
assets of the Group) was approximately 25.9% (31 December 2012:
approximately 30.4%).

As at 31 December 2013, the total bank and other borrowings of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB625.2 million (31 December
2012: approximately RMB1,065.8 million). These loans carried interests
at floating or fixed rates. Included in the total bank and other borrowings
of approximately RMB625.2 million, approximately RMB262.3 million
was secured loans.

The bank and other borrowings from the Newly Acquired Business
decreased by approximately RMB80.3 million mainly due to some of the
bank and other borrowings matured and the PRC Company did not
renew the borrowings, the bank and other borrowings from the Original
Business decreased by approximately RMB360.2 million, which was
mainly attributable to the completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal
on 26 November 2013.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed in this report, and apart
from intragroup liabilities, the Company did not have outstanding at the
close of business on 31 December 2013, any loan capital issued and
outstanding or agreed to be issued, bank overdrafts, loans or other
similar indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances or acceptable
credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, hire purchases commitments,
guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

The Directors have confirmed that, there has been no material change
in the indebtedness and contingent liabilities of the Group since 31
December 2013 to the date of this report.

Foreign Currency Risk

As certain of our trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and bank borrowings
of the Group are denominated in foreign currency, hence exposure to
exchange rate fluctuation arises.

Working Capital

Inventories balance as at 31 December 2013 was approximately
RMB125.8 million (31 December 2012: approximately RMB327.4 million).
The decrease was mainly attributable to the drop of inventories from
Original Business as a result of completion of the Rituo Disposal on 12
January 2013 and completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal on 26
November 2013. The average turnover days for inventories dropped to
36 days as at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012: 55 days) mainly
due to the huge decline in inventory balance and the inventory turnover
rate of the Newly Acquired Business was relatively high.

Trade and bills receivables balance as at 31 December 2013 was
approximately RMB1,201.4 million (31 December 2012: approximately
RMB1,353.5 million). Apart from the rising of trade and bills receivables
of approximately RMB287.5 million from the Newly Acquired Business
mainly due to the increase of its business scope and revenue, the trade
and bills receivables from the Original Business decreased by
approximately RMB439.6 million which was mainly due to (i) we
accelerated the recovery of trade and bills receivables proactively
during the tough time; (i) the decrease in revenue for the year ended 31
December 2013; and (iii) the completion of the Rituo Disposal on 12
January 2013 and completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal on 26
November 2013. The average turnover days for trade and bills
receivables stood at 172 days (31 December 2012: 167 days). As at 31
December 2013, approximately 65.2% of our trade and bills receivables
were aged within three months.

BRI i B 23 B

Bt IS EEE ()
FEBESRUEER(E)
B ESARE SEREE  UREERNAT

MzBEN RZE—=F+ZA=+—A0%
EE K CINE: TGS e e -]
EXRBEETZEEER  RTEY - BEFK
HapfalER AL ABRARLEE  EF
=B Eif - AEAE  ERIEMEAKA
BE-

BECHBR B-Z—=F+_A=+—HU

K- BEAHFEAHY  AEENEBLRIAE
EEEREE

SN LB

HRARENE TESREMBKRE - EX
MRITHER  RITEHRLERS BHREME
15 Iﬁ&fﬁfﬂ%%ﬂwl\ﬁ%ﬁlﬂé - & 3
FEE 287 B 0 |

BEEXR

R-ZE—=Ft+"_A=+—8B FEEHKOR

ARBI1258BET(ZF——F+=-RA=+—
B WARKEIR/IABET) - BHBLEEHR
REBARBER _T—=F—A+_HTKER
HREN-_FT—=F+— AT NATKEH
REBEFERD - —F—=Ft+-A=1+—H
MEFEFHEBRERER(ZFT——F
TZA=1+—B:5R) TEHRFEHER
RIER D B ARBFEAEXBRYRS
FITER

n= T—:¢+:HE+—E'%%&%%@
W EARBARE12014A BT (22—
¢+ A=+—8 : HHARK1,3535HETT) °

RETMBAEBNE S RBBREBUGIZELNA
R¥2875F5 8L ETERNEKSDE LK
=HIER BRI REREFCBEIRERE
EW%TM%AE%M%@%E TERA
B OWASBEREBESHEESHNRE S RER
EW KEEERE (VB2 —ZF+—=A
—t—BHIEFEZWE TR &) BHEEER
—E-=F A+ HEKMNMEHEER_-E
—E¢+—ﬂ:+ﬁa%ﬁﬁﬁ WoZT—=
F+-AZ1+—H EZNEBEREKRZHTH
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ_i—:¢+_ﬂf+—
H:167H) RZE—=F+_A=+—8"
#652% M E 5 M ZIEEW Rz Rk A=A
ﬂqo




HL Technology Group Limited e kRIS EE AR A A

Management Discussion & Analysis

BRI kB 23 B

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Working Capital (Continued)

Trade and bills payables balance as at 31 December 2013 was
approximately RMB704.2 million (31 December 2012: approximately
RMB666.4 million). Apart from the increase by approximately RMB235.2
million from the Newly Acquired Business due to the increase in its
business scope and purchase, the trade and bills payables from the
Original Business decreased by approximately RMB197.4 million which
was mainly as a result of the completion of the Rituo Disposal on 12
January 2013 and completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal on 26
November 2013. The average turnover days for trade and bills payables
stood at 107 days as at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012: 95
days).

Our cash conversion cycle for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
101 days as compared with 127 days for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Cash Flows

Net cash from operating activities KETEB TSRS 35
Net cash used in investing activities KRB EEFTRE ST

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2013, our operating cash flows have
been improved greatly. Net cash from operating activities for the year
ended 31 December 2013 increased to approximately RMB85.8 million
from approximately RMB59.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2012. The improvement on operating cash flows condition was primarily
due to the increase in total revenue and the decrease in trade and bills
receivables.

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended 31 December
2013 of approximately RMB142.3 million was primarily attributable to
investments in property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets
and land use right in Huizhou, Weihai, Wuhan and Changshu base and
as the effect of the completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal,
which was partially net off by the proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment.

Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended 31 December
2013 amounted to approximately RMB19.9 million, which was primarily
attributable to the repayment of bank and other borrowings.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group incurred total capital
expenditure of approximately RMB158.9 million (31 December 2012:
approximately RMB433.4 million) in construction of new factories,
research and development center, the purchase of land, plant and
machinery, equipment and computer systems and other intangible
assets.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMB25.8 million in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had capital
commitment of approximately RMB64.2 million and approximately
RMB533.1 million in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, and in respect of acquisition of equities respectively.

Employees

As at 31 December 2013, subsidiaries of the Group had a total of 3,908
staff, of which 1,841 were direct employees (31 December 2012: 3,417)
and 1,186 were contract workers (31 December 2012: 5,549). As at 31
December 2013, we also had 881 part time interns (31 December 2012:
1,219). All contract workers and part time interns were mainly deployed
in production. The breakdown of direct employees of the Group as at 31
December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:
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31 December

2013 2012
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Manufacturing BliE 584 1,809
Sales and marketing SHE K5 HE 506 311
General and administration — M R ATIR 389 687
Research and Development i3 221 270
Quality and control mn Rl 141 340
Total st 1,841 3,417

The significant decrease in the employee number as at 31 December
2013 as compared with that as at 31 December 2012 was mainly due to
the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal.
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CHANGE IN USE OF PROCEEDS BRIEREEE

The net proceeds from the global offering of the Company (the “Global ~ AKNA R Z 2 EEE ([ 2 EEE |) TS IEF5E
Offering”), after deducting the relevant costs were approximately &I BRHEBKAREL B4703F AT (HBER
HK$470.3 million (equivalent to approximately RMB400.7 million) (the # AR 400.7BET) ([BAABHRERESR
“IPO Proceeds”). ) e

As at 21 February 2014, the Company utilized approximately RMB332.1 #HZE—_Z—NF_A=-+—H ARQa&HH
million of the IPO Proceeds, details of which are tabulated below: BIRNARBRERERERHARKINIHE
TC FHIEESAT

Amount of
IPO Proceeds
allocated as
Intended use disclosed provided in Utilized Unutilized
in the Prospectus the Prospectus amount amount
ERERE
HEZEIR

AHBRERE

MEDERE cBAeHE KXBALE
RMB million RMB million RMB million

ARBRET ARBBRET ARBBAERT

(approximate) (approximate) (approximate)

(BE4Y) (#E40) (849

Expanding production capacity of ERREERER

existing products 160.3 117.0 433
Development and production of % REENER

new products 176.3 151.0 25.3
Research and development investments & 24.0 24.0 -
General working capital and —REEES N

other general corporate purposes HEf—REERR 40.1 40.1 -

Total HEt 400.7 332.1 68.6
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CHANGE IN USE OF PROCEEDS (continued)

The total balance of the unutilized IPO Proceeds was approximately
RMB68.6 million as at 21 February 2014 and all of that were intended to
use in expanding the production capacity of existing products and the
development and production of new products of the Group in its
Chongging and Wuhan base originally. In light of, among other things, (i)
the Wuhan Electronic Disposal; (i) the completion of the Sumptuous
Wealth Disposal; and (iii) the Wuhan Technology Disposal, the
businesses of the Group in Chongging and Wuhan together with the
investment in their production bases have already been disposed of
due to the unfavorable operation environment in their business scope
and their performance in recent years. In view of aforesaid changes, the
Board considers that it is necessary to adjust the proposed use of the
unutilized IPO Proceeds of approximately RMB68.6 million to the
expansion of the domestic and international markets on the Group’s
products lines within the Original Business, research and development
investments in the Group’s original products, mainly the halogen-free
power cord and general working capital such as talent recruitment and
equipment maintenance, since the IPO Proceeds originally allocated to
research and development investments and general working capital
have been fully utilized and the Group reckons the need for increasing
investments in the research and development having considered the
current business profile of the Group and the industry trend whereas
the newly allocated IPO Proceeds can serve as the supplement to the
general working capital of the Group which can mitigate the pressure
on the Group.
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CHANGE IN USE OF PROCEEDS (continued) FRAEIBHREE (&)
The proposed revised use of unutilized IPO Proceeds is as follows: REAHRAFRERSRBZEEETAS
LU

New allocation
of the
unutilized
New intended use IPO Proceeds
REVAEHIX
ARBEMS
RIE B
DERE
RMB million
ARBBET
(approximate)
(BE49)

Expansion of domestic and international markets BEASEERAERZBEARBEINTS
on the Group's original products 13.6
Research and development investments R E 20.0

General working capital and other general —ReEEe NEM—REERR

corporate purposes 35.0
Total Bt 68.6

Details of the change in use of proceeds have been set out inthe FTSRERAZREE 2 HBHRNAR AR T
announcement dated 21 February 2014 published by the Company. —FE_A=+—HAE L RE -
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MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO THE ROSY SUN ACQUISITION

On 28 October 2012, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “S&P Agreement of Rosy Sun”) with Mr. Chi for the Rosy
Sun Acquisition.

Pursuant to the S&P Agreement of Rosy Sun (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreement entered into between the Company and Mr.
Chi dated 28 December 2012), Mr. Chi had conditionally agreed to sell
and the Company had conditionally agreed to purchase the entire
issued share capital of Rosy Sun and the loan or debt (if any) owing by
Rosy Sun, New Postcom Technology Company Limited (the “HK
Company”) or the PRC Company to Mr. Chi at a consideration of
HK$650.0 million (the “Acquisition Consideration”). The Acquisition
Consideration was determined after arm’s length negotiations between
Mr. Chi and the Company after taking into account a number of factors
including the business nature, the business prospects, net assets value
of Rosy Sun, the HK Company and the PRC Company as at 30 June
2012, performance of the PRC Company, the Profit Guarantee, and the
preliminary estimation of the fair value of the PRC Company of
approximately HK$700.0 million pursuant to the business valuation
carried out by an independent valuer under the market approach using
the relevant forward price to earnings multiples and relevant forecast
earnings of the PRC Company for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The PRC Company is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, the PRC, which is wholly owned by the HK
Company. The HK Company is an investment holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong, which is wholly owned by Rosy Sun. Rosy
Sun is an investment holding company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

The PRC Company is principally engaged in (i) the research and
development, manufacturing and sale of cell phones, which can run on
2G and/or 3G and/or 4G networks such as GSM, 1S-95, CDMA2000, TD-
SCDMA and TD-LTE/FDD-LTE as well as Mobile Internet Terminals in the
PRC; (ii) the sale of network equipment to three major
telecommunication services providers and providing Private Network
Solutions to several leading enterprise customers in the PRC, such as
core network equipment, IPRAN and xPON; and (iii) the provision of
services to the three major telecommunication services providers in the
PRC, such as the installation, maintenance and upgrade of the network
equipment and/or wireless network optimization in their existing
network systems.
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MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO THE ROSY SUN ACQUISITION
(Continued)

The Rosy Sun Acquisition constitutes a major transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chi is the
controlling shareholder of the Company, an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company who was at the relevant time interested in
approximately 40.87% interests of the Company, thus Mr. Chi is
considered as a connected person of the Company and the Rosy Sun
Acquisition also constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
and is subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

On 31 January 2013, all conditions precedent under the S&P Agreement
of Rosy Sun (including approval of independent Shareholders of the
Company at the general meeting held on 28 January 2013) have been
fulfilled, and completion of the Rosy Sun Acquisition took place on 31
January 2013. In accordance with the S&P Agreement of Rosy Sun, the
Company issued the Promissory Note in the amount of HK$650 million
to Mr. Chi in satisfaction of the Acquisition Consideration.

The PRC Company recorded a net profit of approximately RMB87.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) are of the view that the Profit
Guarantee has thus been accomplished and Mr. Chi has fulfilled his
obligation under the Profit Guarantee.

Details of the Rosy Sun Acquisition have been set out in the
announcements dated 30 October 2012, 19 November 2012, 17
December 2012, 28 December 2012, 28 January 2013 and 31 January
2013 respectively and the circular dated 31 December 2012 published
by the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND DISCLOSEABLE
TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO THE RITUO
AUTOMOTIVE AND THE ACQUISITION OF RITUO
TECHNOLOGY

Rituo Automotive and Rituo Technology (collectively, the “Tianjin Rituo
Group”) were acquired by &8 50 M E F B BR A A (Weihai Honglin
Electronic Co., Ltd.*) (“Weihai Electronic”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company on 21 February 2011 and they had been non-wholly
owned as to 55% by the Company. Pursuant to the terms of the
acquisition, if the aggregate amount of the audited net profit after tax of
Tianjin Rituo Group for the two years ending 31 December 2012 is less
than RMB40.0 million as guaranteed by Wang Xiang and Wang Weiguo
(collectively referred to as the “Tianjin Rituo Founders”), the Tianjin
Rituo Founders shall pay Weihai Electronic 34.4% of the difference
between the actual profit and the abovementioned guaranteed profit,
and Weihai Electronic will have to contribute such sum back into Tianjin
Rituo Group through increasing the registered capital of Rituo
Automotive, while the Tianjin Rituo Founders will proportionally
contribute capital to Rituo Automotive according to the sum that Weihai
Electronic contributed.

On 20 November 2012, Weihai Electronic entered into a disposal
agreement (the "Disposal Agreement”) with, among others, Wang Xiang
(one of the Tianjin Rituo Founders) pursuant to which Weihai Electronic
agreed to sell, and Wang Xiang agreed to purchase a 55% equity
interest in Rituo Automotive at the consideration of RMB58.6 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$70.3 million), which was determined
primarily with reference to: (i) the operating situation at Rituo
Automotive; (i) the non-exercise of the relevant profit guarantee; (jii) the
amount of such consideration representing a 30.8% premium to the
55% proportionate net asset value of Rituo Automotive as at 31 October
2012; and (iv) the amount of capital contribution injected by Weihai
Electronic into Rituo Automotive in February 2011, which was made
reference to factors including but not limited to the relevant profit
guarantee.

On the same day, Weihai Electronic entered into an acquisition
agreement (the "Acquisition Agreement”) with, among others, Rituo
Automotive, pursuant to which Rituo Automotive agreed to sell and
Weihai Electronic agreed to purchase the entire equity interest in Rituo
Technology at the consideration of RMB15.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$18.0 million). The consideration was determined by
reference to, among other things, the total amount invested into Rituo
Technology by Rituo Automotive and the net asset value of Rituo
Technology as at 31 October 2012.

*  English names are for identification purposes only
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND DISCLOSEABLE
TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO THE RITUO
AUTOMOTIVE AND THE ACQUISITION OF RITUO
TECHNOLOGY (continued)

Rituo Technology was principally engaged in the design, research and
development, manufacture and sale of automotive wiring harness
products to end PRC automobile customers at the time of the Rituo
Acquisition.

The Rituo Disposal and the Rituo Acquisition, when aggregated,
constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules. As Wang Xiang held more than 30% of the
registered capital of Rituo Automotive at the relevant time and was a
director of Rituo Automotive immediately before and after the Rituo
Disposal, and within the preceding 12 months from the entering into of
the Disposal Agreement and the Acquisition Agreement. Accordingly,
both Wang Xiang and Rituo Automotive are connected persons of the
Company and each of the Rituo Disposal and the Rituo Acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company, and, when
aggregated, is subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

On 19 December 2012, Weihai Electronic and Wang Xiang entered into
a supplemental agreement to the Disposal Agreement pursuant to
which (i) Weihai Electronic and Wang Xiang agreed to extend the date of
payment by Wang Xiang of the consideration under the Disposal
Agreement (the “Disposal Consideration”) from 31 December 2012 to 31
March 2013; and (ii) if Wang Xiang fails to pay the Disposal
Consideration in full by 31 March 2013, he would also pay interest
equivalent to 10% above the benchmark interest rate on loans over the
same period as announced by the People’s Bank of China which has
been accrued on the balance of the Disposal Consideration. On the
same day, Weihai Electronic and Rituo Automotive entered into a
supplemental agreement to the Acquisition Agreement pursuant to
which Weihai Electronic and Rituo Automotive agreed to extend the
date of payment by Weihai Electronic of the consideration under the
Acquisition Agreement from 31 December 2012 to 31 March 2013.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND DISCLOSEABLE
TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO THE RITUO
AUTOMOTIVE AND THE ACQUISITION OF RITUO
TECHNOLOGY (continued)

The aggregate amount of the audited net profit of Tianjin Rituo Group
after taxation and extraordinary items for the year ended 31 December
2011 was approximately RMB2.6 million and the loss after taxation and
extraordinary items for the ten months ended 31 October 2012 was
approximately RMB17.2 million (based on which the Rituo Disposal was
effected) which was less than RMB40.0 million guaranteed by the Tianjin
Rituo Founders. The Directors decided that Weihai Electronic will not
exercise the rights under the relevant profit guarantee after the
completion of the Rituo Disposal taking into account the following
factors: () the exercise of rights under the profit guarantee would only
result in a one-time non-operating gain in the income statement of the
Company but not providing cash flow to the Group; (ii) the negative
effect of non-exercise of the rights under the relevant profit guarantee
had been taken into account when determining the consideration of the
Rituo Disposal; and (iii) the Directors confirm that the non-exercise of
the rights under the relevant profit guarantee will not have any other
material negative financial effects on the Company.

On 7 January 2013, Weihai Electronic, Rituo Automotive and the Tianjin
Rituo Founders entered into a profit guarantee cancellation agreement
in which the parties agreed to cancel the relevant profit guarantee.

On 12 January 2013, the resolutions for approving the Rituo Disposal
and the Rituo Acquisition were passed by the independent Shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

Details of the Rituo Disposal and the Rituo Acquisition have been set
out in the announcements dated 20 November 2012, 11 December
2012, 19 December 2012 and 12 January 2013 and the circular dated 24
December 2012 published by the Company.
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DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
THE ACQUISITION OF WEIHAI JINYUAN

On 22 March 2013, Weihai Electronic entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with 1t 7 87 )R 8% £ 5 Hb 2 5 2 B BR 2 7] (Beijing Jinyuan
Mingye Property Development Co., Ltd.*, "Beijing Jinyuan”), an
independent third party, and Mr. Miao Junjie (& & £¢) (“Mr. Miao"), an
independent third party, pursuant to which Weihai Electronic agreed to
acquire, in aggregate, the entire equity interest in B &SRR 3 B it &
I EBR 2 7] (Weihai Jinyuan Mingye Property Development Co., Ltd.*,
“Weihai Jinyuan”) at the consideration of RMB6.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$7.2 million) (the “Weihai Jinyuan Acquisition”).

Weihai Jinyuan is a company established in the PRC with limited liability
by Beijing Jinyuan and Mr. Miao on 16 July 2012. As at 22 March 2013,
Weihai Jinyuan had a registered capital of RMB30.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$36.0 million), among which RMB6.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.2 million) had been paid up by Beijing
Jinyuan. The equity interest of Weihai Jinyuan is owned as to 90% by
Beijing Jinyuan and as to 10% by Mr. Miao. Weihai Jinyuan is principally
engaged in the business activities in property development, sale of
commercial housing, property services, estate information consultation,
sale of construction materials, electronic hardware, instrument and
apparatus, computer software, hardware and peripheral.

The Group expects to develop a large scale macromolecule research
and development centre in Weihai in the near future. In order to attract
and retain relevant talents, the Board intends that the Weihai Jinyuan
Acquisition may allow the Group to provide dormitory and/or residential
housing for its staffs at a lower cost, and offer additional incentives and
benefit to its staffs.

The Weihai Jinyuan Acquisition, when aggregated with the directional
property development cooperation agreement dated 16 August 2012
entered into between Weihai Electronic and Weihai Jinyuan, constitutes
a discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules, and is therefore subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the Weihai Jinyuan Acquisition have been set out in the
announcement dated 22 March 2013 published by the Company.

*  English names are for identification purposes only
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VERY SUBSTANTIAL DISPOSAL AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
THE DISPOSAL OF SUMPTUOUS WEALTH

On 9 June 2013, the Company entered into the S&P Agreement of
Sumptuous Wealth with Jia Ya and Mr. Chi in relation to the Sumptuous
Wealth Disposal.

Pursuant to the S&P Agreement of Sumptuous Wealth (as
supplemented and amended by supplemental deeds entered into
among the Company, Jia Ya and Mr. Chi dated 24 June 2013 and 26
November 2013, respectively), the Company conditionally agreed to
dispose of and Jia Ya conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued
share capital of Sumptuous Wealth from the Company at the
consideration of HK$779 million (the “Consideration”), subject to
adjustments equivalent to the relevant value difference and the relevant
revaluation surplus, provided that the final Consideration shall not
exceed HK$780 million and shall not be less than HK$580 million. The
Consideration shall be satisfied by Jia Ya by way of procuring Mr. Chi (as
holder of the Promissory Note issued by the Company to Mr. Chi on 31
January 2013 to satisfy the consideration for the Rosy Sun Acquisition)
setting off an amount equivalent to the Consideration outstanding
under the Promissory Note upon completion of the Sumptuous Wealth
Disposal. The Consideration was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations between the Company and Jia Ya to the S&P Agreement of
Sumptuous Wealth further agreed that: (i) where the outstanding
amount (including the principal and accrued interest (if any)) under the
Promissory Note as at the date of completion of the Sumptuous Wealth
Disposal is lower than the final Consideration, Jia Ya shall pay to the
Company in cash an amount equivalent to such difference upon
completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal; and (ii) where the
outstanding amount under the Promissory Note as at the date of
completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal is higher than the final
Consideration, the Company shall by way of prepayment pay to Mr. Chi
(the guarantor for Jia Ya and as holder of the Promissory Note) in cash
an amount equivalent to such difference upon completion of the
Sumptuous Wealth Disposal.
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VERY SUBSTANTIAL DISPOSAL AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
THE DISPOSAL OF SUMPTUOUS WEALTH (continued)
The Sumptuous Wealth Disposal and the transactions contemplated
under the S&P Agreement of Sumptuous Wealth constitutes a very
substantial disposal of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. Besides, as Mr. Chi is the controlling shareholder of the
Company, the chairman of the Company and an executive Director who
was at the relevant time interested in approximately 40.87% interests of
the Company, each of Mr. Chi and Jia Ya (being wholly-owned by Mr.
Chi) is a connected person of the Company, and, thus the Sumptuous
Wealth Disposal and the transactions contemplated under the S&P
Agreement of Sumptuous Wealth also constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company and is subject to the reporting,
announcement and the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Sumptuous Wealth Disposal was approved by the independent
Shareholders of the Company at the general meeting held on 16 July
2013.

On 26 November 2013, all conditions precedent under the S&P
Agreement of Sumptuous Wealth (as supplemented and amended)
have been fulfilled, and the completion took place on 26 November
2013, the final Consideration is fixed at HK$620,732,000 pursuant to the
terms of the S&P Agreement of Sumptuous Wealth (as supplemented
and amended). The final Consideration has been settled by Jia Ya by
procuring Mr. Chi setting off an amount equivalent to HK$650,000,000
under the Promissory Note, and the Company has, by way of
prepayment, procured Weihai Electronic setting off outstanding amount
owed by EJBLME T HBR A A (Dezhou Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd.*,
the “Dezhou Electronic”) of HK$29,268,000, being the amount equivalent
to the difference between the final Consideration and the outstanding
amount under the Promissory Note as at the date of completion of the
Sumptuous Wealth Disposal, upon completion.

Details of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal have been set out in the
announcements dated 9 June 2013, 24 June 2013, 16 July 2013 and 26
November 2013 and the circular dated 27 June 2013 published by the
company.

*  English name is for identification purposes only.
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DISPOSAL OF WEIHAI DONGCHEN

On 27 April 2012, the Board approved the establishment of B8R 2
BB AR AT (Weihai Dongchen Plastics New Materials Limited*,
“Weihai Dongchen”) by Weihai Electronic, Mr. Chi Zhongmin and Mr.
Zhang Fengji pursuant to the terms of the articles of Weihai Dongchen
in relation to the establishment of Weihai Dongchen (the “Articles”).
According to the Articles, Weihai Dongchen was owned by Weihai
Electronic as to 60%, Mr. Chi Zhongmin as to 30% and Mr. Zhang Fengji
as to 10% respectively.

The business scope of Weihai Dongchen was the manufacture and sale
of plastic materials and products used for cable jacketing, focusing on
the production of halogen-free insulating plastic materials at the time of
its establishment.

As Mr. Chi Zzhongmin is an associate of Mr. Chi, a controlling
Shareholder, the chairman of the Company and an executive Director,
Mr. Chi Zzhongmin is a connected person of the Company. Details of the
establishment of Weihai Dongchen have been set out in the
announcement dated 27 April 2012 published by the Company.

On 26 November 2013, Weihai Electronic entered into a S&P agreement
with Mr. Li Ming, an independent third party to the Company, pursuant
to which Weihai Electronic agreed to sell and Mr. Li Ming agreed to
purchase the 60% equity interest in Weihai Dongchen at the
consideration of RMB3.0 million.

On the same day, Mr. Chi Zhongmin entered into another S&P
agreement with Mr. Li Ming, pursuant to which Mr. Chi Zhongmin
agreed to sell and Mr. Li Ming agreed to purchase the 30% equity
interest in Weihai Dongchen at the consideration of RMB1.5 million.

The aforesaid considerations were determined with reference to the
net carrying value of Weihai Dongchen as at 31 October 2013. The
reason for disposal of the 60% equity interest by Weihai Electronic is to
cease the attribution of Weihai Dongchen to the Group in view of its
continuing loss due to tough industry environment it operates in.

Upon the completion of disposal of Weihai Dongchen, Weihai Dongchen
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and Mr. Chi Zhongmin has
ceased to be the shareholder and director of Weihai Dongchen. As
such, Weihai Dongchen is no longer a connected person of the
Company and the transaction between Weihai Dongchen and other
subsidiaries of the Company (please refer to the announcement
published by the Company on 30 November 2012 for details) ceased to
be continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

*  English name is for identification purposes only.
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DISPOSAL OF WEIHAI DONGCHEN (continued)

The disposal of Weihai Dongchen does not constitute a notifiable
transaction and a connected transaction subject to reporting,
announcement and/or shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14 or Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
THE DISPOSAL OF WUHAN ELECTRONIC

On 27 September 2013, the Company entered into a disposal agreement
with U&T Electronics (Hong Kong) Co., Limited ("U&T"). Pursuant to this
disposal agreement, the Company agreed to dispose of and U&T agreed
to purchase 25% equity interest in Wuhan Electronic at the
consideration of RMB1.25 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.56
million).

On the same day, Weihai Electronic, entered into another disposal
agreement with a2 %4255 7B R A 7] (Linyi Rongfa Electronic Co.,
Ltd.*, “Rongfa Electronic”). Pursuant to this disposal agreement, Weihai
Electronic agreed to dispose of and Rongfa Electronic agreed to
purchase 75% equity interest in Wuhan Electronic at the consideration
of RMB3.75 million (equivalent to approximately HK$4.69 million).

Wuhan Electronic is a company established in the PRC with limited
liability by the Company and Weihai Electronic on 11 October 2005.
Wuhan Electronic has a registered capital of US$1.00 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$7.80 million), all of the registered capital has been
paid up. The equity interest in Wuhan Electronic was owned as to 25%
by the Company and as to 75% by Weihai Electronic before the disposal
of Wuhan Electronic. As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in
the Listing Rules) in respect of the disposals, when aggregated, are
more than 5% but less than 25%, the disposals constitute a discloseable
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, and
is subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the disposal of Wuhan Electronic have been set out in the
announcement dated 27 September 2013 published by the Company.

*  English name is for identification purposes only.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Continuing Connected Transaction In Relation To The
Sales Master Agreement With Weihai Dongchen

On 30 November 2012, Weihai Dongchen, then an indirectly non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sales master
agreement (the “Sales Master Agreement”) with: (i) the Company; (ii)
Weihai Electronic; (iii) Changshu Honglin Wire & Cable Co., Ltd.; (iv)
Dezhou Electronic and (v) Huizhou Technology, all of the companies
referred to in items (i) to (v) were subsidiaries of the Company on the
date of such Sales Master Agreement, in relation to the sale of the
plastic materials for a term commencing from 30 November 2012 to 31
December 2012 and the two years commencing on 1 January 2013 and
expiring on 31 December 2014. The annual caps under the Sales Master
Agreement shall be RMB26.0 million for each of the period from 30
November 2012 to 31 December 2012, the year ended 31 December
2013 and the year ending 31 December 2014 respectively.

As at the date of the Sales Master Agreement, Weihai Dongchen was an
indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chi
Zhongmin (a brother of Mr. Chi, who is a controlling shareholder and a
Director of the Company) owned 30% of the equity interest in Weihai
Dongchen. Weihai Dongchen was a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The entering into of the Sales
Master Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder thus
constitute continuing connected transactions which were exempt from
the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement and were only
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. In view of the
above, the Directors (including independent non-executive directors)
are of the opinion that the terms of the Sales Master Agreement are on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of business of the
Company and the terms of such agreement are fair and reasonable and
in the interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Details of the Sales Master Agreement have been set out in the
announcements dated 30 November 2012 and 5 December 2012
published by the Company.

Pursuant to two S&P agreements dated 26 November 2013, the Group
and Mr. Chi Zhongmin disposed of all their respective interests in Weihai
Dongchen. After the completion of the aforesaid transactions, Weihai
Dongchen ceased to be a connected person of the Company and the
aforesaid transactions ceased to be continuing connected transactions
of the Company. Please also refer to the paragraph headed “Disposal of
Weihai Dongchen” above for further details in relation to the disposal.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Continuing Connected Transaction In Relation To The
Purchase Agreement With Rituo Automotive

On 12 January 2013, Rituo Technology, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the purchase agreement with Rituo Automotive
(the "Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which Rituo Technology has
agreed to purchase, and Rituo Automotive has agreed to sell imported
raw materials such as sheathing and terminals* (€% Fifm+) used for
wire harness assembly. The Purchase Agreement is valid for 12 months
from 12 January 2013 to 11 January 2014, and the annual cap for the
transactions contemplated thereunder is RMB18.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$21.6 million).

Rituo Automotive was a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
immediately before the Rituo Disposal and Wang Xiang was a director
of Rituo Automotive immediately before the Rituo Disposal, and within
the preceding 12 months from the entering into of the Purchase
Agreement, thus a connected person of the Company. Upon completion
of the Rituo Disposal on 12 January 2013, Rituo Automotive was owned
as to 86.5% by Wang Xiang, thus an associate of Wang Xiang. Therefore,
Rituo Automotive is considered as a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated
under the Purchase Agreement with the Company constitute continuing
connected transaction which are exempted from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirement and are only subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Purchase Agreement have been set out in the
announcement dated 12 January 2013 published by the Company.

*  English names are for identification purposes only.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Jia Ya Continuing Connected Transactions

In order to continue certain intragroup transactions between the Group
on one hand, and Jia Ya and its subsidiaries (including Sumptuous
Wealth, Abundant Wit Limited, Greatest Group Limited, Weihaishi
Hongbo Wire & Cable Technology Co., Ltd., Changshu Honglin Electronic
Co., Ltd., Honglin Technology Co., Ltd. (“Honglin Technology”), Huizhou
Honglin Technology Co., Ltd., Chongging Honglin Technology Co., Ltd.,
Shenzhen Honglin Communication Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Communication”), Dezhou Electronic, Changshu Honglin Connecting-
Technology Co., Ltd., Chenhong International Limited, Hongxin
International Limited and Changshu Honglin Wire & Cable Co., Ltd.)) (the
“Jia Ya Group”) after the completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal
on the other hand, on 29 October 2013 (after trading hours), certain
members of the Group (including Weihaishi Mingbo Wire & Cable
Technology Co., Ltd., Weihai Electronic, Weihai Dongchen, Weihai
Jinyuan, Wuhan Technology, Dezhou Jincheng Electric Co., Ltd. (“Dezhou
Jincheng”), Rituo Technology, Huizhou Honglin Communication
Technology Co., Ltd. and the PRC Company) (the “HL Group”) entered
into the following agreements (the “CCT Agreements”) (the “Jia Ya
Continuing Connected Transactions”):

(i) the master sale agreement, pursuant to which HL Group will sell
cable, power cord and relevant components to Jia Ya Group;

(i) the master purchase agreement, pursuant to which HL Group will
purchase external and internal signal cable assembly from Jia Ya
Group;

(i) the cross guarantee agreement, pursuant to which HL Group and
Jia Ya Group will provide reciprocal guarantee on banking facilities
of each other,

(iv) the commission agreement, pursuant to which Honglin
Technology will act as an agent for trading certain products of
Weihai Electronic in Taiwan; and

(v) the tenancy and utility services agreement, pursuant to which
Dezhou Electronic will lease the property and provide relevant
utility services to Dezhou Jincheng.

All the above CCT Agreements will be valid for the period commencing
from the date of relevant CCT Agreement or the date on which all
conditions precedent to the relevant CCT Agreement having been
fulfilled (whichever is later) to 31 December 2014.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Jia Ya Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The following table sets out the annual caps of the lJia Ya Continuing
Connected Transactions for each of the two financial years ending 31
December 2013 and 2014 under their corresponding CCT Agreements:

BEBEXRS #)

EHRFEBRERS (&)
TRENEEZE—=FR=_FT—NF+=A
“+—HIMEGTREESF  SHEBRER
FHHETHERSEFEISHTE LR

For the financial year
ending 31 December
BE+-A=t+—-HL

BREE
2013 2014
—E-=F —T—F
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AE%¥Fx) (AR®EFTIT)

A. Sales of cable, power cord and relevant A HEEE BREMEBEZHT 155,000 290,000
components to Jia Ya Group EHREE (800) (900)
(relevant fee for using a supplier code (E A EFEE R 5
of Jia Ya Group) TEEEE )

B. Supply of finished external and internal B. EMEBEHEINERANEERE 102,000 202,000
signal cable assembly by Jia Ya Group BRI & (1,020) (2,020)
(relevant fee for using a supplier code (12 )5 M 55 (B (1 P g i
of HL Group) 1A EfE)

C. Reciprocally guarantee on banking facilites ~ C. #R{TREMEE &R

C.1 (a) Guarantee provided by HL Group to C.1(a) ALMEERE S BIRERER 415,000 475,000
Jia Ya Group (excluding exempted (B R EEBBRIN)
financial assistance)
(b) Guarantee fee charged by HL Group (b) BAMER BEWEERE 9,960 11,400
C.2 (a) Guarantee provided by Jia Ya Group to C2 () EHESERALMEEREER 736,000 856,000
HL Group (excluding exempted (B R EBIRRIN)
financial assistance)
(b) Guarantee fee charged by Jia Ya Group (b) EREEERMHERE 14,132 16,436

D. Provision of trading services to D. MEEETREEZRH 2,200 2,200
Weihai Electronic

E. Lease of the property and the provision of E. MEHEERREMEAAARSET 2,215 3,938

relevant utility services to Dezhou Jincheng =N
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Jia Ya Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Jia Ya is wholly-owned by Mr. Chi, the controlling shareholder, the
chairman, the CEO of the Company and an executive Director who was
at the relevant time interested in approximately 40.87% interests of the
Company. Following the completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal,
Mr. Chi and Jia Ya will, directly or indirectly, wholly own each of the
other members of Jia Ya Group (or for Shenzhen Communication, own
as to 80%). Accordingly, Mr. Chi and each member of Jia Ya Group are
considered to be connected persons of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules upon the completion of the Sumptuous Wealth
Disposal. The entering into the CCT Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon the
completion of the Sumptuous Wealth Disposal.

The non-exempted Jia Ya Continuing Connected Transactions (i.e. Jia Ya
Continuing Connected Transactions under CCT Agreements (i), (i) and
(i) above are subject to reporting, announcement, annual review and
approval by the independent Shareholders requirements under Rule
14A.35 of the Listing Rules as the respective applicable percentage
ratios under the Listing Rules exceeds 5% and the corresponding
proposed caps exceed HK$10 million.

The exempted Jia Ya Continuing Connected Transactions (i.e. Jia Ya
Continuing Connected Transactions under CCT Agreements (iv) and (v)
above) are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but are exempt from independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules as the respective
applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules are less than 25%
and the corresponding proposed caps are less than HK$10 million.

A general meeting was held on 26 November 2013 and all non-
exempted Jia Ya Continuing Connected Transactions have been
approved by the independent Shareholders.

Details of the Jia Ya Continuing Connected Transactions have been set
out in the announcements dated 29 October 2013 and 26 November
2013, and the circular dated 8 November 2013 published by the
company.

CHARGES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Other than the secured bank borrowings mentioned above and the
contingent liabilities disclosed in the note 37 to the financial statement,
as at 31 December 2013, the Group had no other charges on its assets
nor other material contingent liabilities.

BRI i B 23 B

BEBRERS #®)

ERSHEBER S (4)

ERHRARRTERER - £/F - TR
TEFELEZEHEE  WNEREHEEAR AR
RAEHIA0.87% 2 - RERFWEER B
FERERBEXXEZ2ERAERER
SEEAMK B AR (FFURYIBARME - #H 0%
) o At RERFWMEER - RIBLETR
AIEVUAE  BREARERSESHKE QAR
BRARAEEAL REREHERER R
BLEMRRNE UAE  FTURERER S HH
RBHRETZRS  BERARBZFHER

Rix AR RIS 14A35 16 - JERR RAETERF B A
BR5 (B LR ERE R SR T ERER
BRERZSHE0) ()R (iIE) - BETAH -
NE S FERNBYRRMEZRE B
EMRAITHEBZERE D L XREBE5% %18
FEEV R LIRITEBIB1 TEBT -

RIE LR RIS 14A34 16k - BB EHITEH
BER S (A EXFHEMERZ S WHHE T EH
BRAEXSEMEVIEA) AEBTHE 1E
RERR ZHTE - ARG B B
HEZRE - AR LEMRATHEEERB D
RIGEN25%  MEEzEZZE LRGN
BB -

BERAGR _T—=F+— A=+ ART
MAB R ERFERERI SO RBLRR
R

ERAERSERELISG ZFE HRA27R
R ZF+A-tNBER-ZT—=F1+—A7
THARBHBEZALE  URARBR-ZT—=
F+—ANBFIEZBHA o

BERRIREE

% ERE IR IRITE R R B RR M 537 KB
THRABEN RZE-=F+ZA=+—
B AEE S AR SRR MEARA
& -




EX HL Technology Group Limited e

SR EE R A A

Management Discussion & Analysis

BRI kB 23 B

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO THE
DISPOSAL OF WUHAN TECHNOLOGY AFTER THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

On 10 January 2014, Weihai Electronic, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a disposal agreement with,
among others, E 2T ¥ R M & EHER A E (Wuhan Yaguang
Xinmin Fire Prevention Decoration Materials Co., Ltd.*, the “Wuhan
Yaguang Xinmin"”). Pursuant to this disposal agreement, Weihai
Electronic agreed to dispose of and Wuhan Yaguang Xinmin agreed to
purchase a 10% equity interest in Wuhan Technology at the
consideration of RMB5,201,729.34 (equivalent to approximately HK$6.2
million). In this disposal agreement, 4t & &R F AR A 7
(Hubei Kangpusi Medical Technology Co., Ltd.*, the "Hubei Kangpusi”)
served as the guarantor to Wuhan Yaguang Xinmin.

On the same day, Weihai Electronic entered into another disposal
agreement with, among others, Hubei Kangpusi. Pursuant to this
disposal agreement, Weihai Electronic agreed to dispose of and Hubei
Kangpusi agreed to purchase a 90% equity interest in Wuhan
Technology at the consideration of RMB46,815,564.09 (equivalent to
approximately HK$56.2 million). In this disposal agreement, Wuhan
Yaguang Xinmin served as the guarantor to Hubei Kangpusi.

Wuhan Technology is a company established in the PRC with limited
liability by the Weihai Electronic on 24 February 2011. As at 10 January
2014, Wuhan Technology has a registered capital of RMB49,262,400
(equivalent to approximately HK$59.1 million), all of the registered
capital has been paid up by 10 January 2014. Wuhan Technology is
authorised to engage in, among others, development, manufacture and
sale of cable, signal wire and cable, power cord, automotive wiring
harness and electronic components according to its business licence.
However, it had not commenced any substantive business operation,
and had not gained any revenue since its establishment in 2011 up to
the date of the disposal agreements.

The disposal of Wuhan Technology will allow the Group to realise its
investment in the loss making business to concentrate its superior
resources and cease to provide financial support to the loss making
business of Wuhan Technology.

Details of the disposal of Wuhan Technology have been set out in the
announcement dated 10 January 2014 published by the Company.

*English names are for identification purposes only.
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PLACING OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 8 April 2014, Chenlin International Joint Stock Company Limited
(“Chenlin International”, a company whose entire issued share capital is
owned by Mr. Chi), a controlling shareholder, informed the Board that it
entered into a placing agreement on 8 April 2014 with Astrum Capital
Management Limited (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant to which Chenlin
International agreed to sell, and the Placing Agent agreed to, on a best
effort basis, procure not less than six placees, each of whom shall be
independent of and not connected with the Company or any of its
connected persons, to acquire a maximum of 197,283,839 shares in the
issued share capital of the Company at the placing price of HK$0.82 per
share (the “Placing”). The Placing was completed on 14 April 2014, and
107,283,000 shares (representing approximately 14.90% of the issued
share capital of the Company) had been placed. Chenlin International is
interested in 187,000,839 shares (representing approximately 25.97% of
the issued share capital of the Company) after the completion of the
Placing.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Executive Directors

Mr. Chi Shaolin G2 #) (“Mr. Chi"), aged 42, is the chairman of the
board, executive Director and CEO of the Company, and is in charge of
overall strategic planning, business planning and responsible for decision
making in all material matters of the Group. Mr. Chi was appointed as
Director on 16 November 2007.

Mr. Chi joined the Group in November 1997 and is a founder of the Group.
Mr. Chi is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chi is
also the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Chi has over 18 years of experience in the electronics industry gained
in the Group and in his previous employment. He is a Chinese national and
has not been a full time government official nor a full time employee of a
state-owned/operated entity. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chi worked as
the production manager of Shengshan Electronics (Weihai) Company
Limited (f5 1L E F (L&) BBR A 7)) from March 1995 to October 1997.

Mr. Chi was a representative to the 11th Session of Weihai Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Committee and has
been awarded many awards or recognisations by the government of
Weihai City, Shandong Province, China Commerce Association (7 B0 & %
&) and certain other organisations, including “Outstanding Young
Entrepreneur of Weihai City” (B8 T EF S F R ER), “Self-innovation
Award for the Most Influential Person of Weihai City for the Economic Year”
(B ERAFENKCEFE A A £ AIF148), "Award for Entrepreneur
Operating a Key Enterprise in the Weihai Economic and Technology
Development Area” (Bi/& 48R fiTF 3@ & 8 L= E 812 5), and
“Model for the Labor of Weihai Economic and Technology Development
Zone” (BB 4B R iy fl 2 (= 25 848 #6) during the period of April 2008 to
May 2010. In 2010, Mr. Chi was also awarded the “"Outstanding
Entrepreneurs of Shandong Province (the 18th Series)” (S5+/\EILER&E
FEER).

*  English name is for identification purposes only.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Cheng Wen (f2X) (“Mr. Cheng"), aged 46, is an executive Director
and vice CEO of the Company. Mr. Cheng is in charge of overall financial
management, investing management, risk controls and internal controls of
the Group. He joined Rosy Sun (together with its subsidiaries, the “Rosy Sun
Group”) in March 2012. Mr. Cheng is a director of each of Rosy Sun and its
subsidiary, the HK Company, the CEO of Rosy Sun Group and was
appointed as the general manager of the HK Company in November 2013.
Rosy Sun Group has become part of the Group following completion of
Rosy Sun Acquisition by the Group on 31 January 2013. Mr. Cheng was
appointed as Director and vice CEO of the Company on 16 November 2013.

Mr. Cheng graduated in Fuzhou University ({81 KX22) in June 1989 with
a bachelor degree of engineering management. He obtained a doctor
degree in corporate management in June 2004 in Sun Yat-Sen University
(FILIKRE).

Mr. Cheng has over 20 years of experiences in corporate management.
Throughout his career, he worked in, among others, China Construction
Bank (Shenzhen Branch), China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd., Bank of
China (Shenzhen Branch). Mr. Cheng was the financial controller of
Shenzhen Languang Electronic Group Co., Ltd. CRYIE B FEBMARA
a]) from July 2004 to October 2005, principally responsible for financial
management, fund raising and assets management. He joined Shenzhen
Zowee Technology Co., Ltd. in October 2007, and had acted as the financial
controller, vice general manager and a director until June 2010, responsible
for the company's financial management, fund raising and the initial public
offer of the company. In May 2011, Mr. Cheng found Shenzhen JianYin
NanShan Capital Investment Corporation (Limited Partnership) (& 31l 32 £8
HILAIZEEESEBLE(BRAER)) which is principally engaged in
venture capital investment in the field of high-new technology.

Mr. Lu Chengye (B%XZ) (“Mr. Lu”), aged 36, is an executive Director,
vice CEO and a member of the compensation and benefits committee of
the Company. Mr Lu is in charge of the overall strategic planning, business
planning and decision making in all material matters of networks segment
and terminal segment. Mr. Lu joined the PRC Company as a general
manager in May 2012. Mr. Lu was appointed as Director on 29 May 2013
and was promoted as vice CEO of the Company on 15 November 2013.

*  English name is for identification purposes only.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lu has over 13 years of experience in the communication industry
gained in the Group and in his previous employment. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Lu worked as a director of the science and research department
of base station software development in a renowned mobile
communication equipment company in the PRC from April 2002 to August
2008, mainly responsible for the design, development and implementation
of solution of communication base station software. From August 2009 to
May 2012, Mr. Lu had served as the general manager of TD-SCOMA/TD-LTE
production line of another prestigious communication equipment and
technology firm, mainly in charge of the establishment and research and
development works for projects of wireless base station and
communication base station equipments. Mr. Lu obtained his master
degree of engineering from Xidian University (7% & ¥ Fl 5 A ) majoring
in information and communication engineering in March 2002. As an expert
from TD-LTE workgroup of the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the People’s Republic of China (FFZE A R HEANE T M= 8
{bEB), Mr. Lu is the inventor of 7 patented technologies in the
communication sector over the last 13 years, and has published several
research papers on communication topics in various journals.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Thomas Tam (“Mr. Tam”) (formerly known as Tam Kwok Hing (7
BlfE)), aged 66, is an independent non-executive Director. He is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company, and a member of each
of the nomination committee and the compensation and benefits
committee of the Company. Mr. Tam was appointed as Director on 29
May 2013.

Mr. Tam is as a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (then known as the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants) and was admitted in 1995.

Mr. Tam was founder of Tam Kwok Hing & Co., Certified Accountants
(now under the name Wongs & Tam, Certified Public Accountants), a
certified public accountants firm in Hong Kong set up in 1972 and he is
now a consultant of Wongs & Tam. Mr. Tam was admitted as an associate
of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in 1972 and a
fellow member in 1980. He was also enrolled to practice before the
Internal Revenue Service of the United States of America since 1994. Mr.
Tam is currently an independent non-executive director of Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
code: 8076).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Pao Ping Wing (E1R%%) (“Mr. Pao”), aged 66, is an independent
non-executive Director, a member of each of the audit committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Pao was appointed as
Director on 29 May 2013.

Mr. Pao obtained a master of science degree in human settlements
planning and development from Asian Institute of Technology in April
1980. He had been actively serving on government committees and
statutory bodies, including those relating to town planning, urban
renewal, public housing and environment matters over 20 years. He was
elected as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in
1982 and one of the Ten Qutstanding Young Persons of the World in
1983. He has been appointed as a Non-official Justice of the Peace for
Hong Kong in 1987.

From 1987, Mr. Pao has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of various companies listed on the Stock Exchange and
has extensive experiences in corporate governance. In particular, Mr. Pao
has also been an independent non-executive director of Oriental Press
Group Limited (Stock code: 18) since July 1987, UDL Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 620) since August 1997, Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited
(Stock code: 8076) since December 2003, Zhuzhou CSR Times Electric
Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 3898) since September 2005, New Environmental
Energy Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3989) since June 2006, Maoye
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 848) since August 2007 and
Soundwill Holdings Limited (Stock code: 878) since November 2009, all of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Zheng Lin (ZR#f) (“Ms. Zheng"), aged 43, is an independent non-
executive Director. Ms. Zheng is also the chairman of the compensation
and benefits committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company.

Ms. Zheng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
25 October 2010. Ms. Zheng is a practicing PRC lawyer and has been
working with Shandong Tai Xiang Law Firm (L3 Z= 22 B E75FT) since
June 2013. Prior to that, she worked at the Welfare Electronics Company
located in the Economic and Technical Development Zone of Weihai City
in Shandong Province from October 1992 to May 1995, the Weihai Airlines
Services Company Limited from June 1995 to June 2001, the Shandong
Ying Liang Tai Ye Law Firm from August 2004 to March 2008 and Beijing
Huatang Law Firm from April 2008 to June 2013. She graduated from
Shandong University in July 2004 after completing the online program in
law and is qualified to practice law in the PRC having passed the Chinese
national judicial examination in 2004. Ms. Zheng passed the National
Securities Qualifications Examination (BIZR & #£ &€ in 2006 and
is also qualified to serve as an independent non-executive director of
companies listed in the PRC.

Ms. Zheng is @ member of China zZhi Gong Party (FBIZLAE) and a
member of Weihai Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Committee. She has provided legal services to
various government departments, listed companies, state-owned
enterprises and other entities, including Shandong Zhengda Medical
Equipment Shares Co., Ltd. (LB IEREZEEMAR N BFRAF), Shandong
Liangiao New Materials Shares Co., Ltd. (IJ.I RESEITM RGO BR A

Shandong Shuanglun Group Co., Ltd. (LI ER &z EE A =), YantaiWanhua

Polyurethanes Co., Ltd., (BEE=&ERRER AR A7) and Dongfang
Electronics Co., Ltd. (R7TEF D BR A 7).

Details of the Directors’ interest in the Shares and underlying Shares
which fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO") are set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” in this annual report.

* English name is for identification purpose only.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
Senior Management

Mr. Li Jianming (Z#£8) (“Mr. Li"), aged 41, is the vice CEO of the
Company. Mr. Li is in charge of overall strategic planning, business
planning and decision making in all material matters of the automotive
wiring harness department of the Group. Mr. Li joined the Group in May
2005 as the chief financial officer of the Company and was appointed as
a Director on 16 March 2010 and vice CEO of the Company on 1 July
2011. Mr. Li was appointed to lead the automotive wiring harness
department of the Group in January 2012. Mr. Li has resigned as an
executive Director on 15 November 2013 in order to devote more time
on his other work and the business operations of the Group as vice
CEO.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was the chief accountant of the PRC
office of The Timken Company, one of the Fortune 500 Companies, for
financial management matters from July 1994 to June 2001. Mr. Li was
the chief financial officer of Qingdao Jinling Electrical Appliances Co.,
Lid. (54 2=FREAR A F), a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise,
from June 2001 to May 2004, responsible for its financial management,
financial process optimization, internal supervision and control and
other related matters, and was the head of Technology of Qingdao
Branch of Zhuhai Master Service Software Technology Co., Ltd. (28X
BEFHITER A RS &5 A1) from May 2004 to May 2005 in charge
of promoting and implementing the development of information system.

Mr. Li graduated from Shandong Economic University with a bachelor
degree in accounting in 1994. He is a senior accountant (&= 4% & 1)
and obtained the ICPA certificate in April 2009 and the SIFM certificate
in June 2010. Senior accountant qualification (S &:tEIE %) is the
highest accounting qualification awarded by such PRC government
bodies, namely, the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security
(NHE R &REER) and the Ministry of Finance (B4 E38), based on
the academic level, practical capability and working experience of the
relevant accounting professionals. He has extensive experience in
enterprise finance, financial management, enterprise taxation planning
and Enterprise Resource Planning information management and
published various articles in journals from 2007 to 2012 in respect of
financial management.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Chen Jing (FR&) (“Ms. Chen"), aged 36, is the chief investment
executive of the Company, responsible for investment management of
the Group, including formulation of investment plan and due diligence
on new investment projects of the Group. Ms. Chen has over 10 years
of experience in accounts management gained in our Group and in her
previous employment. Before joining the Group in April 2010, Ms. Chen
worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. from August 2003 to
March 2010 and was the assistant auditing manager from July 2008 to
March 2010. She has extensive experience in financial management.
She graduated from Dalian University of Technology with a bachelor
degree in economics and a master degree in accounting in 2000 and
2003, respectively.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting herewith their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is 33rd Floor,
Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group was principally
engaged in the designs, develops, manufacturers and provision of
signal transmission and connectivity products.

CORPORATE REORGANIZATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 November
2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to a group reorganisation to rationalise
the structure of the Group in preparation for the public listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing”), the Company became the holding company of the companies
then comprising the Group on 30 January 2008.

Details of the corporate reorganisation are set out in the section headed
"History, Reorganization and Group Structure” and in Appendix VI
“Statutory and General Information” to the Prospectus for the Listing.
The shares of the Company have been listed on the Stock Exchange
since 16 November 2010.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Directors considered that the declaration, payment and amount of
the dividend shall be subject to the status of the Group’s future
development. The Board does not recommend any final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil) and will consider to
formulate a dividend policy at an appropriate time in the future.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2013 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
statement of changes in equity”.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB557.8 million as at 31 December 2013. Such amount
includes the Company’s share premium and capital reserve account of
approximately RMB536.2 million and retained profits approximately
RMB21.6 million in aggregate as at 31 December 2013.

CLOSURE OF TRANSFER BOOKS AND REGISTER
OF MEMBERS

The transfer books and register of members of the Company will be
closed from 22 May 2014 (Thursday) to 29 May 2014 (Thursday) (both
dates inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the annual
general meeting of the Company, all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 May 2014 (Wednesday).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s top five largest customers comprised
approximately 38.6% (2012: 36.8%) of the Group's total sales and the
sales attributable to the Group's largest customer were approximately
12.9% of the Group’s total sales. The aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group's top five largest suppliers comprised approximately 45.4%
(2012: 37.1%) of the Group's total purchases for the year and the
purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier were
approximately 15.5% of the Group'’s total purchases for the year.

So far as is known to the Directors, none of the Directors, their
associates or any Shareholders owning more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the
top five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 83, 84, 85,
86 and 92 of this report.

OPERATING RESULTS
The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 83.

The Group's loss attributable to owners of the parent for the year ended
31 December 2013 was approximately RMB177.5 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
include:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chi Shaolin (Chairman and CEO)
Mr. Cheng Wen (Vice CEO)
(appointed on 16 November 2013)
Mr. Lu Chengye (Vice CEQ)
(appointed on 29 May 2013)
Mr. Jiang Taike (resigned on 15 November 2013)
Mr. Li Jianming (resigned on 15 November 2013)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Xu Yiming (retired on 29 May 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Thomas Tam (appointed on 29 May 2013)

Mr. Pao Ping Wing (appointed on 29 May 2013)

Ms. Zheng Lin

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (retired on 29 May 2013)
Mr. Song Lizhong (retired on 29 May 2013)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles of Association”), as Mr. Cheng was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 16 November 2013, Mr. Cheng will
hold office as a Director until the annual general meeting of the
Company which will be held on 29 May 2014 (“AGM") and subject to
re-election.

Pursuant to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. Mr. Lu (executive Director) and Ms. Zheng
(independent non-executive Director) will retire by rotation at the
conclusion of the AGM and be eligible to offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

Mr. Cheng (executive Director), Mr. Lu (executive Director) and Ms.
Zheng (independent non-executive Director) will offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The compensation and benefits committee of the Company considers
and recommends to the Board the remuneration and other benefits
paid by the Company to the Directors. The remuneration of all Directors
is subject to regular monitoring by the compensation and benefits
committee of the Company to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate. Details of Directors'
remuneration are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
Statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013 falls within the following bands:

)

Remuneration

HK$500,000 or below 500,000 & 7L A T
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 48 to 54 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO) or
which were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as follows:
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Mr. Chi Shaolin® Interest of controlled corporation 294,283,839 (L) 40.87%
BAOMEED S LE R

(L): Long position Ln: H&

Note 1: As at 31 December 2013, Mr. Chi Shaolin was deemed to be interested in
294,283,839 Shares held by Chenlin International Joint Stock Company Limited by
virtue of it being wholly-owned by Mr. Chi Shaolin.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which had been recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which had been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their spouses and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interest or short positions in the shares, or underlying
shares, or debentures, of the Company or its associated corporations
(with the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 25 October 2010 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

Eligible participants include the Directors, any employee (whether full-
time or part-time) or shareholder, and any customer, supplier, agent,
business or joint venture business partner, consultant, distributor,
promoter, service provider, adviser or contractor to any member of the
Group.

The maximum number of Share which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issued as at the Listing Date, i.e. 72,000,000 Shares. No option may
be granted to any participant of the Share Option Scheme such that the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month
period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company's
issued share capital from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the Board
and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay
the Company HK$1.00 upon acceptance of the grant on the offer date.
The exercise price of the options is determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and shall not be less than which ever is the highest
of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of the grant, which must be a
business day;,

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five (5) trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and

()  the nominal value of a Share.
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from 15 November 2010 after which no further options will be

granted or offered.

There is no options outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled and
lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the Company,
as at 31 December 2013, the persons or corporations (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interest or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Name of Substantial Shareholders Capacity
TERRHEE BB

Chenlin International Joint Stock Beneficial owner®

Company Limited
BB D B R A F] EmEAAD

FERRRRG R ARG RS
15879

HRARBEAEFTREHTRARBRM - R=
T—=F+-A=+—H BREAQEKMH EE
Mk hEERARIARMAREES NPT
EPIFEXVEBE 2R3N R IR FIARE - B
SN IREE R ERPIEIBIREFELZ
Bt ALIEAE(RAREFAHZRSTH
ABBRSN I -

Percentage of
the issued
share capital of
the Company
HAERT BT
RAEBFDL

Number of
issued ordinary
shares held
B 81T
EBER#E

294,283,839 (L) 40.87%

(L):  Long position
Note:

Q] Chenlin International Joint Stock Company Limited held 40.87% interest in the
Company as at 31 December 2013, and its entire issued share capital is owned by
Mr. Chi. Mr. Chi serves as the sole director of Chenlin International Joint Stock
Company Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors are not
aware of any other person or corporation (other than Directors or chief
executives of the Company) having an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would require to
be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float required under the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling Shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries, at
any time during the year. No contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
Shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company of
his/her compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to the
Company under the Deed of Non-competition (as defined in the
Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under
the Deed of Non-competition have been complied with by the
controlling Shareholders.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group's business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to and including
the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
have issued a letter containing unqualified conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions as detailed in the section headed
“Management Discussion & Analysis” in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions, and confirmed that these
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group on normal commercial terms which are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the independent Shareholders of the
Company as a whole, and in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Save for the connected transactions in the section headed
“Management Discussion & Analysis”, all related party transactions
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements did not constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction of the
Company subject to, among other things, reporting, announcement or
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The related party transactions under the paragraph
headed “"Compensation of key management personnel” in note 41(d) to
the financial statements were exempted from reporting, announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.31(6) of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, cash and bank balances (excluding pledged
deposits) of the Group amounted to approximately RMB62.7 million
(2012: approximately RMB144.1 million). Details of such are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB625.2 million (2012:
approximately RMB1,065.8 million), among which approximately
RMB262.3 million was secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, trade and bill receivables, pledged deposit and prepaid land
lease payment. Details of such are set out in note 30 to the financial
Statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed 1,841 direct employees
(2012: 3,417). The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
determined on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme to provide incentive to
its senior management and employees. Please refer to the paragraphs
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report for details of such
scheme.

As at 31 December 2013, the total staff costs (including directors’ and
the executive’'s remuneration) amounted to approximately RMB291.6
million (2012: approximately RMB317.4 million). The Company maintains
a Share Option Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to the eligible participants for their contributions to the Group.
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Report of the Directors

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out in the financial highlight
section on pages 12 to 15 to this report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES
Particulars of employee retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 6 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Ccompany to offer new shares to existing Shareholders on a pro-rata
basis.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities for the year ended 31
December 2013.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will be held on Thursday, 29 May 2014 and the notice of the
AGM is included in a circular distributed to the Shareholders together
with this annual report.

AUDITORS
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was re-appointed as the auditors
of the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
29 May 2012. Deloitte retired as auditors upon expiration of its term of
office at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 May
2013. Ernst & Young was appointed as the auditors of the Company
with effect from 29 May 2013 following the passing of the resolution in
this relation by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
held on the the same date.
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Report of the Directors
oW

AUDITORS (continued)

Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Chi Shaolin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating the elements
of good corporate governance into the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability to the Shareholders as a whole. The Board strives to
uphold good corporate governance and adopt sound corporate
governance practices continuously in the interest of Shareholders to
enhance the overall performance of the Company. The principles and
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules have been adopted
and complied with by the Group throughout the year except for the
following deviation.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Group does not at present
separate the roles of the chairman and CEO. For the year ended 31
December 2013, Mr. Chi is both the chairman of the Board and the CEO
of the Group. The Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman
and CEO in the same individual is beneficial to the business prospects
and management of the Group. The Board will review the need of
appointing suitable candidate to assume the role of the CEO when
necessary.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. On specific enquiries made, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards as set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Corporate Governance Report

A E R AW

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprises three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
composition of the Board during the year ended 31 December 2013
was as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chi Shaolin (Chairman and CEO)
Mr. Cheng Wen (Vice CEO)
(appointed on 16 November 2013)
Mr. Lu Chengye (Vice CEQ)
(appointed on 29 May 2013)
Mr. Jiang Taike (resigned on 15 November 2013)
Mr. Li Jianming (Vice CEQ)
(resigned on 15 November 2013)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Xu Yiming (retired on 29 May 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Thomas Tam (appointed on 29 May 2013)

Mr. Pao Ping Wing (appointed on 29 May 2013)

Ms. Zheng Lin

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (retired on 29 May 2013)
Mr. Song Lizhong (retired on 29 May 2013)

The biographical details of all Directors are set out in pages 48 to 52 of
this annual report. Save as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of
the Company, there is no other financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. The Board brings a variety of experiences and expertise to the
Company.

Functions of the Board

The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Group, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters,
considering and approving overall development strategies, financial
objectives, annual budget, investment proposals, monitoring and
controlling the operation and financial performance, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group and to assume the
responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meetings and Board Practices

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board held 12 meetings,
among which, 4 meetings were regular Board meetings. The Directors
can attend meetings in person or through other means of electronic
communication in accordance with the Articles of Association. The
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) will
assist the Chairman to prepare the agenda of the meeting and all
Directors have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of regular Board meetings
are given to the Directors and Board procedures complied with the
Articles of Association, as well as relevant rules and regulations. The
Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to the matters
brought before the meetings. All Directors have separate and
independent access to the senior management and the Company
Secretary at all time and will be able to seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are
observed and providing the Board with opinions on matters in relation
to the compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings. All
minutes of Board meetings were recorded in sufficient details of the
matters considered by the Board and the decisions reached.

The number of the Board meetings held and the attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings for the year ended 31 December 2013
have been set out as follows:
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No. of Board meetings held: ERlEES = Y8

Name of the Director EENS (Note 2)(Hfizt2)
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chi Shaolin (Note 1) BOMEAE (BIFE) 8/12
Mr. Cheng Wen (appointed on 16 November 2013) BXEE(RZE—=F+— A+ SBEZT) 2/2
Mr. Lu Chengye (appointed on 29 May 2013) BREAE(R-_BE—=FRA -+ NBEZE) 9/9
Mr. Jiang Taike (resigned on 15 November 2013) BAREAE (RZE—=F+—A+AB&HT) 10/10
Mr. Li Jianming (resigned on 15 November 2013) FREALE (R -_E—=F+—A+HBET) 10/10
Non-executive Director FHITES

Ms. Xu Yiming (retired on 29 May 2013) BEHELT (N =FERA=-TNLBEME) 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Thomas Tam (appointed on 29 May 2013) HKEBAE(R_B—=ERA_TNLBEZE) 9/9
Mr. Pao Ping Wing (appointed on 29 May 2013) RS EE (R BE—=FERA -+ N BEZE) 9/9
Ms. Zheng Lin (Note 1) B £ (KisE1) 11712
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (retired on 29 May 2013)  &¥E®R &4 (R —=FF A=+ H AEF) 3/3
Mr. Song Lizhong (retired on 29 May 2013) REIRGEE(RZE—=FRAZTNBRE) 3/3

Mz BAOMELERMAHTRRELEIRNEETEGE
WAL AFIEPREUELE1VREEE R -

Note 1: Mr. Chi Shaolin abstained from 4 board meetings and Ms. Zhenglin abstained from

1 board meeting due to conflict of interest.

Note 2:  With reference to the number of board meetings held during his/her tenure. Mizt2 : SBETHANBRTZEETSEAYE -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

General Meetings

The number of general meetings held and the attendance of each
Director at the general meetings for the year ended 31 December 2013
have been set out as follows:
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No. of general meetings held: ERBRRASHIRE :

Name of the Director EEnS (Note 2)(Hfizt2)
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chi Shaolin (Note 1) BOMSE A (FEET) 3/3
Mr. Cheng Wen (appointed on 16 November 2013) BXhE(R_E—=Ft+— A+ AEZXT) 01
Mr. Lu Chengye (appointed on 29 May 2013) BREXE(RZE—=FRA=-TNLBEZE) 2/2
Mr. Jiang Taike (resigned on 15 November 2013) BAREE (R —=F+—A+HAET) 1/5
Mr. Li Jianming (resigned on 15 November 2013) TEALE(R_E—=F+—A+HEB&HT) 3/5
Non-executive Director FHTES

Ms. Xu Yiming (retired on 29 May 2013) BEHLT(RZT—=FRA=+ L BRE) 1/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES

Mr. Thomas Tam (appointed on 29 May 2013) HEBERE(RZE—=FRA -+ NBEZE) 172
Mr. Pao Ping Wing (appointed on 29 May 2013) BRREE(R_Z—=FRA-tHhBEZT) 1/2
Ms. Zheng Lin BT Z + 5/6
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (retired on 29 May 2013)  &ffERE4A(R—E—=FR A -+ AL BEMF) 3/3
Mr. Song Lizhong (retired on 29 May 2013) RUBHE(R-_E—Z=FEFA-+ABRE) 2/3

Note 1:  Mr. Chi Shaolin abstained from 3 general meetings due to conflict of interest.

Note 2:  With reference to the number of general meetings held during his/her tenure.

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Each of the executive and non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years and each
of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years, all are subject to
termination in accordance with the provisions of the service contract or
by either party giving the other not less than three months’ prior written
notice.

By virtue of article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy of the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal (Continued)
In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the applicable corporate
governance codes, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to the article 84(1)
of the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors have played a crucial role in the
Board by providing their independent judgment at the Board meeting
and scrutinizing the Group's performance. Their views carry significant
weight in the Board'’s decision, in particular, they bring an impartial view
to bear on issues of the Group's strategy, performance and control. All
independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The independent
non-executive Directors provide independent advice on the Group's
business strategy, results and management so that all interests of the
Shareholders will be taken into account, and the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders can be protected.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
Board consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
representing not less than one-third of the Board, among the three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Thomas Tam, possessing
appropriate professional qualification in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received the annual written confirmation of
independence from each of its independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on such
confirmations, considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Thomas Tam, Mr. Pao Ping Wing and Ms. Zheng
Lin, are independent and they all meet the specific independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Chairman and CEO

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the applicable corporate
governance codes, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Group does not at present separate the roles of the
chairman and CEO. For the year ended 31 December 2013, Mr. Chi is
both the chairman of the Board and the CEO of the Group. He has
extensive experience and in-depth knowledge in the electronics
industry and is responsible for the overall strategic planning, business
planning and decision making in all material matters in the Group. The
Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman and CEO in the same
individual is beneficial to the business prospects and management of
the Group. The balance of power and authorities is ensured by the
operation of the Board and the senior management, which comprise
experienced and high caliber individuals. Notwithstanding the above,
the Board will review the current structure from time to time. When at
the appropriate time and if a candidate with suitable leadership,
knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within or outside the
Group, the Company may make necessary arrangements.

Delegation of Powers

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, administration and management of the Group’s
businesses to the CEQ, the executive Directors, the senior management
and certain specific responsibilities to the Board committees of the
Company. When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to members of the management team, it gives
clear directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances where the management team needs to
report back and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.
The delegated functions and work tasks are regularly reviewed.

Continuous Professional Development

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and funding
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of the Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company had arranged to
provide to all Directors with the “Guidelines for Directors” and the
“Guide for Independent Non-executive Directors” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development (Continued)

The Company also updates the Directors and senior management on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. In
particular, training sessions covering topics including the CG Code and
the disclosure of inside information had been held during the year.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2013:

Name of Directors

Expgg

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chi Shaolin BAOMEE

Mr. Cheng Wen BXsE

Mr. Lu Chengye BRR ST
Independent non-executive Directors Bk HTEE
Mr. Thomas Tam HRBIEE So

Mr. Pao Ping Wing THIRER ST

Ms. Zheng Lin (57 S egnn

Liability Insurance for Directors

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on directors'’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken against
Directors arising out of corporate activities since 31 March 2013.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) an audit committee; (ii) a compensation
and benefits committee; and (iii) a nomination committee, with defined
terms of reference. The latest versions of the terms of reference of the
Board committees which explain their respective role and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice and other
assistance in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee

Composition

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
pursuant to a resolution of Directors passed on 25 October 2010 in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment and removal of external auditors, review
the financial statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting, and oversee the internal control procedures of the Company.
The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely, Mr. Thomas
Tam, Mr. Pao Ping Wing and Ms. Zheng Lin, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors as at the date of this report. Mr.
Thomas Tam currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee has adopted the terms of reference which are in
line with the applicable code provision in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2013, the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee held 3
meetings to make recommendation on the re-appointment of external
auditor, review financial statements, financial reporting system and
internal control procedures of the Company. And the attendance of
each Audit Committee member at the meetings for the year have been
set out as follows:

BEEZEg®)

ENESE
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BIE FARAIE321E - AATRR-_T—F
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BEER((ERZEEE)) - EREEENIE
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HEES ENUBREREHEVBRENE
BER UREZEAATMNBELZEF o R
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EHREE LS BRLLEREML T (=4
MEYABIENTES) MABELED
FMEIEREERTR EREESCRME
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BERZEBECENARERE_T—=F1+=
A=Zt—BLFENZFERE BE-_T—=
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No. of Audit Committee meetings held: ERMERZE SR E

Name of the Audit Committee members ERZEEREH R (Note) (P =)
Mr. Thomas Tam (appointed on 29 May 2013) HEBRLEE(R-_Z—=FRA-tHhBEZT) A
Mr. Pao Ping Wing (appointed on 29 May 2013) BREEE(R_E—=FRB -+ NLBEZE) 11
Ms. Zheng Lin 157 Segum 3/3
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (retired on 29 May 2013)  &ffER &4 (R—E—=FER A -+ AL BEMF) 2/2
Mr. Song Lizhong (retired on 29 May 2013) RIBEERZZE—=FRA=TNHEME) 2/2

Note: With reference to the number of meetings held during his/her tenure. Mk 2BBIRZEHEE -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Compensation and Benefits Committee

Composition

The Company established a compensation and benefits committee (the
"C&B Committee”) on 25 October 2010 with written terms of reference
which was revised on 22 March 2012. The primary duties of the C&B
Committee are to review and make recommendations to the Board on
the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors
and senior management of the Company. The compensation and
remuneration of all Directors and senior management of the Company
is subject to regular review by the C&B Committee to ensure that the
levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate and
none of the Directors determine their own remuneration. The C&B
committee consists of three members, namely, Ms. Zheng Lin, Mr.
Thomas Tam (both are independent non-executive Directors) and Mr.
Lu Chengye (an executive Director) as at the date of this report. Ms.
Zheng Lin currently serves as the chairman of the C&B Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the C&B Committee held 5
meetings to review and make recommendation on the remuneration
policy and structure relating to Directors and senior management of the
Company. And the attendance of each C&B Committee member at the
meetings for the year have been set out as follows:

A E R AW
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No. of C&B Committee meetings held:

EERFHRENZESSRNE

Name of C&B Committee members FHREFNZEGREHSR (Note 2)(PfzE2)
Mr. Lu Chengye (appointed on 29 May 2013) BREEE(R_E—=FRA-THLBEEFE) 3/3
Mr. Thomas Tam (appointed on 29 May 2013) HKEEEE(R—E—=FRA-tNBEZEF) 3/3
Ms. Zheng Lin (Note 1) Epsh A+ (5T 1) 4/5
Ms. Xu Yiming (retired on 29 May 2013) HEGLT(RZZE—=FRA=-TNLHREML) 2/2
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (retired on 29 May 2013)  &¥E&R &4 (R —=FF A=+ H BEF) 2/2

Note 1:  Ms. Zheng Lin abstained from 1 C&B Committee meeting due to conflict of interest.

Note 2:  With reference to the number of meetings held during his/her tenure.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior Management
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the C&B
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance, experience, responsibility, workload and time
devoted to the Company and comparable market statistics. Each of the
executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is reviewed
annually. In addition, each of the executive Directors may receive a
discretionary bonus as the Board may recommend. Such amount has to
be approved by the C&B Committee.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme on 25 October 2010.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

Nomination Committee

Composition

The Company established a nominating and corporate governance
committee on 25 October 2010 (which was renamed as Nomination
Committee on 22 March 2012, the “Nomination Committee”) with
written terms of reference which was revised on 22 March 2012. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis and to
recommend to the Board the suitable candidates for Directors after
consideration of the nominees’ independence and quality in order to
ensure fairness and transparency of all nominations. The Nomination
committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Chi Shaolin (an
executive Director), Mr. Thomas Tam and Mr. Pao Ping Wing (both are
independent non-executive Directors) as at the date of this report. Mr.
Chi Shaolin currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The Nomination Committee adopted the board diversity policy in August
2013. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination Committee
held 4 meetings to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board. And the attendance of each Nomination Committee member at
the meetings for the year have been set out as follows:

A E R AW

BEEZEg®)
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R ()
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No. of Nomination Committee meetings held: EAMREZEEERIRE:

Name of the Nomination Committee members REZESHEHRE (Note) (Bt 7E)
Mr. Chi Shaolin BEOMESE 4/4
Mr. Thomas Tam (appointed on 29 May 2013) HEEXE(RZE—=FRA =T NLBEZE) 2/2
Mr. Pao Ping Wing (appointed on 29 May 2013) BREEE(RZE—=FRA =T NLBEZE) 2/2
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (retired on 29 May 2013) SERLE(R-_ZE—=FRA -+ NLBEME) 2/2
Mr. Song Lizhong (retired on 29 May 2013) RUREERZT—=FRA=ZTNLBRME) 2/2

Note: With reference to the number of meetings held during his/her tenure.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company's corporate governance functions are carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board in compliance with code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which
include (a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board; (b)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group; (c)
to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to
review the Company’s compliance with the applicable corporate
governance codes and disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the finance
department, is responsible for the preparation of the Group's financial
statements for each financial year which shall give a true and fair view
of the financial position, performance and cash flows of the Group for
that year. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young,
on the financial statements are set out in the section headed
"Independent Auditors’ Report” in this annual report.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees paid or payable to
the Company’s external auditors in respect of their audit and non-audit
services were as follows:

M2
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HAEESEMBRFENM B RE - ZFWH
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AR -

RRBHINEIZEEN 22K G5t AI TR 5 3R K
ZEEENAFR B RBEIRE ] &6 -

SN BT &
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S NI BIRG O AN B AR R IMNE B
AhEOE ML T

RMB'000
Type of Services R 5l ARBTT
Non-audit services FERZ B R TS 2,362
Statutory audit services ETEAZEARTE 2,200
Total st 4,562

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the reliabilities
and effectiveness of the Group's internal control systems on, among
other things, financial, operational and compliance controls. The
Company has reviewed its internal control system covering all material
controls, including financial and operation for the year ended 31
December 2013. The said internal control review has been brought to
the attention of the Board and the Audit Committee and who concluded
that the Group operate satisfactorily and has fully complied with
provisions of the applicable corporate governance codes regarding
internal control systems in general for the year ended 31 December
2013.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged in a service contract with an external
service provider, Ms. Ho Wing Yan (“Ms. Ho"), who was appointed as
the Company Secretary. Mr. Chi, the chairman, executive Director and
CEO of the Company, is the primary corporate contact person of the
Company with Ms. Ho.

Being the Company Secretary, Ms. Ho plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that Board policy and procedures are followed. Ms. Ho is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters
and should also facilitate induction and professional development of
Directors.

Ms. Ho is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Ms. Ho continues to study professional course of corporate
governance and has extensive experience in the company secretarial
field for listed companies. Ms. Ho is also a holder of the Practitioner’s
Endorsement issued by The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Ho took
more than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year ended
31 December 2013.

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2013, there has been no significant
change in the Company's constitutional documents.

The Board recognise the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with Shareholders and investors of the
Company. The Board also recognise that effective communication with
investors is the key to establish investor confidence and to attract new
investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high
degree of transparency to ensure that the investors and the
Shareholders receiving accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely
information of the Group by the publication of annual reports, interim
reports, announcements and circulars. The Company also publishes all
corporate correspondence on the Company’'s website at
http://www.hong-lin.com.cn. The Board continues to maintain regular
dialogues with institutional investors and analysts from time to time to
keep them informed of the Group's strategy, operations, management
and plans. The Directors and the members of the Board committees
would attend and are available to answer questions at general meetings
of the Company. Separate resolutions would be proposed at general
meetings of the Company on each substantially separate issue.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS
(Continued)

Shareholders’ Rights

In accordance with the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in
good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
Therefore, all votes of the shareholders at general meetings shall be
taken by poll. The results of voting by poll will be declared at the
meeting and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

How Shareholders can convene an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholder holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary by
mail at 33rd Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may put forward their proposals or inquiries to the Board
by sending their written request to the Company’s correspondence
address in Hong Kong.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HL TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HL
Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 212, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HL TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2014
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AR AR AR

Year ended 31 December 2013
A E = A=+ —HIFFE

2013 2012
—E-=F T
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREET T
(Restated)
(& &7)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEREEB
REVENUE Wi 5 2,712,525 2,513,955
Cost of sales HEN A (2,354,482) (2,184,596)
Gross profit EF 358,043 329,359
Other income and gains H A A R i zs 5 21,083 41,105
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R ERX (110,871) (79,378)
Administrative expenses GG (154,813) (144,551)
Research and development expenses EspAS (92,673) (83,198)
Other expenses HApth A (24,890) (44,486)
Finance costs BE R A 7 (150,551) (61,645)
Share of loss of an associate FEfE—FE & R Rl 1E (270) =
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING BB ERRBIAT

OPERATIONS &8 6 (154,942) (42,794)
Income tax expense IS Ti b 10 (25,020) (7,151)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING HERCERBFE

OPERATIONS B8 (179,962) (49,945)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEREEK
Loss for the year from a discontinued BEAR HE & T

operation FEBE (249) =
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBSE (180,211) (49,945)
Attributable to: AT & 7R

Owners of the parent BAREEA 1 (177,510) (35,680)

Non-controlling interests eI E RS (2,701) (14,265)

(180,211) (49,945)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BARIEER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EEBEEA

THE PARENT EitERER 13

Basic N

— For loss for the year — FEER RMB24.65 cents RMB4.96 cents

— For loss from continuing operations —RERERBER RMB24.64 cents  RMB4.96 cents

Diluted BE

— For loss for the year — FEEE RMB24.65 cents  RMB4.96 cents

— For loss from continuing operations — EEREEEER RMB24.64 cents RMB4.96 cents

0
(0]



HEN HL Technology Group Limited e SRHT EEE AR A R

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December 2013
BE—F—=—Ff+_HA=+—HIFEF

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

B AR¥ET AREETIT
(RENE]E))
(&=751)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEE (180,211) (49,945)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Eth2mEukzs, ~ (&18)

Other comprehensive income/(10ss) 1R E g AR =50

to be reclassified to profit or loss DI ABEEREM

in subsequent periods: E2EE(BE) :
Exchange differences on translation of ~ #EINE 2L 2

foreign operations ERZER (246) 278
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FE2HER

THE YEAR bl (180,457) (49,667)
Attributable to: LATR & 77 FEAG -

Oowners of the parent BRRER A 11 (177,761) (35,402)

Non-controlling interests FEFE e (2,696) (14,265)

(180,457) (49,667)




Annual Report 2013 ¢ —Z— =4 F5f

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i B IR DLk

31 December 2013
RZF—=F+=A=1+—H

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
—E—=F el =
+=A=+—-H +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T
(Restated)
€ <=7p)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HE N RE 14 429,220 759,096
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT A E FIB 15 110,865 86,750
Goodwill EES 16 61,146 61,146
Other intangible assets HEhEREE 17 151,624 181,049
Available-for-sale investments Al EIRE 20 15,000 15,000
Deferred tax assets FEFRTBE = 21 3,274 6,349
Prepayments for acquiring property, WEEMZE - BE &
plant and equipment RAETEI 520 13,843
Prepayments for acquiring U B + Hb (5 FR
land use rights LN 22 10,087 76,251
Long-term trade receivables REVE 5 W FRIE 24 - 8,598
Total non-current assets IEMENE EBTE 781,736 1,208,082
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories FE 23 125,782 327,404
Trade and bills receivables Z 5 R EBEEBGK 24 1,201,430 1,353,534
Prepayments, deposits and other FEMFRIE - ZE Rk
receivables H fth fE U IR 25 230,189 308,593
Derivative financial instruments TESHMIEA = 156
Pledged deposits BEHEAER 26 16,064 26,799
Cash and cash equivalents ReE KB EEY 26 62,721 144,082
1,636,186 2,160,568
Assets of a disposal group classified SERFEFED
as held for sale EHRIZEE 27 - 137,625
Total current assets mENE A 1,636,186 2,298,193
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables B 5 REBRENRK 28 704,176 666,423
Other payables and accruals HAbfE S RIB R ETE R 29 234,815 182,078
Interest-bearing bank and other sHEERTT R
borrowings HibgE 30 625,206 1,065,752
Tax payable FERTRE K 34,767 20,829
1,598,964 1,935,082
Liabilities directly associated with the ~ BEEHEASEAFEFEAE
assets classified as held for sale HEAZAaE 27 - 69,613
Total current liabilities mEIBEATE 1,598,964 2,004,695
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i R DL R

31 December 2013
RZF—=F+=-A=1+—H

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
—_E—= el e =
+=—BA=+—-H +=—A=+—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BT AR¥T T AREETIT
(GENE|E))
(&£&=751))
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 37,222 293,498
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BWEERRE
CURRENT LIABILITIES aE 818,958 1,501,580
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIERE 21 8,614 17,393
Other long-term payables E i REAFE 5RIE 28 = 7,697
Government grants B EG 6 14,727 13,955
Total non-current liabilities EmBAEERE 23,341 39,045
Net assets BEFE 795,617 1,462,535
EQUITY fE=
Equity attributable to owners of ISTNEIEZZEPN
the parent FEfh TR
Issued capital BEBTRA 31 97,401 97,401
Reserves i 33(a) 698,457 1,329,937
795,858 1,427,338
Non-controlling interests FEE RS (241) 35,197
Total equity e ER 795,617 1,462,535
Chi Shao Lin Cheng Wen
EAOM BX
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
= )
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Aok B At 5 ) ¢

Year ended 31 December 2013

Attributable to owners of the parent

BE-F-ZFF A=+ —HILFE

KAARE AL
Foreign
Share Statutory  currency Non-
Issued Share  Special  awards Other  surplus translation  Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve®  reserve reserve® reserve®  reserve  earnings Total interests equity
BRfT Bt AR Fi23
BE&  ROEE HHREY RERE HtHEY e EXRE REEN a5t & Eafd
note 31
(BzE31)
RMB'000  RVMB'OO0  RMB000  RMB'000  RVMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARETTE AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETr ARETE ARETR
At 1 January 2012 W-%-—%-f—-H 97,401 429,549 74,394 (1892 37871 55,506 9 372940 1,031,694 60833 1,092,527
Loss for the year (as restated) FEEE(8E)) = = = = = = - (35680 (35680 (14265 (49949)
Other comprehensive income for the year:  EEEf2ENE :
Exchange differences on translation of BEEIERL
foreign operations (as restated) [E3 25 (WEF)) - - - - - - 278 - 218 - 218
Total comprehensive loss for the year FERAEEES = = = - - - 78 (35680 (35400 (14265 (49,667
Recognition of equity-setled share-based  RESBUMER £ ERIRIA T M)

payments (note 32) B (KE32) = - - 3762 - - - - 3762 - 3762
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 2.1) hE-HHBRE (HE21)

(note 34(a)) (B 34) = = 428904 = = = = = 428,904 - 428,904
Disposal of a subsidary (note 35(g)) HE-BHBAR (HE356) = = = - - 91 - 913 - 9,800) 9,800)
Capital contributions from non-controling B A REAIER T

interests of subsidiaries (note (d) below) (T3 () = - - - - - - - - 5,600 5,600
Acquisition of non-controlinginterests W Ei SIS

(note (e)i) below) (T M @) = = = = (792 = = = (192 (1,800) (2,592)
Dividends to non-controlling shareholders %4 FFEERRREIE S - - - - - - - (828) (828) (5,371) (6,199
Transfer from retained eamings ERORERR - - - - - 11,039 - (11,0%9) - - -
At 31 December 2012 (as restated) RZE-—E+-A=1+-R(85&7)) 97,401 429,549 503,298* 1870 2995% 65,632* 2087 306,306* 142738 35,197 1462535
At 1 January 2013 R=Z-=§-f-A 97,401 429,549 74,394 1,870 2995 62,058 334 317,235 985,836 35197 1,021,033
Effect of business combination under HRAEHT 22BN T E

common control (note 2.1) (note 34(a) (Rr&E2.1) (B 34(0) - - 4B - - 3574 () 9071 441502 - 150

As restated P 97,401 429,549 503,298 1,870 2995 65,632 27 36306 1,427,338 35,197 1462535
Loss for the year FEER = = = = = = - (750 (177510 (2701 (180211)
Other comprenensive loss for the year,  EEEM2EHR :

Exchange differences on translation of g5 EHEREE

foreign operations - - - - - - (251 - (251) 5 (246)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEREEEES = = = = = = 50 (775100 (177,761) (269)  (180457)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based  BEFZLMER BERRA T

payments (note 32) 0B (KE32) = - - 203 - - - - 203 - 203
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) HE-HHBAR (HzE35) - - - - (840)  (25,704) (288) 26,544 (288) (32,798) (33,086)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 2.1) - ERE AR (MEE21)

(note 34(@) (GRERIE) - - (042230) = = = = - (44223 20 (442014
Acquisition of non-controlling interests  MeEE SR IR (TR HiRE (e)i)

(note (e)i) below) (note 35(0) (Fi¥35(0)) = = - - (1400 - - - (100 (164 (11,564)
Transfer from retained eamings ERERBEF - - - - - 5,904 - (5,904) - - -
AL 31 December 2013 WoE-—=Ftzf=1-H AT 99T G106 2073 O2SF 48R (5D 169436F 795858 (4) 795417

*

(2012: RMB1,329,937,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB698,457,000

*

ZERERBERAMBRARANNGE S FEBARE
698,457,0007C( = Z — = F : A R #1,329,937,000

JT) °

q
C

D
>

7
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
s i 2t 5 B %

Year ended 31 December 2013
B2 —F—=F1_HA=1+—HIFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Special reserve
The balances as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 mainly represented:

(i) the difference between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
parent and the aggregate amount of paid-in capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation of the Company in 2008; and

(if) the excess, amounting to RMB13,330,000, of the consideration paid by the
parent for the acquisition of Rosy Sun Investments Limited (“Rosy Sun”) over
the consideration paid by Mr. Chi Shaolin for the acquisition of Rosy Sun from
a third party.

Other reserve
Other reserve arose from acquisitions of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund which is non-distributable. The
appropriations to such reserve are made out of the net profit after tax of the
statutory financial statements of the relevant PRC subsidiaries. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue.

Capital contribution from non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
The amounts represented:

(i) the capital contribution of RMB4,000,000 from the non-controlling interests of
BB TR & B HME B R A 8 (Weihai Dongchen Plastic New Materials
Limited®, “Weihai Dongchen”), a subsidiary of the Company in which the
Company owns a 60% equity interest in the entity; and

(i) the capital contribution of RMB1,600,000 from the non-controlling interests of
e Y T BL M @ R RBE B A B 2 Al (Shenzhen Honglin Communication
Technology Co., Ltd.*, “"Shenzhen Communication”), representing the
additional capital contribution from the non-controlling interests after which
the Company owns a 72% equity interest in this entity.

Acquisition of non-controlling interests
The amounts represented:

(i) the acquisition of a 2.73% equity interest in Z N H5EAMEHR B BR A & (Huizhou
Honglin Technology Co., Ltd.#, “Huizhou Technology”) from the non-
controlling interests for a total consideration of RMB 1,992,000 during the year
2012. Since then, Huizhou Technology became a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Huizhou Technology was formerly known as 25| A 25 & 1
A{=EE AR A A (Huizhou Daya Bay Heping Telecommunication Co., Ltd.#);

(i) the acquisition of a 8% equity interest in Shenzhen Communication after the
capital contribution from the non-controlling interests completed as
mentioned in note (d)(ii) above, for a total consideration of RMB&00,000
during the year 2012; and

@iy the acquisition of a 45% equity interest in Z2H B4 = R AR A 7 (Tianjin

Rituo High Technology Co., Ltd.#, “Rituo Technology”) from the non-controlling

interests as part of the consideration, measured at fair value of

RMB11,564,000, satisfying the disposal of X2 B#R;5E EE AR AR (Tianjin

Rituo Automotive Electronics Co., Ltd.*, “Rituo Automotive”) to the owner of

that non-controlling interest. Further details are set out in note 35(b).

#  The English names are for identification purposes only.

FieE :

(@

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Gl
R-B—=FR-F-—_FT-A=FT—RAZEHRE
E3C

0] BRAMAETRONEEERERNRFR =
ZTN\FHETEBEEAMBEBEHRERRES
BEARBOENER &

(ii) ‘A A) gt Y B Rosy Sun Investments Limited
([Rosy Sunl) FTfd R BEREDMREERE=
T BB Rosy SUnFFTRIMRBEZH 2 @ BAR
# 13,330,000 7T °

Hitnf#E
H A fF 2R B YREH B A Rl A0 FER il A -

EEEEBRRE R

FEARANBE(THE]D CENBERERRERR
E AR R EHE R RRRT A DIKEEE B4
RHES - ZERENEFRE P RBRAMNBRRE
EMTBERRNBRBRRALN - XERRBERHESTAR
FRMBEFEER(NA)  WAIUERNMEBETHAR
BIRAER o

B 2 B R IR ISR X B
FZERRRR

@) BB REREBHFMHERAR(BERRE])
By FEE i #E 2)E B AR ¥ 4,000,0007T © A
ARARANKERE - BARAHEE 60%
Pt - K

(ii) YT MR A B AR A R (DFRYIEER D)
Z IR R & AR ¥ 1,600,0007T + AIE
THERATEINEE  HBAAREBZA
AIAY 72% AR #E ©

WA B I 42 ) A A
ZERRRK

(0] KT ——F - [m) FEE 5 a5 WM 3k
MEHE AR A A] (TN EHR ) #92.73% A% HE -
BRERARE1992,0007T - HEBMEHR
RARRBNEZENE QR o BB ATHE
BMAEEMFBEEEARAA

(i) RZZT——F RIERFEDTETRERE
L STFRE () Pt ) - KRB AR IR AL Y 8% Bk
- BRERARE600,0007T i &

feImtERRERET B AR ERA
AI(TBRE R ) 45% s - (ERMZIEE
HEREEALEXRZAMTEEXREFRA
B ([Bha=E ) s KENKZAFER
B R/ ARM11,564,0007T) & 15 &R0 B
35()

(i)

fOEXAMEEHER o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

iy Bl BL AR

Year ended 31 December 2013
A E = A=+ —HIFFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR®ET T ARET T
(Restated)
(&&&E7)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REKEETHEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax: BR T B B8 -
From continuing operations REIFELCEER (154,942) (42,794)
From a discontinued operation REBRIHEEET (249) =
Adjustments for: BTYEIRHE
Finance costs b & B AR 7 150,551 61,645
Share of loss of an associate FEfE— B = R RES1E 270 -
Bank and other interest income RIT R E AR B WA 5 (4,173) (1,336)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  BEK&HE
plant and equipment TH B &8 6 6,052 6,130
Net gains on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB QBN FEE 6 (1,857) -
Fair value gains, net: LATIEE 2 A EE - 558 -
Commodity derivative contracts EmiITETEAHOR
and cancellable foreign currency A4 SH NS i B
forward swaps contracts HHE L 5 (204) (21,155)
Changes in fair value of the SARERATFELES
contingent consideration 5 - (13,166)
Depreciation e 6 39,525 50,363
Gain on discounted amount of other HinEERBERTAES 2
borrowings arising from the AR38 © 58 2 W
passage of time 5 (7,817) -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BB A E A
payments 6 2,475 1,529
Government grants released to HABEKIBEEN
the statement of profit or loss BT EL 6 (5,864) (5,402)
Amortisation of other intangible assets o fth £ 72 4 = 1 4 6 29,829 46,209
Recognition of share-based payments RARD I ER 6 203 3,762
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 W IR R A 6 1,539 2,901
Impairment recognised/(reversed) FE At B W TR IE RERR, (B =)
for other receivables R 6 12,958 (192)
Write-down of inventories to net MR FEEE 2R FE
realisable value 6 9,871 4,708
Impairment of property, plant and Yz~ BB K EERE
equipment 6 1,772 20,275
Impairment of goodwill EESERED 6 - 7,488
Impairment of other intangible assets HinEFAERE 6 2,402 6,529
Foreign exchange differences, net EHEESRE 164 1,355
82,505 128,849
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A Bl R

Year ended 31 December 2013
E Tt - H=1—HIFEF

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E—_F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B sE AR%T T AREFIT
(Restated)
(& E3)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RELETHHEESRE (F)
ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERD,(Em) 15,322 (94,916)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 hEE W EIE M (373,244) (255,544)
Decrease in prepayments, AR - 12 REM
deposits and other receivables JRE U SR B R 27,206 95,304
Decrease/(increase) in long-term KRB 5 EGRIE
trade receivables A () 8,598 (8,598)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 REB NG M 339,632 161,586
Increase in other payables and accruals — Eth &~ 7008 & fE5+ & R 1E hn 66,076 122,495
Increase in government grants BT #78 B 38 0 6,636 5,138
(Decrease)/increase in other long-term  H 4 & HARE [~ 3038 Ol 4>),#2 N
payables (7,697) 7,697
Settlement of derivative financial EETESRT A
instruments (334) 14,683
Cash generated from operations KESRS 164,700 136,699
Interest paid EATHE (68,475) (69,417)
Income taxes paid BFEE (10,395) (8,087)
Net cash flows from operating activities &L 2Z /BB FTSIR &M F58 85,830 59,195

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REREZFEBRESRE

Interest received B UH B 4,173 1,336
Purchases of items of property, BEWHE BELXEEER

plant and equipment (68,115) (185,049)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BEMKEER

property, plant and equipment FriSsk18 18,903 878
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid land ~ HE&EFEN LS TS HKIE

lease payments = 4,436
Prepayments for acquiring land use rights 4B + b (3 A #E 2 FE 3K (8,287) (41,757)
Additions to other intangible assets NEEMBEREE (4,142) (3,216)
Investment in an associate & —EE AR (600) =
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHRBAE 35 (84,877) 901
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W R B A A 34 (367) 13,857
Decrease in pledged time deposits 2R E BF R 1,031 24,893
Net cash flows used in investing KB EBFTAR ST

activities (142,281) (183,715)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

iy Bl BL AR

Year ended 31 December 2013

R E A=+ —HIFE

= —=

—E—-=F
RMB’000

ARMTR

2013 2012
=4
RMB'000
ARET T
(Restated)
(F&&=751)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REBMETBHEESRE

ACTIVITIES
New bank and other borrowings FIBRIT R HMER 1,671,036 1,431,493
Repayments of bank and EERITREMEE

other borrowings (1,690,908) (1,311,693)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Yt B& JEiZ bl zs = (2,592
Capital contribution from non-controlling KB A FlFEZE stz >

interests of subsidiaries EE - 5,600
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing  gt& & & (FrA ),/ Fris

activities e mFRE (19,872) 172,808
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH HERBRELEEY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CR2), /B hnFE (76,323) 48,288
Cash and cash equivalents at FHREeRIREEEY

beginning of year 152,917 106,650
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, 4N & 5k & &h s 28 5 5

net (13,873) (2,021)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FR|EREASEEY

END OF YEAR 62,721 152,917
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERASEENEHIN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in REEARR KRB E &

the statement of financial position HEFEY 26 62,721 144,082
Reclassified to held for sale BN BEABAERN 27 = 8,835
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RRERERIIRIRE R

in the statement of cash flows REEEY 62,721 152,917

91
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Statement of Financial Position

WA R DL R
31 December 2013
R—F—=F+_-H=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR¥ET AREETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries REWEBR A 18 686,466 678,293
Total non-current assets EmMBEEBRE 686,466 678,293
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Trade receivables B 5 EUGIR = 10,720
Prepayments, deposits and TBRFRIE - e REAM
other receivables FE U T8 140 24,965
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTEA - 152
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RIRSZEEY 26 575 1,434
Total current assets mB)EEEE 715 37,271
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTFY B A Rl T IE 18 25,345 10,720
Other payables and accruals E e IA R ERTE R 619 4,742
Tax payable FES R R 5,997 5,816
Total current liabilities mEBEATE 31,961 21,278
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS FE (BB EEFHE (31,246) 15,993
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERARBERE
LIABILITIES 655,220 694,286
Net assets BEFHE 655,220 694,286
EQUITY R
Issued capital B TR 31 97,401 97,401
Reserves HiE 33(b) 557,819 596,885
Total equity eSS HARE 655,220 694,286
Chi Shao Lin Cheng Wen
B ‘X
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

B% B%
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

HL Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 16 November 2007 as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
profile and corporate information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in the manufacture and sale of
signal cable assembly, power cord assembly, signal transmission
wire and cable products, connectors, antennas, automotive wiring
harness, telecommunication products and other products and the
provision of services for the construction of base station for
telecommunication networks.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s parent and ultimate
holding company is Chenlin International Joint Stock Company
Limited (“Chenlin International”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, and its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Chi
Shaolin (“Mr. Chi").

$bh 5 k¢ M

31 December 2013
—EF—=Ff+=HA=+—H

REEFR

AR EREEERAB(TARAD SR
—ERLFT-ATAABEREREE
A ERH R ARTERA] - RO
BEMARZABRAR(THRAM]) X
RET - AABEMMER KT ELEM
B A RN FROAREN AR ER
—EIR R EE

RRAFRREERRT] - KRR REME
NE (s [ AEE]) T2 ERE N H
SEWAAN EREAN  ERREE
o RS  RAR TEAR  BAEM
REAMER - ARG EE B A AR
HARTS -

EEZRA - ARANERRE&RERA
A ARMEERBN GR AR ([ RMER )
(BREBHERRESTEMAINARD)
MERKERTRELMHELE(ER
L2l e
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2013
—E—=Ff+=H=+—H

2.1 BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON 2.1 HEE4I THEKRSH R &GS

CONTROL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

On 28 October 2012, the Company and Mr. Chi entered into an
agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement)
pursuant to which Mr. Chi conditionally agreed to sell the entire
issued share capital of Rosy Sun Investments Limited, an
investment holding company of a group of companies
(collectively, the “Rosy Sun Group”) and any loan owed by the
Rosy Sun Group to Mr. Chi (the “Acquisition”). The Rosy Sun Group
is principally engaged in (i) the research and development,
manufacture and sale of cell phones which run on 2G and/or 3G
networks such as GSM, 1S-95, CDMA2000, TD-SCDMA and mobile
internet terminals in the PRC, which are reported in the
“Terminals” segment; (i) the sale of network equipment to major
telecommunication services providers in the PRC, such as IPRAN
and XxPON and providing private network solutions, which are
reported in the “Networks” segment; and (iii) the provision of
services to major telecommunication services providers in the
PRC, such as installation, maintenance and upgrade of network
equipment and/or wireless network optimisation in their existing
network systems, which are reported in the “Networks” segment.
Details of the Acquisition were set out in the Company’s
announcement made on 30 October 2012 and circular dated 31
December 2012. The Acquisition was completed on 31 January
2013 with the total consideration satisfied by a promissory note
issued by the Company to Mr. Chi. Details of the Acquisition are
set out in note 34(a).

The Rosy Sun Group was acquired by Mr. Chi from an independent
third party on 13 June 2012 and has been controlled by Mr. Chi
since 13 June 2012. As a result, the directors of the Company
consider that it should be a business combination under common
control as both the Company and the Rosy Sun Group were
ultimately controlled by Mr. Chi both before and after the business
combination, and that control was not transitory.

The Acquisition is regarded as a business combination under
common control of the controlling shareholder of the Company
before and after the Acquisition. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared using the pooling of interests
method, as if the Acquisition had been completed on 13 June
2012 when Mr. Chi acquired and obtained control over Rosy Sun
Investments Limited from an independent party.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON

CONTROL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
(Continued)

The consolidated statements of profit or loss, consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements
of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012
include the results and cash flows of all companies now
comprising the Group from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the subsidiaries first came under the common
control of Mr. Chi, the controlling shareholder, where this is a
shorter period. The consolidated statements of financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and 2013 have been
prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the Group using
the existing carrying values from the controlling shareholder’s
perspective. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or
recognise any new assets or liabilities as a result of the
Acquisition.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSS") issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for derivative financial instruments, which have been
measured at fair value. These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. Except for the
subsidiaries acquired from a controlling shareholder during the
year as mentioned above, the results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
Ceases.
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BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON
CONTROL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

31 December 2013
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22 SRS REE

RAFE 2B HmE - ARED BXER
PATNHET RAE R BIBR B A5 ¥R o5 22

IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Eill S e BB R R R 1554
Adoption of International Financial FIRAET BB AFAER
Reporting Standards — FEER — BfTE
Government Loans

IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Eill S e BRSHREERETR
Instruments: Disclosures — FIRAET Mg 2B LA -
Offsetting Financial Assets and RE—HHLAEER
Financial Liabilities 2REE

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements BRVEREENE0R LATFER

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements ERUBRSENENS AETH

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other BB RERNE 2%  FEREMERNER
Entities

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and Bl s BREBRERERE 105 -

IFRS 12 Amendments

IFRS 12 — Transition Guidance

F10%: - EREHHRS

BRAHREEASE 1%

ENENRRERGE  RERBHRSE
EH|E 125 0BT FENRNET—HEHS
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement Eill g e DABETE
F13%
IAS 1 Amendments Amendments to I1AS 1 Presentation Bl 2R ER £ 15 B e ERE 15055
of Financial Statements — ol HERZNZS— At

Presentation of ltems of Other 2ENBEENER
Comprehensive Income
IAS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits Bl 2FrERIE19%: ESRET
(&30
IAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements Bl 2R ERI £ 275 BUIBGE
(&30
IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Bl 25 ERI £ 285 HEPERAELERE
Ventures (&30
IAS 36 Amendments Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment Bl 2RrER £ 365 B e E 36 R ET
of Assets — Recoverable Amount ol ) BERE—FoREEL
Disclosures for Non-Financial RE:ERE (RZHE)
Assets (early adopted)
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production BRyBatERERee BARESLEREY
Phase of a Surface Mine F20% FIFHA
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSS ERNERECE 4  CE-CERARARET
2009-2011 Cycle issued in May 2012 B EEE Gl sl )
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Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
IFRS 10, IFRS 12, IFRS 13, IAS 19 (Revised), amendments to IFRS10,
IFRS11, IFRS12, IAS 1 and IAS 36, certain amendments included in
Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle, the adoption of the new
and revised IFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
The principal effects of adopting these new and revised IFRSS are
as follows:

@)

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements and
addresses the issues in SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. It establishes a single control model used
for determining which entities are consolidated. To meet the
definition of control in IFRS 10, an investor must have (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns. The changes introduced
by IFRS 10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled.

As a result of the application of IFRS 10, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with respect to determining
which investees are controlled by the Group. The application
of IFRS 10 does not change any of the consolidation
conclusions of the Group in respect of its involvement with
investees as at 1 January 2013.

IFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities previously included in IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, |AS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures and IAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for
these entities. Details of the disclosures for subsidiaries and
associates are included in notes 18 and 19 to the financial
Statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

©

The IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 Amendments clarify the
transition guidance in IFRS 10 and provide further relief from
full retrospective application of these standards, limiting the
requirement to provide adjusted comparative information to
only the preceding comparative period. The amendments
clarify that retrospective adjustments are only required if
the consolidation conclusion as to which entities are
controlled by the Group is different between IFRS 10 and IAS
27 or SIC 12 at the beginning of the annual period in which
IFRS 10 is applied for the first time.

IFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs. The standard does not
change the circumstances in which the Group is required to
use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how fair
value should be applied where its use is already required or
permitted under other IFRSS. IFRS 13 is applied prospectively
and the adoption has had no material impact on the Group’s
fair value measurements. As a result of the guidance in IFRS
13, the policies for measuring fair value have been
amended. Additional disclosures required by IFRS 13 for the
fair value measurements of financial instruments are
included in note 43 to the financial statements.

The IAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). Items
that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a
future point in time (for example, exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations, net movement on cash
flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-sale
financial assets) are presented separately from items which
will never be reclassified (for example, the revaluation of
land and buildings). The amendments have affected the
presentation only and have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. The consolidated
statement of comprehensive income has been restated to
reflect the changes. In addition, the Group has chosen to
use the new title “statement of profit or loss” as introduced
by the amendments in these financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

IAS 19 (Revised) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces significant
changes in the accounting for defined benefit pension plans
including removing the choice to defer the recognition of
actuarial gains and losses. Other changes include
modifications to the timing of recognition for termination
benefits, the classification of short-term employee benefits
and disclosures of defined benefit plans. As the Group does
not have any defined benefit plan or employee termination
plan and the Group does not have any significant employee
benefits that are expected to be settled for more than
twelve months after the reporting period, the adoption of
the revised standard has had no effect on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

The IAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended disclosure
requirement made by IFRS 13 on the recoverable amount of
a cash-generating unit which is not impaired. In addition,
the amendments require the disclosure of the recoverable
amounts for the assets or cash-generating units for which
an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during
the reporting period, and expand the disclosure
requirements regarding the fair value measurement for
these assets or units if their recoverable amounts are based
on fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments are
effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014 with earlier application permitted,
provided IFRS 13 is also applied. The Group has early
adopted the amendments in these financial statements. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in May 2012
sets out amendments to a number of standards. There are
separate transitional provisions for each standard. While the
adoption of some of the amendments may result in changes
in accounting policies, none of these amendments have had
a significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the key
amendments most applicable to the Group are as follows:

(h)

(if)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
the difference between voluntary additional
comparative information and the minimum required
comparative information. Generally, the minimum
required comparative period is the previous period.
An entity must include comparative information in the
related notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information beyond
the previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete set
of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding period must be presented when an
entity changes its accounting policies; makes
retrospective restatements or makes reclassifications,
and that change has a material effect on the
statement of financial position. However, the related
notes to the opening statement of financial position as
at the beginning of the preceding period are not
required to be presented.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments. Presentation: Clarifies
that income taxes arising from distributions to equity
holders are accounted for in accordance with I1AS 12
Income Taxes. The amendment removes existing
income tax requirements from IAS 32 and requires
entities to apply the requirements in IAS 12 to any
income tax arising from distributions to equity holders.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSS,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

Statements.

IFRS 9
IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and
IAS 39 Amendments

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 (Revised)
Amendments

IFRS 14

IAS 19 Amendments

IAS 32 Amendments

IAS 39 Amendments

IFRIC 21

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Financial Instruments*
Hedge Accounting and amendments
to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IAS 39*

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 (Revised) — Investment
Entities’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee
Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities"

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting’

Levies?

Amendments to a number of
IFRSS issued in December 20137

Amendments to a number of
IFRSS issued in December 20132

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016 and therefore not applicable to the Group

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase of the IASB’s work on the
replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined
in I1AS 39. The standard was initially effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but Amendments to IFRS 9
Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures,
issued in December 2011, moved the mandatory effective date to
1 January 2015. In subsequent phases, the IASB is addressing
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets. The
adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the
classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets,
but will not have an impact on the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial liabilities. The Group will quantify the
effect in conjunction with the other phases, when the final
standard including all phases is issued.

Amendments to IFRS 10 include a definition of an investment
entity and provide an exception to the consolidation requirement
for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity.
Investment entities are required to account for subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 rather than
consolidate them. Consequential amendments were made to IFRS
12 and IAS 27 (Revised). The amendments to IFRS 12 also set out
the disclosure requirements for investment entities. The Group
expects that these amendments will not have any impact on the
Group as the Company is not an investment entity as defined in
IFRS 10.

The 1AS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in IAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January
2014.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERAETHEME

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are not
classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the statement
of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group's investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company’s investments in associates are treated as non-
current assets and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale,
it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHERE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of 1AS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or 10ss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than
the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the disposed operation and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHERE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — Dbased on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level3 — based on valuation technigues for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

DNEEFEE)
FERMEENATEFBEAEREMSZ
HERBRAREEAZEEEZRRE
R IRZEELE THEAREER
ZEEEVKERENEMTIS28E
PTEE &£ MY AE B Rzt

AEBRAERANTRBLEEHERS
A EQXHENGETE  UEBE
EREENBERaAREREERDE
AR B R E ARE -

BN AMBHRRAELARENEE
RBEDERH RV EFEEREMTE
EANREBBAZERZATAFES
mo¥E

F—H/ — ERXHEREEXEERNA
BSHRE CREHE)

£ — EREQFEAEMSE
EANABR(EEXE
B)REBHABENG
B

F= — HEREQFEAENEE
EXNAABRKEES
ABEBOEET X

RIEEEERAVBEREERNEER
BEME  ASEEBRSHREHRREN
FESB(EREAFETEEEMS B
BEANREEHASE) BERSTHET
FEZE=Va



Annual Report 2013 ¢ —E—=F 5}

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, goodwill and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment 0SS is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

0]
(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and
is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups
held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.57% 10 4.75%
Plant and equipment 5% t0 19%
Motor vehicles 18% to 19%
Equipment and other facilities 9% 10 45%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment, including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to
be the case, the asset or disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for the sale of such assets or disposal
groups and its sale must be highly probable. All assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than financial
assets) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for
sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

The Group has changed the amortisation period for some licences
from 10 years to 5 years, and the remaining useful lives of these
licences are 1 year to 5 years. Additional amortisation expenses
amounting to RMB5,510,000 were recognised during the year.

Software
Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives
of 10 years.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 2 years.

Licences

Purchased licences are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 7 years.

Technology know-how

Technology know-how is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life at 15 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Unfinished sales contracts
Unfinished sales contracts are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 1 to 2 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or l0ss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair
value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
other income and gains in the statement of profit or l0ss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale are
those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

24 ERSTHERE &)

RERHEMEREE (&)
REE(E)

BAFEFABR M EE (&)
WEERAFEARBEZEHT AER
NEBEENTRRERRERT - HER
ERR A EKBR SR EREI9H 2 &
A% -

Eimmzw NETET A Z KB R
|“$)§iﬂ bRl S A PTE &I EE YR

FENTBRHIEEERWIFEEERA
ifﬁﬂ)\ﬁﬁ?& CAIEER T RESTE
TADAAFERRABELHITETH - %
EWFANETETREAFETZ - MA
$T§”*§"E§DE\'JE’\\\T§¥?§5€£’ fi & KMEFRAE

C WEXNEMIRERE  EEHTEA
THEEERANURTEFTABERN SR
BE  HEETEM -

EARERHTE

ER KB YRR SR B E 3 7] EE 3
M R ETISHRENIITEESREE -
RERERIEL - ZFEEERAERFEX
EBREDRE B B IR T A E -
AECHEERNAREERNBRELZ
EHfrEsRE JTE%VEEA SRAI A
AERADER DBV B AR AN o BRR A R 55
FEABRIEREMKA RS EP EESE
ZEREREMASXNBERPER -

ARG EEBKE

—H#\Hj‘i BB EMRIF LT 242
BB REBESZT ZIFITESREE -
PHERAHEHEZRARERL ISR
SEFEEREER A FEFABRSER
ZBAKE - ZFERNEBES/TE
HIRTHEE - AR RERDESFRN
REMISIOR BT T &N ERE



Annual Report 2013 ¢ —Z—=%%3%; il

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subseqguently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or
losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other
income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit
or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are
reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively,
and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHERE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to other expenses in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unguoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or
on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not
reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the statement of profit
or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 10Ss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or l0sses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of the
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or 10ss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
commodity derivative contracts, to hedge its commodity price
risk, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive
and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(Continued)

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is
recognised in other comprehensive income and later reclassified
to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for
a period beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, the derivative is classified as non-current (or
separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

o Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the
host contract are classified consistently with the cash flows
of the host contract.

° Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can be
made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the
case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHERE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and having a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
Costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain
products are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration the interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHERE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the assets are
realised or the liabilities are settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
iS a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the period that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way
of a reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recoghition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Contracts for services” below;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instruments or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial assets; and

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the
agreed contract amount. Costs of rendering services comprise
labour and other costs of personnel directly engaged in providing
the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised based on
the percentage of completion of the transaction, provided that the
revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs to
completion can be measured reliably. The percentage of
completion is established by reference to the costs incurred to
date as compared to the total costs to be incurred under the
transaction. Where the outcome of a contract cannot be
measured reliably for fixed price telecommunications system
contracts, revenue is recognised only to the extent that the
expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHERE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Contracts for services (Continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated
as an amount due from contract customers. Where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount
due to contract customers.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (the “equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in
employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group'’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Contracts for services (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

For the defined contribution schemes of the Group, the forfeited
contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) would not
be used by the employer to reduce the existing level of
contribution.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHERE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of
the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or l0ss, respectively).
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into RMB dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Transfer of financial assets

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Significant judgement is often required
when the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, and estimates the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset.

Recognition of deferred tax liability for withholding taxes
Deferred tax liability should be recognised for withholding tax
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax liabilities that can be recognised, based upon the
probability that dividends would be declared. The Group is of the
view that it is able to fully control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference arising from dividend distribution of these
subsidiaries and it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
make such profit distribution in the foreseeable future. Therefore,
the Group has not recognised any deferred tax liability for
withholding taxes. More details are set out in note 21.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Revenue recognition

For contracts involving multiple deliverables, the Group generally
evaluates each deliverable to determine whether it represents a
separate unit based on the following criteria: (i) whether the
delivered item has value to the customer on a stand-alone basis,
and (i) whether the completion of the contract (that includes a
general right of return), delivery or performance of the undelivered
item(s) is considered probable and substantially in the control of
the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group’s determination of whether deliverables within a
multiple element arrangement can be treated separately for
revenue recognition purposes involves significant estimates and
judgements, such as whether delivered elements have stand-
alone value to the customer. Changes to the Group's assessment
of the accounting units in an arrangement and/or its ability to
establish fair values could significantly change the timing and
value of revenue recognition.

Arrangement consideration shall be allocated at the inception of
the arrangement to all deliverables on the basis of their relative
selling price (the relative selling price method). When applying the
relative selling price method, the selling price for each deliverable
shall be determined using vendor-specific objective evidence
("VSOE") of selling price, if it exists; otherwise, third-party evidence
of selling price. If neither vendor-specific objective evidence nor
third-party evidence of selling price exists for a deliverable, the
vendor shall use its best estimate of the selling price for that
deliverable when applying the relative selling price method.

The Group's assessment of which revenue recognition guidance
is appropriate for accounting for a deliverable also involves
significant judgement. This assessment could significantly impact
the amount and timing of revenue recognition.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also a suitable discount rate to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31 December 2013 was RMB61,146,000 (2012:
RMB61,146,000 (Restated)). Further details are set out in note 16
to the financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions at arm'’s length of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and chooses a suitable discount rate to calculate
the present values of those cash flows.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a loan or receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, the Group considers factors such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
default or significant delay in payments. Where there is objective
evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash
flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets
with similar credit risk characteristics. Further details are set out
in note 24 to the financial statements.

Included in trade receivable and other receivables are trade
balances due from a customer amounting to RMB107,575,000
(2012: RMB104,901,000) and advances to this customer amounting
to RMB141,987,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
RMB134,240,000). Some of the balances due from this customer
are aged over one year but the Group has changed the repayment
terms to on demand as the Group is undertaking a business
cooperation with the customer in the 4G related businesses. The
Company's directors are of view that such business development
is important for the Group in the future and the financial support
to this customer is crucial for business reason. As a result, the
directors of the Company do not consider that there is any
indication of impairment on the amounts due from this customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

The management determines the residual values, useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual residual values and useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions and may vary
significantly as a result of technical innovation and keen
competition from competitors, resulting in higher depreciation
charge and/or write-off or write-down of technically obsolete
assets when residual values or useful lives are less than
previously estimated. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment of the Group was
approximately RMB429,220,000 (2012: RMB759,096,000
(Restated)).

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts of its
inventories with reference to aged analyses of the Group’s
inventories and projections of expected future saleability of
goods, and also based on management’'s experience and
judgement. Based on this review, write-down of inventories is
made when the estimated net realisable values of inventories
decline below their carrying amounts. Due to changes in the
technological, market and economic environment and customers’
preference, actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by differences in
this estimation. As at 31 December 2013, impairment losses of
RMB9,871,000 (2012: RMB4,708,000 (Restated)) have been
recognised for inventories.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management'’s judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. Further details are set out in
note 21 to the financial statements.

3.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services. As a result of the
Acquisition described in note 2.1, the Group changed the
structure of its internal organisation in a manner that caused the
composition of its reportable segments to change. Based on the
new internal organisation incorporating the new business, the
Group has three reportable operating segments and the
corresponding items of segment information for the year ended
31 December 2012 have been restated for presentation on the
same basis. The three reportable segments are set out as follows:

(@  The signal transmission and connectivity products segment
engages in the manufacture and sales of signal cable
assembly, power cord assembly, signal transmission wire
and cable products, connectors, antennas, automotive
wiring harness and other products.

(b) The terminals segment engages in the manufacture and
sale of mobile phone handsets, related accessories and
related software, and mobile internet terminals.

(c)  The networks (telecommunications system) segment serves
for the construction of base stations for telecommunications
networks including TD-LTE, TD-SCDMA and GSM network,
trading of telecommunications equipment, such as IPRAN
and xPON, and providing private network solutions.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group's
loss before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude available-for-sale investments, deferred
tax assets, cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, and other unallocated head office
and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.
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4, REHEER (&)

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_F—=F+-A=+—HL#HF
E
Signal trans-
SN
connectivity
Terminals Networks products  Unallocated Total
EHESR
i fw  REEER AAE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR AR%Tr AR%Tx AR%ETx
Segment revenue 2R 350,453 696,538 1,665,534 2,712,525
Segment results DEEE 28,360 137,742 (110,294) 55,808
Reconciliation: ik -
Interest income FlEgA 4,173
Finance costs BEMA (150,551)
Corporate and other AR REM
unallocated expenses AARAX (64,372)
Loss hefore tax from HFELEEBRBA
continuing operations i3] (154,942)
Segment assets ST HEE 410,638 688,112 964,714 2,063,464
Reconciliation: $ik -
Corporate and other RAREMRAE
unallocated assets BE 354,458
Total assets BEE 2,417,922
Segment liabilities AHEE 173,455 402,205 256,719 832,379
Reconciliation: i
Corporate and other ARREMARAE
unallocated liabilities af 789,926
Total liabilities Beg 1,622,305
Other segment information: ~ Eft 2 H&EH :
Impairment losses recognised RERERTHERZ
in the statement of profitor loss  JF{EEE 13,458 1,540 13,544 - 28,542
Depreciation and amortisation HERHE 12,678 7,217 43,929 8,005 71,829
Capital expenditure* BRER* - - 148,123 10,744 158,867
Other non-cash expenses Hih R EHY - - 6,052 - 6,052
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHEER (#)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-E——-—HF+-HA=1+—HLHF
4

Signal trans-
mission and
connectivity
Terminals Networks products  Unallocated Total
EhEs

S % LEREM RO o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (GENEIE)
(m=51) (I E51) (mE=51) (mE=51) (FE=51)

Segment revenue 2 BWE 246,271 334,009 1,933,675 2,513,955
Segment results PIEE 20,707 26,322 (16,399) 30,630
Reconciliation: I
Interest income FIEUA 1,336
Finance costs BERA (61,645)
Corporate and other AR REMA

unallocated expenses AEHAY (13,119)
Loss before tax from HFESEEBRBA

continuing operations 3! (42,794)
Segment assets PHEE 350,064 460,944 2,228,722 3,039,730
Reconciliation: HEE
Corporate and other ARREMAAE

unallocated assets B 466,545
Total assets HEE 3,506,275
Segment liabilities PHER 155,706 187,181 498,336 841,223
Reconciliation: i
Corporate and other ARREMAAE

unallocated liabilities =L 1,202,517
Total liabilities HwafE 2,043,740

Other segment information:  HfzAH&EH :
Impairment losses recognised NEERTRERL

in the statement of profitor loss  JE{EEE 732 1,084 39,796 97 41,709
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 19,965 20,011 53,171 4,954 98,101
Capital expenditure* BARER* - = 163,831 269,574 433,405
Other non-cash expenses HFREHY - - 6,130 - 6,130

w Capital expenditure consist of additions to property, plant and equipment, * BAMAZBEDE BERREBEABELEHE

other intangible assets including assets from the acquisition of a subsidiary. WE—EHBARBEESHMEREE -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHEER (#)
(Continued)
Geographical information 38 & R

(@) Revenue from external customers

(@ ZREMBEFZBA

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——4F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T R AREFIT

(Restated)

(geE3)

Mainland China R A 3B 2,066,087 1,890,856
Taiwan =y 252,432 284,873
Korea 8 308,123 213,468
The United States of America ESE 74,659 105,948
Hong Kong B 508 602
Other countries and areas E B ZR & i [E 10,716 18,208
2,712,525 2,513,955

The revenue information of continuing operations above is

based on the locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

LS EEE R 2 WA BB TA

B Z A R

(b) FAREBEE

F o

2013 2012

—E—=F =EE—==4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBT T

(Restated)

(F&&E751)

Mainland China R A 3 763,165 1,171,472
Hong Kong B 297 89
Taiwan B - 6,574
763,462 1,178,135

The non-current asset information of continuing operations
above is based on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

ERFEREXBZRBEESR
BIABEZ MEME REKE - B
FIEEERTANEENHEEE -
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION REFIER (#)
(Continued)
Information about a major customer BAREIEEFZER

Revenue from continuing operations of approximately
RMB349,377,000 for the current year was derived from sales by
the networks segment to a major external customer from whom
the revenue individually derived has exceeded 10% of the revenue
of the Group.

In 2012, none of the customers from whom the revenue
individually derived has exceeded 10% of the revenue of the
Group.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts and the value of services rendered during the
year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing
operations is as follows:

FERBFRBREEBZRADARE
349,377,0007C J5 2K B ##4& o B ¥ — R =
EIMBEFPHHE - MAZTFREZK
ANBIUAEBBAKERAK10%

RIZB——%F  REPERFZWABILM
=B EASE R AR 10% °

A - EA A K Wi

WA - FAKEE SEE - AEEHE
W2 BEFERRE RE B INEER
£ POFR IR GL RIS O (B AEL ©

REFBLEEBZWA - R ARK
BT

2012
T4
RMB'000
ARBT T
(REN | (=)
€ <==7p)
Revenue LON
Sales of goods and software products HEEmREMERD 2,601,658 2,398,443
Rendering of services MR 105,207 95,512
Royalty income HHEERA 5,660 20,000
2,712,525 2,513,955
Oother income and gains Hug A &k e
Bank and other interest income RITRE AR S UA 4,173 1,336
Government grants released B BB EL 5,864 5,402
Net gains on disposals of subsidiaries HERB QR 2 e F 5 1,857 =
Discounted amount of other borrowings HitteERARHERAEEZ
arising from the passage of time ELp e 7,817 -
Fair value gains, net N EYEFRE
Commodity derivative contracts and EmpiTE TR
cancellable foreign currency forward B K R AT REEINE
swaps contracts RS 4 204 21,155
Changes in fair value of the contingent FAREALTE
consideration EE) - 13,166
Others E At 1,168 46
21,083 41,105
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6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIAIEE
The Group's loss before tax from continuing operations is arrived NEEFERLEB Y BRRAEEREN
at after charging/(crediting) B/ GEA)ATEIEA :

2012
—E——F
RMB'000
ARBTT
(Restated)
(#E7)
Cost of inventories sold* BEEFERA* 2,344,647 2,177,903
Depreciation e 14 39,525 50,363
Amortisation of prepaid land EETR N T
lease payments HEHE 2,475 1,529
Amortisation of other A MEREE
intangible assets** 17 29,829 46,209
Impairment of property, plant mE - BE &
and equipment FtERE 14 1,772 20,275
Impairment of other intangible assets ~ E & & ERAE 17 2,402 6,529
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 WA 2R A 24 1,539 2,901
Impairment of goodwill EERE 16 - 7,488
Impairment recognised/(reversed) R/ (BE) 2 Hth
for other receivables FEUGRIE R A 25 12,958 (192)
Minimum lease payments under KERE 2 &IE
operating leases HERNFK 5,609 7,730
Auditors’ remuneration Z BT B 2,200 3,076
Research and development costs*** B BERL AN *** 92,673 83,198
Government grants released**** BRI AT g AL ** (5,864) (5,402)
Foreign exchange differences, net b N = RS 164 1,355
Employee benefit expenses (including 1B @B L
directors’ and a chief executive’s (BHEESER
remuneration) THBEMNE)
— Wages and salaries —IEkE® 276,958 299,261
— Equity-settled share option expense — LAt 25 45 & 6h B AR HE B = 203 3,762
— Pension scheme contributions — RIRSFT B 14,445 14,408
291,606 317,431
Write-down of inventories to i RESSED
net realisable value A& FE 9,871 4,708
Loss on disposal of items of property, — HEW% « BER
plant and equipment RMEIBE 2 Es1E 6,052 6,130
Bank and other interest income HR1T R E A F S YA (4,173) (1,336)
Net gains on disposals of subsidiaries  H & KB A & 2 F ks (1,857) -
& Inclusive of write-down of inventories to net realisable value. * BB FEEMURE ] 215 FE -
o Amortisation of other intangible assets is included in “Cost of sales”, B BHEMEFEEMAGEBSRN iﬁ B

“Administrative expense” and “Research and development expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A [1TBB ) & [#i3 R ] RE A

=% |nclusive of amortisation of other intangible assets of RMB267,000 (2012: ek EFREEGHE (A E AR 267,000 (=
RMB624,000). T——F : AR 624,0007T) °
**x*  During the financial year ended, the Group received government grants for xxxx AP E R NEBEBRTHE  UEE

incentives for technology research and development and compensations for
purchase of machinery used in manufacturing of terminals.

R A R (F R Y SUE A R R O TR (B -

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants EEB L AZEW R 2 ML S A Kk
for those released to the statement of comprehensive income. The remaining ERIEESR R ARAE - 2 N ARK
grants of RMB14,727,000 (2012: RMB13,955,000) are special funds subject to 14,727,000 T( = ——4F : AR 13,955,000
verification by the local government or will be amortised over the useful lives T BERES A 1¢ﬂﬁ&ﬁ$2§1§ﬁﬁj§§
of those assets it compensated. E&Z E4 ﬁﬁ%@%‘ZﬁFZT{E RGN o
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BB
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as RERFELEEBHBE K A8 5 47 a0
follows: T
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFIT
(Restated)
(Fe&E751)
Interest on bank and other borrowings HARAFABEEZRITR
wholly repayable within five years HAEER S 68,475 69,417
Interest on a promissory note A EBRFE 82,237 -
Less: interest capitalised W EAMEFE (161) (7,772)
150,551 61,645
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERITHARGM
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, FERNEERITHRAHFTMEE FmEA
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the B EEDN TGOS 161 IERBENT ¢

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
AEE
2013 2012

—E—=F = =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T

Fees: e
Executive directors and a non-executive HITEEN—F
director EMITES 224 246
Independent non-executive directors BAERITES 302 244
526 490
Other emoluments of executive directors: HITEEMEMENE
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREYER 1,100 933
Share-based payments LARZ1D S A4 B9 5/ 0E = 162
Pension scheme contributions IRIRE T EIHR 44 27
1,144 1,122

1,670 1,612
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8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERITHARFM 2
REMUNERATION (continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BYFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FANTELIENTESHES N
the year are as follows: 1

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_—4F

RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRE ARETRT

Ms. Zheng Lin 157 Sogam 40 41
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence’ EFEER S A 61 162
Mr. Song Lizhong! R RITE! 17 41
Mr. Thomas Tam? R S A2 92 -
Mr. Pao Ping Wing? IR A2 92 -
302 244

There were no other emoluments payable to the FERIEEMNBYLIFAITESTHE

independent non-executive directors during the year (2012: e (ZZE——F : &) o

Nil).

1 The directors have retired as directors of the Company since 29 May 0 ZMEEE_T—=FRAA=1+h1

2013. BREFAAFTES -
z These directors have been appointed as directors of the Company 2 ZMUEERN_ZT—=FRAA=-1Th

since 29 May 2013. AREZERARRARES -
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8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERITHEARFM =
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director (b) BITEE —BHFBITEER
and the chief executive THHER

Salaries,

allowances Equity-settled Pension

and benefits  share-based scheme Total
in kind payment contributions remuneration

B REE  MEREEN BAEN
i RUEAN Rfixft SRR e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR%TR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR

2013 —E-=F
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Chi Shaolin EOMEE 60 233 - 8 301
Mr. Li Jianming' FRBRLE 53 172 - 7 232
Mr. Jiang Taike" EARGLA 53 258 - 7 318
Mr. Lu Chengye BRERE 35 378 - 2 435
Mr. Cheng Wen E)Qitia 8 59 - - 67
209 1,100 = 44 1,353
Non-executive director: FHTESE:
MS. Xu Yiming? frEgTt? 15 - - - 15
224 1,100 = 44 1,368
1 These directors have resigned as directors of the Company since 15 U ZMUEEE T —=F+—ATH
Nov 2013. HEREARRAES -
2 The director has retired as director of the Company since 29 May 2 ZNEEE=-T—=FRAA=1tAIA

2013. BERERARES -
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8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERITHEARFM =
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director (b) BITEE —BHFBITEER
and the chief executive (Continued) THER (&)

Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits ~ share option scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions  remuneration

e RER MEREEHN RAEH
2 B Betnseft sTEIEH FMes
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTL  ARETT  ARETE  ARETR

2012 —E-Cf
Executive directors: HiTEs:
Mr. Chi Shaolin BOMEE 60 21 - 8 289
Mr. Li ianming ZEALE 60 197 102 8 367
Mr. Jiang Taike BARILAE 60 265 = 8 333
Mr. Mao Wanjun’ EEHELE 15 90 60 3 168
Mr. Kang lin Won' FREELE 15 160 - - 175
210 933 162 27 1,332
Non-executive director: FTESE:
Ms. Xu Yiming REHTT 3 - - - 3%
246 933 162 27 1,368
1 These directors have retired as directors of the Company since 29 ! ZMUEFE_F-—_FHA-TN
May 2012. HRREAQRES -
Mr. Chi, the chief executive officer, assumes the role as a TTHABEGE S R E 1T AR E O B
chief executive and his emoluments for services rendered B MBEERBEECHEE
by him have been included in the above. BIER ERZEEE -
There is no arrangement under which a director or the chief FRESHITRABHBIERT
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration ZHENE KRB NEEMFHM -

during the year.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director who is not the chief executive (2012: neither any director
nor the chief executive). Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining four (2012: five) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

LTRSS HER

FRNAN G EERFE —NESE(WIE
THREH)(—CE——F : BBERSZER
THEH) FAMNESRNEU(ZE—=
& AfL) WIEAR A E Bk ITERABE
BREERENESMERBOT

2013 2012
—EBE—=fF —E——4F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTRT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e I REYRA 1,949 2,381
Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIMHR 42 46
1,991 2,427

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

FMEATHBENIFEFHITHAREN
RFrEEABMT :

Number of employees
EEAH

2013 2012
—E-= —E—=F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 7T
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10. INCOME TAX

The statutory rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: 25%) represents the statutory tax rate in Mainland China as
the Group's operations conducted substantially in Mainland China
throughout these years.

No material provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group did not have material assessable profit arising in Hong
Kong during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013.

The statutory tax rate for Honglin Technology Co., Ltd., (“Honglin
Technology”), a company established in Taiwan, is 17% for the
years ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 17%). No provision for
Taiwan income tax has been made as Honglin Technology did not
have any taxable income for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: Nil).

Current — Mainland China BIHER — FR B A i

$bh 5 Ak ¢ B

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff+=HA=1+—H

10. FRE%t

HE—_Z—=%+-_A=1+—HILtMEA
FEEEZERTEREL (T ——F:
25%) * KRB R A ZEER K B A
RZEFE  AEBEBANPERIEFRE
RIHLAETT ©

MERDBANERIELENEE  BAR
BE_Z——HK-_ZFT—=F+_AH
=t+—HIFE AEBEERBUEESE
ERERFRF

SO EHR A R AR (DR ] - —fER
BEBKIZ AT RBE_T—=F1=
A=t —HUEFEZEERER17% (=
T—_F:17%) - ARAHBRRREBE
“T=H+_A=tT—HILEE  BE
ERERBEA - AR BAEHEL
EAEE( T ——F &) -

Group

AEE

2013 2012
—E—=F

—E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
(Restated)
(re&E5)

Charge for the year FARIE 14,752 12,247

Underprovision in prior years SRIFERETR 227 689
Deferred income tax (note 21) BIEFTS R (M 5E21) (2,747) (5,785)
Withholding tax TEHEL 12,788 =
Total tax expense for the year FAREHT L5 25,020 7,151

The Group is subject to income tax on an individual legal entity
basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in
which companies within the Group are domiciled and operate.

AEBERBEASEE AR A PRI RE
B ) B 1% BDAE B S A A SR AR O A
B REAANEREERAMEHR
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FRB B (&)
Except for the following companies, the subsidiaries of the BRIAT ARG - RA BB A 2
Company established in Mainland China are subject to corporate B B A BRI R LA TR 4F [ ZB 4% 25% V4 TE Fi &
income tax (“CIT") at the statutory tax rate of 25% in the following AN ETERH ([DNEMER]) :
years:

2012
=

(RENE]E))
(re=751)

BB MM EFERAE ([EUEEF])
Weihai Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd.* (“Weihai Electronic”) 15.0% 15.0%

HRAHETARAF ((HRET)
Changshu Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd.* (“Changshu Electronic”) 15.0% 12.5%

BRAUMERBEERAR ([FAEE])
Changshu Honglin Wire & Cable Co., Ltd.* (“Changshu Cable”) 15.0% 15.0%

BAGLERE BT AR A T ([% @B R )
Changshu Honglin Connecting-Technology Co., Ltd. *
("Connecting-Technology”) 15.0% 12.5%

ZINGAMEFERAA ([EMNEF])
Dezhou Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd.* (“Dezhou Electronic”) 15.0% 15.0%

BEEMIMDMEIRERAE (EER])
Chongging Honglin Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Chongging Technology”) 15.0% 15.0%

BRI REREER AR (DEGHE])
Shenyang New Postcom Co., Ltd.* (“Shenyang Company”) 15.0% 15.0%

& The English names are for identification purpose only. 3 B ABEEER -
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FBHL (40
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at RAEATHEFENG R EEEBAOR
the statutory tax rate to the tax expense at the Group’s effective BHEYTEHF A EE TR EENR
tax rate is as follows: THRAZEERAT
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —ER—=—fF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
(Restated)
(F&&E751)
Loss before tax from continuing operations 3K B £ B & & 2 AR T RTS8 (154,942) (42,794)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% 12 25% (ZZF——4F : 25%)

(2012: 25%) EERMEGTEH IR (38,735) (10,699)
Lower tax rates enacted by local authority 3t 75 §i 75 /& & it B9 R i R 6,286 (4,628)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the Z10% 2 R AR S

distributable profits of the Group's FR B B 8 A R AT 990K s )

PRC subsidiaries WER Z TR 2 5028 12,788 -
Adjustments in respect of current tax of B HR R A BN B AR 1B A 2

previous periods 227 689
Losses attributable to an associate — B & A R B (G B 18 40 -
Expenses not deductible for tax DRI AR 1,273 455
Reversal of tax losses previously recognised @7 #ER 2 B A8 Ry E o) 937 4,379
Tax losses not recognised RERREERE 42,204 21,526
Tax effect of concession deductions LR R S B RAMY

relating to research and development BERER

expenses Mg & = (4,571)

Tax expense at the Group's effective rate IR EE BRI RAEN
HIAR X 25,020 7,151

11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 1. BRAREBAEMLES

PARENT

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the parent for the HE_Z—=F1+"HA=1+—HIFE
year ended 31 December 2013 includes a loss of RMB76,970,000 Z B REHEE ARGEEERR  BFEA
(2012: gain of RMB10,390,000) which has been dealt with in the R#76970,000L 2 BE(ZE —=4F :
financial statements of the Company (note 33(b)). 1 25 A 2 # 10,390,000 7T ) 2 & AR A 7] Bt

BIR R 32 (PHEE33(D)) ©
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12. DIVIDEND
No dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2013 nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2012: Nil).

13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
720,000,000 (2012: 720,000,000) in issue during the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders &2 &) L iR@ARHER A A

12.

13.

RE
REBEE_ZE—=F+_A=+—HBLF
R ANARBERMN S EZERMRE -
BfREBARBNERENSERNRE(ZE
——F )

FRAREEREREARGZ
BREE

BREABBEIREAFES AR LR
R A AREEE - ARFAEBRZ
HN#E ¥ 45 21720,000,000 8 (= F — =4 -
720,000,000f% ) 5t & -

BEREAREEBERAEATRZA
RIRIE -

2013 2012
—E-=F —E-——F
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT
(GENEED)
(&E51)

of the parent, used in the basic and [EIEEE - BRER
diluted loss per share calculation: EAREEEBZTE
From continuing operations REFECEED 177,375 35,680
From a discontinued operation REEKRIEET 135 -
177,510 35,680
Weighted average number of ordinary FABETL AR
shares in issue (‘000) during the year MEEHE(FR)
used in the basic and diluted loss ARERERREE
per share calculation BEZFE 720,000 720,000
Loss per share: BRERE
Basic and diluted EARRES
— For the continuing operations - FERE R RMB24.64 cents RMB4.96 cents
— For the discontinued operation - BRI ER RMB0.01 cents =

Diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per share as
there were no potentially dilutive shares in existence during the
year ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

BREEERESRENSERAR BA
HE_Z—=F4+-"HA=1+—HEZ=ZZ
—— &+ A=+ HULEFEIEEE
BB o



Annual Report 2013 ¢ —Z— =4 F5f

Notes to Financial Statements

$bh 5 Ak ¢ B

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff+=HA=1+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BEKRKRE
Group rEH

Equipment
Plant and Motor  and other Construction
31 December 2013 Buildings  equipment vehicles facilities  in process Total

2R
“3-ZF1t-A=t-H BT RELEH RE o HfRiE ERIE st
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARBTR AR®TR ARRTR ARET:R

Cost; XA
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—F—H 447,716 324,852 9,931 54,053 79111 915,663
Additions NE 806 17,222 149 2,605 97,691 118,473
Acquisition of a subsidiary WeE—mH B LR
(note 34(b) (GEX) - 210 - - - 210
Disposals RE (720) (30,908) (2,643) (6,736) - (41,007)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKBAF
(note 35) (P7E35) (215712)  (207,163) (4,547) (29,687) (32,724)  (489,833)
Transfers B 53,291 27,843 - 2,261 (83,395) -
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%
+-A=1+-H 285,381 132,056 2,890 22,496 60,683 503,506

Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZEHTE R :

impairment:
At 1 January 2013 W=E-=F—-F—H 43,027 89,290 3,503 20,747 - 156,567
Depreciation provided ERFHRZTE

during the year 13,660 21,240 966 3,659 - 39,525
Disposals RE (109) (7,270) (1,486) (4,327) - (13,192)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNBAR

(note 35) (PizE35) (35,843) (62,130) (1,951) (10,462) - (110,386)
Impairment during the year FRHE - - - 1,772 - 1,772
At 31 December 2013 WZE—=%+-f

=t+-H 20,735 41,130 1,032 11,389 - 74,286
Net carrying amount; REFE -

At 31 December 2013 W-E—=%+-f

=t-H 264,646 90,926 1,858 11,107 60,683 429,220
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continves) 14. Y% - BERZE &)
Group (Continued) KEE &)

Equipment
Plant and Motor and other  Construction
31 December 2012 Buildings  equipment vehicles facilities in process Total

R
ZF-CFTZAZTA BT EBRERk B HeRk  ERIE st
RMBOOD ~ RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB000  RMBO0D
ARBFT  ARRTR ARBTL ARBTT ARETL ARETR

Cost; XA

At 1 January 2012 RZE——4—F—H 238,614 269,340 10,357 61,391 192,002 771,704
Additions NE 19 43186 1,794 9,234 104,906 164,139
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—mH B LR

(note 34(a)) (P3E34@@)) 44,463 14,112 566 781 - 59,922
Transfers Eb 164,620 45211 - 7,58 (217.417) -
Disposals RE - (28,192) (1,520) (21,466) (380) (51,558)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR

(note 35(¢)) (3 35()) - (20,151) (591) (887) = (21,629)
Reclassified as held for sale ENNEARERE

(note 27) (MzE27) = (3,654) (675) (2,586) - (6,915)
At 31 December 2012 RZE—Z4+ZA4

(Restated) =+—H(BEY) 447,716 324,852 9,931 54,053 791 915,663

Accumulated depreciationand B2t RiHME -

impairment;
At 1 January 2012 R-E-—F-F—-H 21,445 70,449 2,271 2141 - 116,306
Depreciation provided during ~ EREHEZH7E

the year 12,002 26,178 2,244 9,939 = 50,363
Disposals BE = (7.430) (748) (10,721) - (18,899)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBAR

(note 35(e)) (K7 35(6)) = (10,105) (259) (283) - (10,646)
Impairment during the year FRRE 9,580 10,498 155 42 - 20,275
Reclassified as held for sale ENNBARERE

(note 27) (KisE27) - (300) (161) (371) = (832)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——%+-F

=t+-H 43027 89,290 3,503 20,747 = 156,567
Net carrying amount; RERE -

At 31 December 2012 RZE—-%+=7

(Restated) =t+—H(&s5)) 404,689 235,562 6,428 33,306 7911 759,0%
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continves) 14. Y% - BERZE &)
Group (Continued) KEE &)
At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s buildings and plant NR-ZE—=F+=-A=+—0 ' X&EEKE
and equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately HFELH AR 181,687,000t (=ZF—=
RMB181,687,000 (2012: RMB325,736,000) and RMB36,186,000 F: AR #325736,0007 ) & AR #
(2012: Nil) were pledged, respectively, to secure bank loans (note 36,186,000 (= ——4F : #)NE T2
30) and general banking facilities granted to the Group. FRHERRN  CARTINER - (EA
BIAEBEMRITER(MEE30) & —#&
IRITIEERRE o
The above buildings are situated in Mainland China and held BT B A o I AR EAFR A
under medium-term lease. Ao
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the recoverable ARAREEZRE  EREBEER_Z—=
amount of the impaired assets as at 31 December 2013 was nil, F+-A=+—HNAKEEEAZ It
which were determined based on value in use. DENMEREBEERE -
15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. S LA S
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
(Restated)
(K&&E75)
Non-current assets FRBEE 110,865 86,750
Current assets mBEE 2,268 1,933
113,133 88,683

The current portion of prepaid land lease payments is included in
other receivables under prepayments, deposits and other
receivables.

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held under
a medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has pledged its land use
rights with a carrying value of approximately RMB33,919,000
(2012: RMB43,141,000) to banks to secure for bank loans of the
Group (note 30).

ARt LA © 2 MBS S Et ATE IR
B e K H Ath fE W R IETA T 2 Bt FE UK
I8 o

HE TR B - iR HRTE &5
ﬁ o

RIB—=%+"RA=+—H A%£EE
# H AR E A S AR 33,919,0007T (=
T4 : AR¥43,141,0007T) 2 T3
EAREMTRT - MMERAEE ZRTT
B FE IR (BIRES0) ©
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16. GOODWILL 16. BHE
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
(REN | E0))
(K&&E75)
Cost: PR
At 1 January n—HA—H 68,634 7,746
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) U BE — R B A B (M9 3E34) 370 61,146
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35(a)) HE— R B AR (H5E35@)) (6,294) -
Reclassified as held for sale (note 27) ENHEARAERSE (M:E27) - (258)
At 31 December R+=—_HA=+—H 62,710 68,634
Accumulated impairment: ZERE ¢
At 1 January Rn—HA—H (7,488) =
Impairment losses during the year FRAZBAEEE = (7,488)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35(a)) & — I B A R (I3 35(a)) 5,924 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 (1,564) (7,488)
Net carrying amount: BREDFE :
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 61,146 61,146
Impairment testing of goodwill HE A
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been FREBRASHWE  EED ETRE
allocated to the following cash-generating units for impairment ARSI E YIRS ELESBAM :
testing:
° Terminal cash-generating unit; and . ISIH SRR &

3 Network cash-generating unit. ° PRI S EEEEN -
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16. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continuead)
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-
generating units is as follows:

Terminal
i
2013 2012
—E-ZE

—E-CF
RMB'000
AREFT
(Restated)
(& =5)

RMB'000
ARBTR

Caryingamount of goodwill ~ EEVEREME 9,343 9313

—E-=E

ARBT R

$bh 5 Ak ¢ B

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff+=HA=1+—H

16. BE (&)

BEZRENER )
SEERRSELSN Y BEZ EEE
o

Network Total

an @it
2013 2012 2013 2012
“F--% CZEBE-Zf C—Z--F
RVB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARMTR ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(E=5) (g =5)

RMB'000

51,803 51,803 61,146 61,146

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount of
goodwill has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 19% (2012: 19%). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-
year period is 3% (2012: 3%), which is consistent with the industry
growth estimate. The goodwill was not impaired based on the
result of the above impairment testing.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation for 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect to the relevant units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development and discount rates are consistent with external
information sources.

BREARME - HEZAIKRESEE
AEfERENEZ AFHMKEE Y
BeREAREBEREEAEREEEE -
JERRIREe Rz EAE19% (=ZF
—ZF 1 19%) c HERFHERSAE
FRAZIERERAE3%(ZE——4F : 3%) -
BITER R — - MEWIERIE Lt
AR 2 ERAE -

ERHE-E-=F+=A=+—AK
—F-—Et-A=t-AzEAEE
EAEE - XL ERE AR
B TERET 7 B R (E R SR 2
BB

BEEMNE — REENXZ2EBEIRE
ERFEFEMZFEACED ZTH
EMNR(ABREMSERAMER)ETE

FHE — FATREARHATFRE -
T REERIEAL -

TSR 2 X B BRI E RITR R
AR SOR— 5 -
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HtEFEEE
Group rEH

Customer  Technology  Unfinished
31 December 2013 Software  Trademarks Licenses relationships ~ know-how contracts Total

“%-£+ZR=t-H Bt i HE BFRE BEEl  ARRAK At
RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR AR®TR ARMTR ARRTR ARETR  ARETR

Cost; B :
At 1 January 2013 W=E-=F-f—H 2,683 5724 23,682 59,036 118,785 27,871 237,781
Additions NE 571 - 3,571 - - - 4,142
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) HEREAR (i 35) (1) = (5,608) (2,620) - - (8,939)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=E+-A=1-H 2,543 5,724 21,645 56,416 118,785 27,811 232,984
Accumulated amortisation and it BERAE
impairment;
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=£-f-H 1,291 2,023 4,792 13,597 7,199 27,830 56,732
Amortisation provided during FREHEE
the year 700 3,639 7,151 10,526 1,772 Iy 29,829
Disposal of a subsidiary (note35) HE-RHBAR (FHz35) (363) = (4,620) (2,620) - - (7,603)
Impairment during the year FERRE - - 2,402 - - - 2,402
At 31 December 2013 RZEF-=F+ZA=t-H 1,628 5,662 9,725 21,503 1497 27,871 81,360
Net carrying amount; REFE:

At 31 December 2013 RZE-=#+-A=1-H 915 62 11,920 34913 103,314 = 151,624
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Group (Continued)

bh 5 e ik

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff+=HA=1+—H

17. BB EE &)
KEBE(H)

Customer ~ Technology ~ Unfinished
31 December 2012 Software  Trademarks Licenses  relationships knowhow contracts
“E-CE+ZA=1-R #i g BEIE EFAE EVCE (i S =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETE  ARETR  ARETR
Cost; R :
At 1 January 2012 W=E-—F-f—H 2,364 134 13774 15,430 10470 = 02172
Acquisition of a subsidlary (note 34(a)  WEERHE A &I (i3 34(a) il 5590 6982 51146 114,495 27871 206,128
Additions NE 290 = 2926 = = = 3216
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35(8)  H&—FEHEAR (i 356) (19) = = = = = (15)
Reclassified as held for sale (ote 27)  EXAEARHIENE (M 27) = - - (7,540) 6,180) - (13,720
At 31 December 2012 (Restated) R=E——%F+-f=+-H
(A E5) 2683 5724 23,682 59,036 118,785 27811 237,181
Accumulated amortisation and LR A
impairment:
At 1 January 2012 W-E--£-f-H 1,039 46 2935 1,674 1,047 = 6,711
Amortisation provided during FREHEE
the year 255 1977 1857 9,067 5223 27830 46,209
Disposal of a subsicliary (note 35(e) & —RIKE A7) (RizE35()) 8] = = = = - 8]
Reclassified as held for sale (note 27) ~ EXfAEARIELE (Hz27) - - - (1,508) (1,23¢) - (2,744)
Impairment during the year ERRE = - - 4,364 2,165 - 6,529
At 31 December 2012 R-E-——E+-A=1-H 1,291 2023 4,792 13,597 7,199 27830 56,732
Net carrying amount; REFE:
At 31 December 2012 (Restated) RZZ-ZF+ZA=1-H
(=E75) 1,392 3701 18,890 45,439 111,586 N 181,049
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the recoverable RNAREERE  BEERERBERER
amount of the impaired assets as at 31 December 2013 was nil, EBrEzAkE&EE R-_Z—=F+_5
which were determined based on the value in use. =t+—HAZ-
18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RHIB AT ZRE

Unlisted shares, at cost

FEEMRAD - A

Company
RAF]
2013 2012
—E—_4F
RMB'000
ARET T

—E—=F
RMB’000
ARBTR

686,466 678,293
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The amounts due to subsidiaries included in the Company’s
current liabilities of RMB25,345,000 (2012: RMB10,720,000) are
unsecured, interest free and repayable within one year.

18. RIMIB AR ZRE 4)
SFARREIREN B B AR 25,345,000 7T
(ZZE—=%F : AR¥10,720,0007T) 2 [
B A RRIBAERR - 2B RER—
FRERE -

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at the end of the RATRIREERZBEARFIBOT ¢
reporting period were as follows:

Directly held by the Company

Place of

incorporation/
registration and
business
KL
MR &%

Nominal value of
issued share/
paid-up capital
BERT/HR
BAZEE

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to
the Company
AATEGERERDLL

Principal activities

TEXH

ARAEERE
Rosy Sun' British Virgin Islands HK$16 100 N/A  Investment holding
("BVI")
RBHERRHS 1687T 100 TER  REAER
([EREBRES])
@ Weihai Mingbo Wire&Cable PRC/Mainland China US$36,383,265 100 N/A  Manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd. signal cables and
(“Weihai Mingbo")##& wiring harness
° BEMABSENEARAR R,/ B A i 36,383,265 3% 7T 100 TER REREECTERES
(BRG] "
Indirectly held by the Company
ERAEERE
** \Weihai Electronic® PRC/Mainland China RMB275,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
power cord assembly, signal
transmission wire and cable
products and connectors and
investment holding
T ERBETE R/ E Pt ARY 100 100 BEERHESREAEN  E%
275,000,000 7 B Em REESR AR
@ Huizhou Communication® PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
router antenna, WIFI antenna,
signal transmission wire and
cable products and telephone
antenna
o Bimae FRE /R B it AR 30,000,000 7 100 100 SUERHERBZERR -
EERE  ERERREED
REFERE
@ Rituo Technology® PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 100 55  Manufacture and sale of
automotive wiring harness
° B mRHE® FRE /R B it AR 15,000,000 7 100 55 BUERHEABER
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMIB AR ZIRE ()

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to
the Company
EATEGRERD L

Indirectly held by the Company

Place of

incorporation/
registration and
business
MR
AR &k

Nominal value of
issued share/
paid-up capital
BRT/ AR
RAZEE

Principal activities

FEXH

(Continued)
AR ARERE ()
** \Wuhan Honglin Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB49,262,400 100 100  Manufacture and sale of signal
Co., Ltd. ("Wuhan Technology")* cables and wiring harness
o RET R AR A A B/ E At AR 49,262,400 T 100 100 SERHECTEKRES
(TEUERML ) &
** Dezhou lincheng Electronic PRC/Mainland China RMB32,600,000 100 N/A  Manufacture and sale of
Co. Ltd. (“Dezhou lincheng")#& mechatronics and electronic
devices, and manufacture and
sale of automotive wiring
harness
o EN R EEER AR FE/FR Bl iy ARH 32,600,000 7T 100 TER HERHERRETRETRE
(M 3R ) #e REGERHERERR
** \Weihai Jinyuan Mingye Property ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 N/A  Property development, sale of
Development Co., Ltd. commercial housing, property
(“Weihai Jinyuan”)?® services, estate information
consultation, and sale of
construction materials
> BRI EERR R/ Pt AR 30,000,0007T 100 MERA DEER BREHE -
BRAR([BEHRR]) % MERT - BiELHERR
THE RN
New Postcom Technology Hong Kong HK$1 100 N/A  Investment holding
Company Limited
(“New Postcom Technology”)!
T BERMERAR 0 18T 100 NER REER
(FBBERM])

@ Shenyang Company' PRC/Mainland China RMB233,000,000 100 N/A  Manufacture of
telecommunications products
and provision of service for
base station construction

o EG I BB A AR 100 TER HEENERRAREIER

233,000,0007T RS

* Tianjin Jincheng Hanisi Automotive  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 60 N/A  Manufacture and sale of

Electronics Co., Ltd. automotive wiring harness
(“Tianjin Hanisi")#
* RRRERETEEREARAR RE/HENM AKH1,000,0007C 60 TER RERHEAESR

(TREMREHT ]) e
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Indirectly held by the Company

(Continued)
ARAAEEEE (E)

** Changshu Electronic*®

~ ERETH

* Changshu Cablef®

* Connecting-Technology*

* BREE Rl

* Dezhou Electronic®®

- EHET "

** Shenzhen Communication®

w Rl

Place of

incorporation/
registration and
business
MR
AR &k

PRC/Mainland China

hE/HEA

PRC/Mainland China

B,/ Bl

PRC/Mainland China

hE /R EAL

PRC/Mainland China

hE/HEA

PRC/Mainland China

hE/HEA

Nominal value of

issued share/

paid-up capital

BRI/
B2 EE

RMB92,659,586

AR%
92,659,586 7

US$17,483,200

17,483,200% 7T

US$12,500,000

12,500,000 7T

US$15,750,000

15,750,000 7T

RMB10,000,000

NG
10,000,000 7T

18. RMIB AR ZRE (&)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to
the Company
EATEGRERD L

N/A 100
TEA 100
N/A 100
TEA 100
N/A 100
TEA 100
N/A 100
TEA 100
N/A 80
TEA 80

Principal activities

FEXH

Manufacture and sale of signal
cables and wiring harness
SLERIHERTRRER

Manufacture and sale of
power cord assembly,
signal transmission wire and
cable products, as well as
connectors

SERHEEREAMN
ERERGEERREES

Manufacture and sale of
power cord assembly,
signal transmission wire and
cable products, as well as
connectors

FERHEEREMAMLT
(BB E T RoE

Manufacture and sale of
power cord assembly,
signal transmission wire and
cable products, as well as
connectors

RERHEBRGAMY -

B EE RS E R RS

Manufacture and sale of router
antenna, WIFl antenna and
telephone antenna

SLERSHERRBERE
BEREREFERE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMIB AR ZIRE ()

Indirectly held by the Company

(Continued)

KRR #ERE (E)

Honglin Technology* Taiwan NT$100,000,000 N/A 100 Marketing, research and
developments of signal cable
assembly, power cord
assembly, signal transmission
wire and cable products and
other products

SARH =) aw TER 100 i REERGAEN

100,000,000 ERERREERRAMER

Hongxin International Limited Hong Kong/ HK$2,000 N/A 100  Trading of signal cable assembly,

("HK Hongxin")* Mainland China power cord assembly, signal
transmission wire and cable
products and other products

Hongxin International Limited B/ RE A 2,00077T TEA 100 EBEERERANT  SREEH -

([BHBRE])* B EBREERREMHER
@ Chongging Technology* PRC/Mainland China RMB24,000,000 N/A 100 Manufacture and sale of
signal cable assembly and
wiring harness
° BERE® B/ E At AE® TER 100 SERHEETEEANTR
24,000,000 7 FR
** Huizhou Honglin Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 N/A 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. ("Huizhou Technology")# communication wire, cable
and other related products
TR AR A A BB A AR TEA 100 BUERHEBERER
(TR ) 80,000,0007T HibAHER
Chenhong International Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 N/A 100 Provision of treasury services for
(“Chenhong International ) group companies
BABRRRNOERAT B 10,0007 7T TEA 100 AEAERFRREESRE
([BATER ) *
* Wuhan Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China US$1,000,000 N/A 100 Manufacture and sale of
("Wuhan Electronic”)##& power cord assembly,
signal transmission wire and
cable products and connectors
* REAREFERA R e B/ E At 1,000,000 T TER 100 RERHESRGAHERER

(MHEEF])

Place of

incorporation/
registration and
business
MR
AR &k

Nominal value of

issued share/

paid-up capital

BRI/
B2 EE

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to

the Company

ARAEEREED L

Principal activities

FEXH

BREERREES
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMIB AR ZIRE (#)

Indirectly held by the Company

Place of

incorporation/
registration and
business
MR
AR &k

Nominal value of

issued share/
paid-up capital
BRT/ AR
RAZEE

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to

the Company

ARAEEREED L

Principal activities

FEXH

(Continued)
LR FEREEE (E)
** Rituo Automotive?##& PRC/Mainland China RMB11,111,111 N/A 55  Manufacture and sale of
automotive wiring harness
** Hip)qE e B/ E At AE# TEA 55 BUERHEREANMTESR
1111117
** \Weihai Dongchen### PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 N/A 60  Manufacture and sale of
plastic materials and
related products
** BBR R M B/ E At AE# TEA 60 HEREEBBYER
10,000,000 7 HRER
Sumptuous Wealth Limited BVI US$2,001 N/A N/A  Investment holding
(“Sumptuous Wealth")*
SHAERAR ([FH])= REARRES 2,001%7T TEA MEA REER
Greatest Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1,001 N/A N/A  Investment holding
(“Greatest Group")#
Bk 1,001 7T TEA TER  REHEK
Abundant Wit Limited BVI US$2,001 N/A N/A  Investment holding
("Abundant Wit")#
HERRRES 2,001%7 TER TER  REEK
@ Weihaishi Hongbo Wire & Cable  PRC/Mainland China US$35,000,000 N/A N/A  Manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd. signal cables and wiring
(“Weihai Hongbo")# harness
° BETALEREREERAF /R E 35,000,000 % 7T TER TER  HENHEERERRER
(T RAE ) *
Chuan Sheng Company Limited ~ Taiwan TW$5,000,000 N/A N/A  Product design of wireless
(“Chuan Sheng Company")*& communications machinery
and equipment, machinery
installation, sale of and
provision of services relating to
T software
=) 5,000,000%7 & TEA TER  EREAERRRIEERRT

Bk  HEREHER
BB MR R R
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network

Wholly foreign-owned limited liability enterprises

Sino-foreign joint ventures

Domestic limited liability enterprises

Disposed of in the year with the disposal of Sumptuous Wealth Limited

Newly established in 2013

Disposed of in 2013

During the year, the Group acquired Rosy Sun and its subsidiaries, including
New Postcom Technology and Shenyang Company, from its controlling
shareholders, Mr. Chi. Further details of this acquisition are included in note
2.1 and note 34(a) to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group acquired the entire equity interest of Weihai
Jinyuan from third parties, which was treated as an asset acquisition as
Weihai Jinyuan has not begun any activities when being acquired.

During the year, the Group acquired Chuan Sheng Company from third
parties, which was subsequently disposed of to the controlling shareholder of
the Company, Mr. Chi, with the disposal of Sumptuous Wealth. Further details
of this acquisition and disposal are included in notes 34(b) and 35(a) to the
financial statements, respectively.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
Particulars of the Group’s associate for the year ended 31
December 2013 were as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Issued
registration and ordinary

18.

19.

business share capital
SEMALH, BRT
BEREEN BERAR

Changshushi Zhichun Moulding PRC/Mainland China RMB7,050,000

Technology Co., Ltd.

(“Changshu zhichun)*

EATEEEAREER LR HE/ HEAL AR
([#ngH&])* 7,050,000 7

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

During the year, the Group newly established Changshu zhichun
with a third party and Changshu Zhichun was subsequently
disposed of with the disposal of Sumptuous Wealth.

$bh 5 Ak ¢ B

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff+=HA=1+—H

RB AR 2RE (&)
@ WIER BB LK ST BTk ok BB
RE AR B A FIEZ

@ SNEBERRRA

* INEERE

= FERNERAMER

# FAHE %%ﬁﬁ AEFHE
” RZB—=F KL

o RZTE—=FHE

! £ $%Hﬁﬁf&%iﬁi$W$MW
Sun & E B AR - BRI AR RER
B EyﬁW&W%$EZ#1§mMﬁ
HRMTE 2.1 RHTFE34(0)

2 FN - ARERSE =7 WERERRE2 R
B ZREBRESKBERE  ARRERIR
TA UK B 3 A B R AT RIS 7S

2 F£ R AEE M\ SE = H % Chuan Sheng
Company ' EEREESHKBRELET
AARERBREREE - ESHBEZBER
& E I8 2 155 Bl kR B 75 3R 2% MY 5 34(0)
K.35(a) °

BRE—BBEQF
AREBE-F-=£+-A=+-A
IR 2 B AR ¢

Percentage of

equity interest

attributable to
the Group Principal activities

FEEHR

49%  Manufacture and sale of
moulding and parts

49% RERHERAREMT
Y REEBRARHAERHRZAER S
H bR B AREE «

FR - ARERFE=THRILEAEE -
FAEREERESREE —BOE -
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20. AIHEERE
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—EB—=F —E—_4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥BTT ARETT
(REN | E0))
(/=E5)
Unlisted equity investment, at cost JEETMBAKRE KA 15,000 15,000
Unlisted equity investment represents the cost of the 10% interest JEEMBRAIEEREG LI E RATER
in Shenyang Shenbei Fumin Village and Town Bank Corporation TR AR A& ([ dE 8817 1) #910% 1
Limited (F5& 1L = RATEEIRTTIR D AR 2 7], “Shenbei Bank”) WAKA - EWEEEFEE o MdbiR1T
with no fixed maturity date. Shenbei Bank was established in the REACEFTIE 2 PERCSL - EAEFEER
PRC where it operates. It is a financial entity approved by the TEBEBEZE e MEH#E 1A
China Bank Regulatory Commission in the PRC and a private entity IARTE BRERERMIBRR S E
which is not listed on any public exchange. e
The above unlisted equity investment was stated at cost because bt 3E ERRARERKARTIE - ARE
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so wide that the BRAVERGFZEE+IEZABES
directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be measured RAEENFERE S E - AEET
reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of this unlisted BREHA S IE ETIRAIRE -

equity investment in the near future.
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21. DEFERRED TAX 21. EERIE
Deferred tax assets EERIBEEE
31 December 2013 —ZE—=%+-A=+—H

Discounted
amount
of other
borrowings  Unrealised
Impairment arising from gain on
loss of the passage government
assets  Tax losses of time grants Others

REE R
MEEZ
BERE R g RRH
BR  HEER  BRRE  HARR R st
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARMTR AR®TR AR®TR ARMT:R

At 1 January 2013 W=E—=F—-f—H 925 937 1173 2,093 1221 6,349
(Chargedy/credited to profitor — ERREZ (318&) /3t A
oss during the year (698) (937) (1,173) 116 (383) (3,075)
At 31 December 2013 WZE—=F+_f
=] 227 = = 2,209 838 3,274
31 December 2012 —E-——f+=-A=+—H

Discounted
amount
of other
borrowings  Unrealised
Impairment arising from gainon
loss of the passage  government
assets  Taxlosses of time grants Others

RE R
MELZ
BERE HtfEE RER
BRE  WBEER  WBENE  BARR A st
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO0D
ARETT  ARRTR ARBTL AREBTT ARETL ARETR

At 1 January 2012 RZZ——%-F—H 369 4,379 — - 25 4,773
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-RBAR

(note 34(a)) (Pi7E34() 264 - 37 2133 1,698 4132
Credited/(charged) to profitor £ RIRMERS

loss during the year A/ () 294 (3442) 113 (40) (502) (2,554)
Reclassified as held for sale ENNBARERE

(note 27) (MzE27) 2 - = = = 2)

At31December 2012 (Restated) R=F—=—&+=f
=t—REE5) 925 937 1173 2,093 1,221 6,349
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21. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 21. IELERIE (2)
Deferred tax liabilities FEBEEE
31 December 2013 —_E2—=%+-A=+—H

Fair value adjustment on
AVERR
acquisition of contingent
asubsidiary  consideration Total

KB/

WEAE ZARE )

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

At 1 January 2013 NZE—=F—-F—H 14,101 3,292 17,393

Credited to profit or loss for the year FRARERETA (2,530) (3,292) (5,822)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 35(0)) & — KB AR (& 35(0) (2,957) - (2,957)

At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-B=+—H 8,614 - 8,614
31 December 2012 —E-——f+=-H=+—H

Fair value adjustment on
ATERE
acquisition of contingent
a subsidiary consideration Total

KR

MEBAF HAKE Mt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2012 R-Z——%—HF—H 9,718 = 9,718
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34(a)  UtEE—REIFT B 2 5] (P 3£ 34(a)) 16,014 - 16,014
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss FRRBE (GTA) /M
for the year (11,631) 3,292 (8,339)
At 31 December 2012 (Restated) R-E——F+-fA=1+—H
C27) 14,101 3,292 17,393
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax 18F 4 i B TE B 1B 49 A R #5161,575,000 7T
losses of approximately RMB161,575,000 (2012: RMB94,952,000) (ZZE—=F : AR 94,952,0007T) FER
as the losses have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss- BAFELE  BAZESEREAAER
making for years and it is not probable that taxable profits will be FERNEEEROMRBAT - BT AR 8

available against which the tax losses can be utilised. B FERR @ Al Al (R IE E 1R P (R IR 8
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2013, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB247 million at 31 December
2013 (2012: RMB373 million).

PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUIRING LAND USE
RIGHTS

As at 31 December 2013, the amount represents a prepayment by
Wuhan Technology, a subsidiary of the Group, to acquire a land
use right in Wuhan.

As at 31 December 2012, the amounts represent prepayments
made to B8 7 JR 88 3£ B b &= F 2 A R 2 | (Weihai Jinyuan
Mingye Property Development Co., Ltd., “Weihai Jinyuan”) and L
REEeLmEMAEREEEZ 82 (Linyi Economic and Technology
Development Zone Committee, “Linyi Committee”) amounting to
RMBA41,751,000 and RMB34,500,000, respectively.

21.

22.

$bh 5 k¢ M

31 December 2013
—EF—=Ff+=HA=+—H

ELERIE (2)

ELEBEE®E 2

BiER B PR RSE - ERBE R
R HIINE D 2 AN EE SRS -
ARG S BEH10% TN - IS
—TTN\E—A— BEAERLERR
—EELEt-A=+—AZEHEF -
fih 35 o B PO B 2% 2 B 4R 5 R 7
SEREETAREGE - BB RNA
FREAiE - ZRAEM - ERRIEA10% -
BRIt - A [ 5 7 R PR B S B
AT -—EENFE— A— BAKIAEBER
MERFTAAEERENRS - AEEER
e SARTE IR o

RN-ZE—=F+_A=+—H ' TERK
& B 7 B B A i A 32 B B B A B B AR
TEHF 2 REREFEN 2 BT R
BIERIIE - EERAE - ZEHMBARTA
BN Al RARRDIRBEEF - RZF—=
F+ZA=+—H  HMABREEHRIES
B2 R BN E R R 2% & AR R
=R @A A ANRE 247,000,000 (= F
——% : AR¥373,000,0007T) °

W s 1 3t 65 PR B 2 FRLAY 3K

N_TE—=F+_A=+—8  &NEHK
AEEWNE AR RERSZ AR KIE - A
WS VR 2 + b {5 R4 o

R-FB——F+-_A=+—H %%5tH
KR D RIS T BB 87 R 86 5 5 1 & 59
BERAR(TEAERR]) MUREEL
EREREEZE2((HREZESM
AR @R ARK41,751,0007T XA
R # 34,500,000 7T ©
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22. PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUIRING LAND USE
RIGHTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Prepayment to Weihai Jinyuan

The amount is for acquiring a piece of land in Weihai, the
PRC, and for the construction of buildings thereon pursuant
to the Construction Cooperation Agreement dated 16
August 2012 between the Company’s subsidiary, Weihai
Electronic, and Weihai Jinyuan.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement
on 22 March 2013.

Weihai Jinyuan is a company established in the PRC with
limited liability held by 1t 5 885 84 % 5t E F 2 A R A 7
(Beijing Jinyuan Mingye Property Development Co., Ltd.,
“Beijing Jinyuan”), a company established in the PRC, and
Mr. Miao Junjie, independent third parties, (collectively the
“Vendors”), respectively, as to 90% and 10%.

On 22 March 2013, Weihai Electronic entered into an
agreement with the Vendors, pursuant to which Weihai
Electronic agreed to acquire, in aggregate, the entire equity
interest in Weihai Jinyuan for an aggregate cash
consideration of RMB6,000,000 and Beijing Jinyuan will
assign its rights of shareholders’ loan to Weihai Electronic.
Upon completion of this acquisition, Weihai Jinyuan has
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
Group owned a 100% interest in the prepaid land lease
payment in respect of the land in Weihai, the related
amount was transferred to prepaid land lease payments.

Prepayment to Linyi Committee

The amount is for acquiring a piece of land in the Linyi
Economic and Technology Development Zone adjacent to
the production plant of the Company’s subsidiary, Dezhou
Electronic, in Shandong province, the PRC (the “Adjacent
Land”).

22. WELHEARZENR@E

(@)

(b)

16 B i 8RR 2 A TR A K
ZEREARBIBEA R RIHE R A
BEBETEEEHREN _"FT——F
NATRBRIZEEEA EihE -
WER B S — MBI WHEL
o | SERARF o

FZHBERNEARTNRN-E—=F
A+ —B®AM -

BEHRRRANHBEKZNAEREE
NE - AR IREE M E R
BRAB (TR - 2d K
VHRR]) REEGETE(BYFE=
) (GRRITETDRE  &hf
B E B HE D Bl 3 90% K2 10%

BEBEFR_T—=F=A-+=
BEESFFIURNDEEHE &
It BBETFREAS LKBEER
RZ2HE - BRERER/RAR
# 6,000,0007T * T3k R 87 R G R
FAZBRRERZENTEEE
F o ERZAENER - BUBRIRE
RARRBNZENBRE - MA
SEEBEE B BN LT
HEH100% s - HHES RREE
FHEMNTHES -

HREZ8EXTWANRE
A% B IR R URRE A B L SR A AR
ARBMBRBRBMEFLEERS
MR EEERMAER B L
(I#psEtb])
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22. PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUIRING LAND USE 22. WIs T hERE AN E)

RIGHTS (continued)
(b) Prepayment to Linyi Committee (Continued) (b) MEEZEEXTWEAMNRE
(%)
Pursuant to a previous agreement dated 23 February 2011 BRBEEMNEF  ERBEEREEE
among Dezhou Electronic, Beijing Jinyuan and Linyi BEERZE——F=_A=+=
Committee, Dezhou Electronic paid RMB25,000,000 and, Bl 2z RZTE——%F 5t
through Beijing Jinyuan, RMB13,500,000 to Linyi Committee SR (Rt  EMNETF
for another piece of land in 2011 (the “Original Land"). = £ A K 25,000,000 7T & & 48 &=
Subsequently, as Dezhou Electronic considered to develop 858 > -+ A B 5 13,500,000 7T F &
the Adjacent Land and to discontinue the aforesaid ELZE8E  AEARNENEFZR
agreement for the Original Land, having discussed with Linyi AR i - DA RAR IER T HAY
committee, the prepayment of RMB38,500,000 in aggregate Al KRHERERESEY
for the Original Land should be refunded to Dezhou % ZRIHMEFKEEEAR
Electronic. In 2012, RMB4,000,000 was refunded. #38,500,000 T FE R 2 F=ME T -
R=ZZT——%F AR#¥4,000,0007T
EiRE -
23. INVENTORIES 23. FE
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE
(Restated)
(Fe=%1))
Raw materials R 43,354 92,144
Work in progress TR 20,301 76,601
Finished goods BURK fh 62,127 158,659

125,782 327,404
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND LONG- 24. ESREBEEWFRRIIES

TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

FEWRK IR

Group
REHE
2013 2012
—EBE—=F —EF——F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
(RENEIET))
(re=75)
Trade receivables B 5 IR 1,148,226 1,326,783
Impairment VER(E] (3,125) (4,419)
Trade receivables, net B 5 EWEIEFE 1,145,101 1,322,364
Less: non-current portion of B B RWGRIE
trade receivables EmBIEL D = (8,598)
Current portion of trade receivables B S EWFIE 2 mEh 3 5 1,145,101 1,313,766
Bills receivable R E R 56,329 39,768
1,201,430 1,353,534

Trade receivables of the Group represented proceeds receivable
from the sale of goods and rendering of services. The Group's
trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except for
new customers where payment in advance is normally required.
The credit term generally ranges from 15 to 180 days, and a
longer credit term will be granted to certain major customers.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control management system to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012,
except for an amount due from a customer exceeded 10% of the
Group'’s total trade and bills receivables, the remaining balances
of the trade receivables are related to a large number of
diversified customer. Trade receivables are interest-free and
unsecured.

AEEEZREBFIBBREREE & MIE
HIRF R Z FTERUE - RIEAEE 2 E
GER  AEBERFPAZZHEEH
HRFLTRAELAMNR - EEH KA
152180 ATE  METEERFHER
BERZEEH BREEFYUEREEE
B8 o ANEREBUN BRI IR B AL R (E R FE UK
8 WHREEEEMNEERS  BRkiEE
EEBRBRERE - 2R EEABESEHR
SHEAIR R - KR LM AT —=
FR-E——F+-A=+—H BREK
—ZREFPZHREBBAAEEE S NEE
FEMGRABEE 2 10%5h + B S FEWRIE 2 £
HHEZZARZEFEH - BSEKHIE
B S MERA -
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND LONG-
TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the transaction date and
net of provision, is as follows:

bh 5 e ik

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff+=HA=1+—H

24. ESGREBEWRERBES
PEUWRFRIE ()
T &5 8 A B8 5 e I S IE TE SRS
REBEIR DT - BESITIAL S B EAK
o WE IR

Group

TEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
(Restated)
(re=31))
Within 3 months =EAR 750,984 946,814
3to 6 months =E/~EA 57,747 251,609
6 to 12 months ANETZEA 171,103 8,614
110 2 years —EME 51,987 26,741
Over 2 years BB E 113,280 88,586
1,145,101 1,322,364
Less: current portion B BNERER (D (1,145,101) (1,313,766)
Non-current portion FERNEREB 1 = 8,598

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

BHRUGRNREREZZNT

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
(Restated)
(&e&E5)
Opening balance 4,419 1,239
Acquisition of a subsidiary U EERT B A7) - 502
Impairment loss recognised BRI AR 1,539 2,901
Written off (2,833) (223)
Closing balance 3,125 4,419
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND LONG- 24. ESREBEEWFRRIIES

TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) PEURFRIE (&)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade LB SERZBRERERLEERE

receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade BEZESERFB2EEARK

receivables of RMB3,125,000 (2012: RMBA4,419,000) with a carrying 3,12500c( = & — —F: AR K

amount before provision of RMB3,125,000 (2012: RMB4,419,000). 44190007 ) - BEREEEAARK
3125000c( —Z & — —F: AR ¥

4,419,0007T) °

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the recoverable AAREEZAE R-E—=F+—#
amount of the impaired assets as at 31 December 2013 was nil. =+—H REEEZAIHKESELET -
The aged analysis of the trade receivables and long-term trade S JE R Bl 3k = A a8 A R E B B 5 HE U
receivables that are not individually nor collectively considered to REREHE S E W R TE B BR & 5 4T a0
be impaired is as follows: N
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
(RENEIE)
(#2E5)
Neither past due nor impaired e HA MR (B 940,298 1,251,439
Less than 3 months past due B =E A 113,819 16,015
Over 3 months but within 6 months past due #Hi = {& A & /<& A 698 49,114
Over 6 months but within 1 year past due WA NERE—F 70,549 4,243
Over 1 year past due mHERR—F 19,737 1,553

1,145,101 1,322,364
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND LONG-
TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The maturity profile of the bills receivable of the Group as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

bh 5 e ik
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24. ESGREBEWRERBES
PEUWRFRIE ()
TEBAEEREKZER TS AN
BIEIER -

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T
(Restated)
(F&&E751)
Within 3 months =EARA 32,518 19,608
Over 3 months but within 6 months =EA=NEA 23,811 20,160
56,329 39,768

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

380 5 7T 4R ORY (B A FE O TR ER X B R
BEROLENEFER -

EEBERRENERFARES 2T
EFAHW REEAKERBERIRHL
%o RIBBERLR - AN EEERLES
Ri# - ARFEHRDREST 2 HK
B - MARBEERRHARZTEHRIE
HRERE -
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND LONG-
TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
Included in the Group's trade receivables are amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries of the Group amounting to RMB63,306,000
(2012: Nil), which are repayable on credit terms similar to those
offered to the major customers of the Group.

As at 31 December 2013, none of trade receivables (2012:
approximately RMB58,502,000) was pledged to banks as security
in respect of the Group's bank borrowings (note 30).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable of approximately RMB1,000,000 (2012: RMB15,845,000)
to banks with full recourse. As the Group did not transfer the
significant risks and rewards relating to these bills receivable, it
continued to recognise the full carrying amount of these bills
receivable and accounted for the cash received as secured bank
borrowings (note 30).

At 31 December 2013, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in the Mainland China (the “Endorsed Bills")
with a carrying amount of RMB15,547,000 (2012: Nil) to certain of
its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of
the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including the sale, transfer
or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties. The
aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables settled by the
Endorsed Bills during the year to which the suppliers have
recourse was RMB15,547,000 (2012: Nil) as at 31 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group pledged certain bills
receivable (“Pledged Bills”) of approximately RMB2,028,000 (2012:
Nil) to banks to issue another bills to settle its trade payables (the
“Pledge”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group has retained
the substantial risks and rewards, which include default risks
relating to such Pledged Bills, and accordingly, it continued to
recognise the full carrying amounts of the Pledged Bills.
Subsequent to the Pledge, the Group did not retain any rights on
the use of the Pledged Bills, including the sale, transfer or pledge
of the Pledged Bills to any other third parties.

2. ESREBRERRIFERBPES

PEUWRFRIE ()
AEEYBSEWREREREKAER
B Z M B A B FE A R #563,306,0007T (=
T ) RRBARRETAE
EXEEE 2 ELUS SHEE -

R-ZE—=F+"A=1+—H8 " SE&}®K
SEZRITEEMRITERE ZRIERK
B(ZZE——%F : H ARH58502,0007T)
TEREMR (MTEE30) °

N-ZE—=F+-_A=+—8 ~"&EE#F
AT RWEE LA R 1,000,0007T (=
T——F: AR®158450007T) FIRTT
(MWBEZEEER) - ARAEE Y EiZE
ZERNEEEBHNERRR KBITR - i
HEE>mERAZSRKEENIRRE -
Wi EWIRE ABREAFRBRITEE
(Fft3E30) »

N-—ZB—=F+=-A=+—0 A&£EA
RERAMBITENZE TEREESE
(IBEZE])  ZEZBEEEEAARE
15,547,000 C( =T —=4F : &) ' 2t ¥
AEBETEER - UEAERZSHE
BAZESREMNZFEBE(EE]  -EZRE
AEBERBETRBREE:R - 2iFEER
ZEBREZRENRR Bt 0 HEE
BRAEEZBEREEMN Z2HEZE S RN
HIBZ ZERAE - BE2% @ AEETE
BEEZERIMERE  2FEHS &
FEREREEZR T EMHEME=F - F
NEEZEREMNZE SEMNZE(HERD
BER)N - E—=F+_A=+—HB2
PR TEE A A R 15,547,000 ( = F
—— i)

MNZTE—=F+-A=+—0 K&EEH
HETRERKZER(EERZE]) FRTT
SR AREE20280007T (=T — =4 :
) B BRITHOZEBRUENEESE
NHBE([EH]) - EBRAE  A5EER
BRI RAKRKLER  SBEERZEEE
WEEZZORR - Hit - HEERER
BRZEZ2HREE - GifE - A5E
WERBEEHEZRIAERE - 2IEHE
€ EEYEHDEHRZRTEMEME
= 2R
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25. ENRIE  BRERHEMBERRK

RECEIVABLES 1"

Group

REHE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
(RENEIET))
(F&&E751)
Advances to suppliers and other third parties* 3% Tt R EME =7 * 171,244 220,403
Value added tax receivable FE WO (AR 10,394 22,935
Deposits and prepayments e RIBFNFKRIE 5,000 19,743
Other receivables H A e U GRIR 13,390 36,782

Consideration receivable for disposals of HERBARZ

subsidiaries R (E 15,274 8,730
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR R BT /EB A FIZRIB 14,887 -
230,189 308,593

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are repayable on credit
terms similar to those offered to the major customers of the

Group.

& The amount mainly represented advances to suppliers and other non-related
parties for construction of plant for business cooperation purposes. Included
in the balance was an amount due from an independent third party of
RMB10,500,000 (2012: RMB35,183,000) which was unsecure and interest
bearing at 8% per annum. The other balance was unsecured and interest-

free.

The Group did not provide any allowance on the advances as, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still

considered recoverable.

e R R BB A RIRIR BRI T A&
BEXE2EFZRUEEHRERE -

* ZHETERGATHERREMERES 2
B EURRBE - ETEBAE - £RRF
BERK—EBIE=ARE  2EAAR
#10,500000T( = T — = F£: A R #
35,183,0007T ) * A & 1K ] & 4R & F L 8% 5t
B Hth B AERMR RS

REEY E BRI R G - AN
RAEERREREAZMEECFNERE
8 WERRAFAB A M
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. EARE  REREMERRK

RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movements in the provision for impairment of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables are as follows:

I8 ()
FERTERIE - 26 K OE b FE MR TE 2 SR
BEEHMT

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—EBE—=F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
(Restated)
(F&=751)
Opening balance FH)sE 3,221 1,168
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — B A A = 2,245

Impairment loss recognised/(reversed)

DR (BHE)RERE 12,958 (192)*

Disposal of a subsidiary & —RHH B AR (13,168) =
Closing balance FREEH 3,011 3,221
% The reversal of impairment loss in 2012 was related to the Terminals & BE —T——F 2 REBBRKmSBER -

segment.

The balance as at 31 December 2013 was unsecured.

RIB—=F+"A=+—H #AHRE
I -
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26. B R BREEBYRECEFRF
PLEDGED DEPOSITS EXY
Group Company
S| ADE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——fF —E-=F —E—_fF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT  AR%¥Trn  ARET:H
(Restated)
(mE=5)
Cash and bank balances Be RRITER 62,721 144,082 575 1,434
Time deposits EHER 16,064 26,799 - -
78,785 170,881 575 1,434
Less: Pledged time deposits: W EERE AN
Pledged for short-term bank SRR B IEER
borrowings = (600) - _
Pledged for bills payable TN REERK R (5,361) (8,187) - -
Pledged for letters of credit HERBEER (6,011) (15,393) - -
Pledged for contract bidding HBIR AL EHA (4,692) (2,619) = -
(16,064) (26,799) = =
Cash and cash equivalents Re KREZEED 62,721 144,082 575 1,434
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of RIEBKR  AEBUARBETA
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to REDzRSRRBRTEHBRBARE
RMB45,385,000 (2012: RMB110,190,000). The RMB is not freely 45385000L( — T ——F: AR®
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland 110,190,0007T) - AR TAIEAREERR
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration Hih &% - A BEBEHBEAHMINEE
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, BIEFIDRCEEE - EiERMNEESEHRTE)
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies C AREE R ERERELEINERET 2
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. RITHARB LB EMER o
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITHESRBARTERMNEZZHF
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are KERERA B, - RITAEBREEIRERER
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of MMEEBRIF B RT B BAVIRTT ©

default.



(Wl HL Technology Group Limited e SiRHT EEE AR A R

Notes to Financial Statements

SUh 5 e W ik

31 December 2013
—EF—ZF+-A=+—H

27. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH

27. A BARBFAGEEEREALZ

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

EERAE

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—EBE—=F —EF——F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE
(Restated)
(i=&E5)
Assets of Rituo Automotive classified as B ESEARFE
held for sale FEZEE - 119,230
Contingent consideration classified as SAREDERBERS
held for sale - 18,395
- 137,625
Liabilities associated with assets B EHFEEAEAHC AR
held for sale - 69,613

0On 20 November 2012, Weihai Electronic entered into an equity transfer
agreement with = #f (Mr. Wang Xiang), who was the non-controlling
shareholder of Rituo Automotive. On 7 January 2013, Weihai Electronic
entered into a supplement agreement with Mr. Wang Xiang, 1
(Mr. Wang Weiguo), a non-controlling shareholder of Rituo
Automotive, and Rituo Automotive. The aforesaid agreements
hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agreements”.
According to the Agreements, Weihai Electronic disposed of its
55% equity interest in Rituo Automotive to Mr. Wang Xiang at a
total consideration of RMB58,600,000 (the “Rituo Automotive
Disposal”).

On 20 November 2012, Weihai Electronic entered into an
acquisition agreement with Rituo Automotive to purchase a 100%
equity interest of X2 B = BB R A F (Tianjin Rituo High
Technology Co., Ltd., “Rituo Technology”) at a consideration of
RMB15,000,000 (the “Rituo Technology Acquisition”). Rituo
Technology is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Rituo Automotive and
these companies are collectively referred to as the “Tianjin Rituo
Group”. The Rituo Technology Acquisition is subject to the
completion of the Rituo Automotive Disposal.

N-TE——F+—HF=-+H BEESEFH
THEE(BBRREZIFFIERBRR) T
YBRhERERE R —=F— A+t
H BBETEHIHELEE  TEBEELEE
(BBERREZIFERBRE) RAHRSE
RN T - IR EERTEA (%
ZHml o BEZE DS BEETHE
HERBHTEA % KT TR E -
RIB A AR 58,600,0007T ([ BHR5ERE
Bl o

R-ZE——F+—HA_+H BBETHE
Bin/RE s L E R - UEBARETMH
hefEERAR(BAERE]D 2
100% A% 4 - KB & A K # 15,000,000 7T
(TEAREEWE] - BREsR AT
REE2ENBAR  ZE/aSEE X
EHRER] - B AR REAFR R
ABEEETENKE  HEEE -
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27. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)
The assets and liabilities attributable to Rituo Automotive have
been reclassified as assets and liabilities held for sale and are
separately presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2012.

Details of the assets of Rituo Automotive classified as held for sale
as at 31 December 2012 were as follows:

$bh 5 Ak ¢ B

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff+=HA=1+—H

27. R BABEGEEEAHZ
EEREEBE®

R-T——F+-_A=1+—0 ' BHR=E
BEBEERBRBECREN D EAREFE
BENAMRE  UNEEMBERREIHE
5

RZF—_F+-A=+—0  BEAE
NERBATEZAEFBOT :

2012

=E==tF

RMB’000

AREFIT

Property, plant and equipment Wz - B MR 6,083
Other intangible assets EmEREE 10,976
Goodwill EES 258
Deferred tax assets EEFE I A 2 2
Inventories e 77,742
Trade and other receivables B 5N E bR IE 15,334
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 8,835
Assets of Rituo Automotive classified as held for sale B AESEAREEFE 2 EE 119,230

Details of the liabilities directly associated with Rituo Automotive
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2012 were as

R-TE——F+-A=+—H HEHEAH
MABEEMEsEEERFEZAGBZ

follows: BT ¢

2012
—E——F
RMB’000
AREET T
Trade and other payables B 5 K EAh T FIE 55,802
Tax payable RS K 111
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERITREMEER 13,700

Liabilities associated with Rituo Automotive HERTEEMAENEA
classified as held for sale REFEZAR 69,613

On 12 January 2013, the Rituo Automotive Disposal and the Rituo
Technology Acquisition were completed with the approval by the
shareholders of the Company. For details of the Rituo Automotive
Disposal, please refer to note 35(b) to the financial statements.

R-—ZE—=F—A+=-A BRSEEE
PEEEASESES T AN SR E
Ko BEERMABERE B B2HH
TE3RKRMIFE35(0) °



(Bl HL Technology Group Limited e AR = E B R A A

Notes to Financial Statements

SUh 5 e W ik

31 December 2013
—EF—ZF+-A=+—H

28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES AND OTHER 28.
LONG-TERM PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables of the Group, based on the
invoice date, as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

EZREREMRRAEMRY
FEAS AR
TRESIAREEE 5 0 B R
RIZBE T A HATE BRI 51T -

Group
REE
2013 2012
—E—=F =EE—==4F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREFIT
(Restated)
(F&&=751)
Within 3 months =R®MAR 379,234 391,376
310 12 months =Z+={@A 221,139 193,418
110 2 years —EMFE 37,548 40,506
Over 2 years HBIBRE 21,412 378
659,333 625,678
Less: current portion B BNERER (D (659,333) (617,981)
Non-current portion SERNEREB 10 - 7,697

The Group normally obtains credit terms ranging from 1 to 3
months from its suppliers. The long-term portion of trade payables
was related to telecommunication equipment purchased and is to
be paid to the suppliers with final inspection dates ranging from 1
to 2 years. Trade payables are unsecured and interest-free.

Included in the trade and bills payables are trade payables of
RMB44,057,000 (2012: Nil) due to fellow subsidiaries which are
repayable on credit terms similar to those offered by fellow
subsidiaries to their major customers.

An aged analysis of the bills payable of the Group, based on the
issuance date, as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Within 3 months —EAAR
3to 6 months =z=NEA

AEE-RERERGETNF ==
AMEEY - B 5 RNFURR R EIEN () E
BEESARBER LA XNTHE

B MERRABPNF—EZRF - EHE
NHRBEREERARLE

EONZREMNRBELERRARKBR
RIZ B SR FIEA R 44,057,000 (=
L& &) ARARMNBARRMH
FHEBEFPZHAUEEHES -

TR AEEENEREREHRIZ
1T B HE LA BRER AT -

2012
—E——F

RMB'000
AREEFIT
(RENE]E))
(#eE5l)

40,013 23,891
4,830 24,551

44,843 48,442
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28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES AND OTHER
LONG-TERM PAYABLES (continued)
As at 31 December 2013, the bills payable are secured by pledged
bank deposits of RMB5,361,000 (2012: RMB8,187,000) and bills
receivable of RMB2,028,000 (2012: Nil).

28. EZ R EBENRREMRE
P TRIE ()
N-ZTE—=F+-—A=+—8 ' ENEE
mAERIRITFRARE 5,361,000 (=
T——4F: AR¥S8,187,0007T) M EUKE
BEARE202800C (= ——4F : )

R o
29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. BEhENIENESEHR

Group

REHE
2013 2012
—E—=F e =
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%ET R AREFIT
(RENEIET))
(re=51)
Advances from customers TEU R P SRIE 37,333 26,799
Accruals FEETE R 9,299 34,561

Payables for acquisition of property, WY ~ BB &

plant and equipment XfE 2 FERT5RIE 41,000 9,032
Payroll payable JENTE 13,566 23,232
Other taxes payable HihENfiE 116,626 72,835
Other payables H fth FE ST 5RIE 15,927 15,619
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERHR RSB A FZRIB 1,064 -
234,815 182,078

Other payables and accruals are interest-free and have an

average term of three months.

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are repayable on credit
terms similar to those offered by fellow subsidiaries to third

parties.

HtpENFRBEREFERRRE - FHE
THR=EA -

FENS R R /B A RIRIRBR R R KT B A
ARETE=STZRLUEEHREE -



(b¥] HL Technology Group Limited e SiiRHT £ E AR A R

Notes to Financial Statements

SUh 5 e W ik

31 December 2013
—EF—ZF+-A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

2013
—E-ZF

Contractual

interest rate Maturity
CEES HH
(%)

Current EIf:i]

Bank loans — unsecured RTER— BER 5.24~7.80 2014
—E-QNE

Bank loans — secured ROER—BHER 0.68~6.60 2014
—E-QE

Other loans — unsecured HiEZ — EH A 7.70~8.00 2014
—E-QE

Total et

Notes:

(a) Certain of the Group's bank loans are secured by:

(i) mortgages over the Group's property, plant and equipment, which
had an aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB 181,687,000 (2012: RMB325,736,000);

(ii) mortgages over the Group’s prepaid land lease payments situated in
Mainland China, which had an carrying value at the end of the
reporting period of approximately RMB33,919,000 (2012:
RMB43,141,000);

(iii) none of trade receivables (2012: approximately RMB58,502,000)
pledged to banks at the end of the reporting period; and

(iv) the discount of certain of the Group's bills receivable amounting to
RMB1,000,000 (2012: RMB15,845,000);

(b) Except for the secured bank loan of US$2,000,000 (2012: US$14,536,000) and
unsecured bank loan of US$8,587,000 (2012: US$19,214,000), which are
denominated in US$, all borrowings are denominated in RMB.

In addition, the Group’s fellow subsidiaries has guaranteed certain of the
Group's bank loans up to RMB279,530,000 (2012: Nil) as at the reporting
period.

30. AFRRITRHEMES

2012 (Restated)
“E- (5 %5)
Contractual
interest rate Maturity
AHHE 5
RMB'000 (%) RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

207,694  5.60~7.80 2013 191,664
—2-=F

262,250  0.25~7.80 2013 671,002
“2-ZF

155,262 6.00~8.50 2013 203,086
—E-=f

625,206 1,065,752

GE

@  AEEETRITERETISEER

@) AEBEYE  BFERREERS XR
SHAEEBREORARRE
181,687,0007C(—Z T ——F: AR
325,736,0007¢T)

(i) AEBMNRFPREANWEN T HES 2
BB RBEPREEENAARE
33919,0007C( =2 — —F: AR
43,141,0007T) :

@iy  H|ERR - BEREFEYFECR
— =% : ) AR ¥ 58,502,000 7T ) 1
WPRIT K

vy AEBEETEKEBEZITERARYE
100000 (=T —=—F: ARK
15,845,000 7T) °

(b)  KRUAEITEHEZ B HEHERTTE 5 2,000,0003%
JC(=Z— =4 : 14,536,000 7 ) K KRR

17 & 3X8,587,000% jT( = & — = %F:
19,214,000 75) 51 - FTEEEHAARB T
fg °

LS REBEBER  AEERRHBARE
ERAESEETETENR  2ESRAAR
279,530,000 L (ZB——4 : &) -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

$bh 5 Ak ¢ B

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff+=HA=1+—H

S
B

Authorised: SE
2,500,000,000 (2012: 2,500,000,000) 2,500,000,000 % (=Z— =% :
ordinary shares of US$0.02 each 2,500,000,000 f%) =R E{E US$50,000,000 US$50,000,000
0.02FE Lz @K 50,000,000 3 T 50,000,000 7T
Issued and fully paid: BRTRHR :
720,000,000 (2012: 720,000,000) 720,000,000 (= ZF——4 :
ordinary shares of US$0.02 each 720,000,000 %) =A% EI{E US$14,400,000 US$14,400,000
0.02F T2 TR 14,400,000 3 7T 14,400,000 % 7T
Equivalent to HER RMB97,401,000 RMB97,401,000

AK¥97,401,000Tt AR 97,401,0007C

32. EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

On 30 September 2008, an employees’ share scheme (the
“Employee Share Scheme”) was adopted by the Company.
Pursuant to the Employee Share Scheme, on 8 October 2008,
Chenlin International (@ company owned by Mr. Chi) transferred a
total of 6,280,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Employee
Shares”) to Hongxin Joint Stock Company Limited, a trustee for
certain directors of the Company and employees (the “Employee
Shareholders”), in recognition of the Employee Shareholders’
contributions to the growth of the Group at a consideration of
RMB6.37 each, of which RMB2.37 each was paid by each of the
Employee Shareholders with their own funds and RMB4.00 each
was paid by Weihai Electronic and B /&M BAMELREE B R A A
(Weihai Honglin Wire & Cable Co., Ltd., “Weihai Cable”, a
subsidiary of the Group) respectively, as bonus and subsidy to the
Employee Shareholders. Hongxin Joint Stock Company Limited
holds the Employee Shares in trust for the Employee Shareholders
pursuant to a trust deed dated 28 May 2010 (the “Trust Deed”).

The Employee Share Scheme and the Trust Deed imposed certain
restrictions on the Employee Shares and the details are
summarised in the paragraphs headed “Employee Shares” under
Section Ill “Further Information about Directors, Management and
Staff” in Appendix VI “Statutory and General Information” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 3 November 2010.

32. BERGEE

RZZEZNFNA=TH  KAFRKE
BBt E([EERMETE ] - RIFE
EROE R-TENF+ANB B
MBERCEEEMBERANAR) K AT
6,280,000 Fx N A A E A (BB 1)
ARBERARK6IITHEHETIER
MBERAR (ERARRETEZERER
([REBRDZEFEA)  ARBEER
REASEERNER  BEBRRET
SNERARK237T - MBIERAR
AT BB E T RAEENE
RAEIBBMAHEREEBRAF ([H
BERDN  FREERRWIEL N
Rt - RE_F-FTFAA—T/\BNE
ARZH(ERRDD - BABRNHARA
AIAERTAREEBRRFAERERD

BEBRMASRERZOHERERNE
HTRE - FERARARBABEHRLS-F
—ZFE+ - A=ZHNAKRERMEN DE
EN—RER | F=MARES &1
BRETMHEMER [BERMD] —F -
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32.

ZF+-A=+—H

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (continued)

Details of the movements in the Employee Shares awarded and
the outstanding balances at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

32. BERME &)

REEHR - BEHEB RO FMAREE
PREVEENF BT

Number of outstanding
Employee Share balances

BITHENZEERGEREE
Directors  Employees
5= 8
At 1 January 2012 R—_ZT—=—F—HF—H 2,516,902 34,274,020
Transfer* B * (1,486,471) 1,486,471
At 31 December 2012 and at 1 January 2013 RZZE——F+=-F=+—H
ER=—F—=F—H—H 1,030,431 35,760,491
Disposed of by the Employee Shareholders FANHEEREHE
during the year (1,030,431) (35,760,491)
At 31 December 2013 R-TE—=F+_-_A=+—H = =
= During the year ended 31 December 2012, one director resigned but & BE-_T——F+-_A=+—BLFE ' —

remained as an employee of the Group.

The estimated fair value of the Employee Shares at the date of
grant was approximately RMB42,187,000, or approximately
RMB6.72 each. The payment of RMB4.00 each made by Weihai
Electronic and Weihai Cable as bonus and subsidy to the
Employee Shareholders has been charged to “share awards
reserve” in equity during the year ended 31 December 2008.

The difference between the fair value of RMB6.72 each and
RMB2.37 each which was paid by each of the Employee
Shareholders, amounting to approximately RMB27,303,000, would
be charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the service periods of the service contracts for those
Employee Shareholders from October 2008 to September 2013.

RERRHE  HEBEAEEZES °

BERNOHREBHBHZGFEHRAFENA
AR#42187,0007C * sk EFIRL AARE
6727 - BUSETRESSRIEHERA
REEA00TTZ AR - 1EBIEBREMIEL
@i EREBEE_ZTZTNEFE+_A
=+ —BUEFE#E= ROBEFEE] A
gk -

RFEERAREOT2ZTIRERARY
27 I EWEREERREAXN - 4
RARME27,303,0007T - MERENRZZ
BERRBRBEOZREFHA_TE
NETAE_Z-—=FAARBRERHA
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32. EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (continued) 32. EERKBFE )
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recognised HE_ZT—=F+_A=1+—HLFE"
share-based payments of approximately RMB203,000 (2012: NEB R B IR (0 RS XA
RMB3,762,000) in relation to the Employee Shares. THAARE203000T(ZFE—=—F: A

K#3,762,0007T) °

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Employee Shares HE2—T—=F+_BA=1+—HBItFE -
were all disposed of by the directors or employees of the Group. EERMHUEEASEEEESEERE °
33. RESERVES 33. f#1E
(@) Group (@) #=&£H
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements REBRAFENBEFEZHE
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the SRR HEEHRU IS HRERFE LT =88
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 87 to B oD BeR 2 o

88 of the financial statements.

(b) Company (b) ZERAF

Share Share Capital Retained
capital premium reserve eamings Total
T BRipaE BAfE REEF @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETL ARBTL AREBTR  ARETR

Balanceat 1January2012  ~ R-Z-——F—F—H

L 97,401 429,549 106,715 50,231 683,896
Profit and total comprehensive R FI & 2 E K= E%
income for the year = = = 10,390 10,390
At 31 December 2012 R-E——%F+-f
=i—F 97,401 429,549* 106,715* 60,621* 694,286

Loss and total comprehensive EREE R 2 EER

loss for the year kA - - - (39,066) (39,066)
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%+-8
=t+—H 97,401 429,549 106,715* 21,555* 655,220
= These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB557,819,000 o ZERBEERBEARRMBHRREF
(2012: RMB596,885,000) in the Company's statement of financial A R #557,819,0000( = & — — & :

position. AR 596,885,000 7T ) 2 [ ©
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(@) Acquisition of the entire equity interest in Rosy
Sun
On 31 January 2013, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Rosy Sun, the parent of the Rosy Sun Group.
The Acquisition has been accounted for using the pooling of
interests method. The consolidated financial statements EFEAERAEANR - &8 M HRE
include the results of the Rosy Sun Group since 13 June BIERosy SUNEEBE =T —ZF <
2012. BT=HUARMESE - .

34. ¥%456f
(@) UYiERosy Sun 2P #E

RZEB-—=F—-—A=+—H" ' %&
& U B Rosy Sun (Rosy Sun s &
N 2HEEITRA - WEEE

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
Rosy Sun Group as at 13 June 2012 were:

Rosy SINEE R =—ZF—=—F <A
T=ZHZAEENEERABRAYT

(ER (N
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
W RERF B TR
AFE
RMB'000
ARET T
Property, plant and equipment E Y& 59,922
Prepaid land lease payments Faft LS 45,085
Other intangible assets HhEpEE 206,128
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 15,000
Deferred tax assets BLETIBEE 4,132
Inventories FE 292
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REBREKK 222,823
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B FRIE « e RE MBI 228,911
Pledged deposits BTN 2,118
Cash and cash equivalents RERFECEEY 13,857
Trade and bills payables B 5 REREMNK (91,376)
Other payables and accruals E b B 5RIE R ERT B A (34,380)
Tax payable FERTRR R (8,325)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STERITREMEE (266,196)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBAE (16,014)
Government grants AT B (14,219)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BEAFEERE 2 T EZR
BEFEERE 367,758
Goodwill arising on acquisition W B RS R A 2 B 61,146
Purchase consideration transferred by Mr. Chi BEAEBTREIE=F2
to an independent third party BERE 428,904
Less: purchase consideration transferred by B AR BRI E RS T
the Group to Mr. Chi for the Acquisition BEEZEERE 442,234
Charged to equity B =R (13,330)
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of the entire equity interest in Rosy
Sun (Continued)

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the
expected synergies and other benefits from combining the
assets and activities of the Rosy Sun Group with those of
the Group.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB6,227,000 for
this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in administrative expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

No cash settlement was made up to 31 December 2013, and
as the consolidated financial statements have been restated
due to the Acquisition, cash inflows amounting to
RMB13,857,000 were included in the statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Acquisition of a 54% equity interest in Chuan
Sheng Company

On 31 July 2013, the Group acquired the 54% equity interest
of Chuan Sheng Company from third parties. Chuan Sheng
Company was incorporated in Taiwan and engaged in
product design of wireless communications machinery and
equipment, machinery installation, sale of and provision of
services relating to IT software. The acquisition was made to
expand its market share of signal transmission and
connectivity products in Taiwan. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the form of cash,
amounting to NT$3,096,000.

$bh 5 k¢ M

31 December 2013
—EF—=Ff+=HA=+—H

34. ¥ &56t@w)

(@

(b)

U & Rosy Sun = IR #E (42)

B EREEE ZRNA HFRosy Sun
SEEAEECEEREBAES
Z TE T 173 A 2 R ELA R o

AEBERSANBBEEEERFK
RAR6,227,0007 © :Z2EXFHK
REXZH Wit ARAIBERZIT
BRI ©

HE—_ZT—=F+-A=+—8"
BMEELHRSEE  MARGEY
BHmExEWESEMES - ReR
AZE A R #13,857,000 T 2 5 A&
EZT——HF+ZA=1+—HIHF
EZHRERER -

Wi )l 2 8] 54% B A

R-ZB—=F+tA=+—H &&
B A% =77 W I Tt & 7] 54% ik
o A RRRGBEMAL - %
SERBAKMSRRENE DR
AP EELEK  HERRERESR
MR (AR R AR TS © SR TAUWRE 5 £ 18
AR BERRERMERERTS
2B WRBZEEREMREEX
i 2B/ B 3,096,0007T °
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 34. ¥ &6t
(b) Acquisition of 54% equity interest in Chuan (b) WEBJIFA D TEI54%MRE (&)
Sheng Company (Continued)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of JIARBN —_E—=FtA=1+—
Chuan Sheng Company as at 31 July 2013 were: AR EHpEERBEAFEN
T~
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
W B I E fERR
AYE
RMB’'000
ARET R
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B R 210
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B FRIE - e RE M EIEIE 49
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEY 265
Trade and bills payables E 5 MEE RN (4)
Other payables and accruals E e SIA R FERT & B (38)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value LA FESR 2 T E R
BESEERE 482
Non-controlling interests FEPE (220)
262
Goodwill arising on acquisition B E A 2 P B 370
Satisfied by cash LAIR & #5415 632
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the BRAKENBATIZEER
acquisition of the subsidiary is as follows: DHTEAT
Cash consideration HERE 632
Cash and bank balances acquired Frliig 2 & R IRTT 48R (265)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents Re kR EEYRLFE
included in cash flows from STAREEEFTS IR G

investing activities 367




Annual Report 2013 ¢ —E— =43 k3]

Notes to Financial Statements

35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Disposal of the entire equity interest in
Sumptuous Wealth

On 9 June 2013, the Company entered into an agreement
with Jia Ya Developments Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and wholly owned by Mr.
Chi, a shareholder and a director of the Company, and Mr.
Chi (as guarantor for the Purchaser) for the sale and
purchase of the entire issued share capital of Sumptuous
Wealth (the "Disposal”). The Disposal was approved by the
shareholders on 17 July 2013 and finally completed on 26
November 2013.

$bh 5 Ak ¢ B

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff+=HA=1+—H

35. HEKE QT

(@)

HESM2IRE

R-ZZE—=FXANB ARFH
ERERARQA(—EAREEE
BREE((RBERRES )M
Bz AARBBEEZEER)
—EERRERAAREFELEL(E
TERAN)FTLHZE  REERNE
ExwezatBTRA(ZE
B ZREEBRRN_-_FT—=F
TtATEBRERRE  &ZER=
E—=F+—HA-+t/RBZEX-

2013
—E—=F
RMB’'000
AR¥BT T
Net assets disposed of: BEHEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment W - B RFE 379,370
Prepaid land lease payments FEft LS 8,108
Goodwill EES 370
Other intangible assets HitnEmpEE 1,336
Prepayments for acquiring land L B + 3 2 FE AT IR 32,700
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment — #1% - & E & 324 2 B E0E 1,612
Investment in an associate & —[EE QA 3,190
Inventories ES <y 171,946
Trade and bills receivables B 5 M E IR W 495,051
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR -~ e R EAERFE 65,295
Derivative financial instruments PTEERIA 694
Pledged deposits BHERER 9,704
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEEY 79,214
Trade and bills payables B REBEMNK (259,210)
Other payables and accruals HEA R E R ERTE A (79,950)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STERITREMEE (417,259)
Tax payable FER TR (3,619)
Non-controlling interests FEFE bl 95
Reclassification of foreign currency EIN D BIMNERKE
translation reserve (288)
488,359
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RH B ARz W 2,858
491,217
Satisfied by: PAT B 75 HAETE
Offsetting a promissory note payable (note 36) I S5 P A5 R R R 4 (BT % 36) 491,217
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35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEMB AR @)
(b) Disposal of a 55% equity interest in Rituo (b) HERBHSRES5%RE

Automotive

On 12 January 2013, the Group disposed of all its equity
interest in Rituo Automotive in exchange for, among other
considerations, a 45% equity interest in Rituo Technology,
which is accounted for as an acquisition of non-controlling
interests with a notional consideration measured at fair
value of RMB11,564,000. A loss on disposal of Rituo
Automotive of RMB396,000, including the loss effect arising
from the waiver of a receivable for profit guarantee
amounting to RMB18,396,000, is then recognised in profit or
loss. Further details of the disposal and acquisition were set
out in the Company’s announcement made on 20 November
2012 and circular dated 24 December 2012.

R-_E—=F—H+—-8 ' ~&H
HEERBHRAREZFERE - I
BR(EEEARE) R R
A5% RS B O\ BR A& U B 4 ) A
W BATENEZHREREAA
R #11,564,0007C & B#HSE
E5 18 A KR # 396,000 7T B 14 1A 18 25
R BERE—FERKFKIB L m
MNRBEEZEEZEHNARE
18,396,000 7T ° 1 & R Ui~ # —
SHBHERARTINR T ——F
+—AZt+HFEZAGRBEHE
—E——F+ A t+IBZEK-

2013
—E-=fF
RMB’'000
AR%ETR
Assets of a disposal group classified as PERBEEFEZHE
held for sale ARl EE
Property, plant and equipment VI - B RS 5,015
Other intangible assets HitnmpEE 10,976
Trade receivables B Z IR 13,756
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FARNTRIE -~ 11E REM R KFIE 62,652
Inventories FE 30,038
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEEY 8,835
131,272
Liabilities directly associated with assets HAOBAREGHELEERE
classified as held for sale HEZAE
Trade payables =) ARG (35,765)
Other payables and accruals H A ENRIE R e & (10,409)
Tax payable FERTRR R (111)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ESRTREMEER (13,700)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIB A & (2,957)
(62,942)
Net assets of a disposal group DEARAEFEZHEMERZ
classified as held for sale ZEFE 68,330
Goodwill (EES 258
Non-controlling interests FE4EE | M 2 (31,424)
37,164
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEWNBARZEE (396)
36,768
Satisfied by: AR5 A -
Cash e 43,600
Fair value of non-controlling interests in B m R IEE sl s 2
Rituo Technology NT 11,564
Waiver of a receivable for profit guarantee Nt — SRR IA 2 i FR & (18,396)

Total consideration

BRME

36,768
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35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEMB AR @)
(c) Disposal of the entire equity interest in Wuhan (c) HERESFEIRE

Electronic

On 27 September 2013, the Group disposed of the 25% and RZZE—=FhLA=-_++H K&
75% equity interests in Wuhan Electronic to U&T Electronics & 5 Rl H & BOE B F 25% & 75% A%
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. and Ez 2 &3 EF AR A A ("Rongfa ETWEEF (BE) BRAFREG
Electronic”) at considerations of RMB1,250,000 and BREBTETERAA(ELESE
RMB3,750,000, respectively. F1) - RES B AARM 1,250,000

T AR 3,750,000 7T °

2013
—EB—=F
RMB’'000
AR¥T T
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETFHE:
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R EBEUBGK 22,914
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEIFRIE e REAERGIE 35
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEFEEY 4,621
Trade and bills payables B 5 REREMNK (22,609)
Other payables and accruals H At eI IR R ERTE A (146)
Tax payable FERF K 185
5,000
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HWBAR ZEE =
5,000
Satisfied by: AR RS -

Cash Re 5,000
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35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEMB AR @)
(d) Disposal of a 60% equity interest in Weihai (d) HERBERS60%KRE
Dongchen
On 26 November 2013, the Group disposed of a 60% equity RZTE—=F+—H=Z+AR<H =K
interest in Weihai Dongchen to Li Ming, an individual third EBHEREEE60%MIETARE
party of the Group, at a consideration of RMB3,000,000. B 2B E =77l Ming” REEAA

ER# 3,000,000 7T, °

2013
—E-=F
RMB’000
AR¥ TR

Net assets disposed of: BEHEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB REE 77
Inventories T8 4,483
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEFRIE © 1=e REAEWFIE 2,429
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEEY 207
Trade and bills payables B REB RN (2,103)
Other payables and accruals HAn e R E R ERTE A (19)
Non-controlling interests FE4EE | M 2 (1,469)
3,605
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBARZEE (605)
3,000

Satisfied by: AR5 R A8 -

Cash e 3,000
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35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(e) Disposal of the entire equity interest in Suzhou

Huachun

Pursuant to an agreement amongst Changshu Connecting-
Technology and a non-controlling shareholder =T %= §% 15
7 EFABR A A (Wujiang Huarui Precision Electronics Co.,
Ltd.*, “Wujiang Huarui”) on 17 December 2012, the Group
disposed of its 51% equity interests in & N ZE =52 E T
B PR A F] (Suzhou Huachun Precision Electronics Co., Ltd.f,
“Suzhou Huachun”) to Wujiang Huarui at a total cash
consideration of RMB10,200,000. The disposal of Suzhou
Huachun was completed on 26 December 2012.

$bh 5 Ak ¢ B

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff+=HA=1+—H

35. HEMB AR @)

(e)

HEHRMEZ 2 IRRE

R IE 8 2E R Bl & — B FEIE IR AR
RRIEHEZETARRAF(R
TEH DR -_ZT——F+-H++
HElM 2 % - ASEBE R SaRMNE
FRRRE T AR AR 51%MEE ([ E
MEZ]) FRITESN - BRESNE
A A R 110,200,000 7T © & & &M
EEN T+ -H=+"H

=

2012
—E—_F
RMB’000
ARBT T

Net assets disposed of: EHEEETFHE:
Property, plant and equipment LE Y& 10,983
Other intangible assets HithmpEE 12
Inventories FE 4,872
Trade and bills receivables Z 5 MEE R 33,874
Cash and cash equivalents RERIFCEEY 569
Trade and bills payables B REBEMNK (21,241)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTESRITREMER (9,069)
Non-controlling interests FE4%E il M 2 (9,800)
10,200
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBARZEE =
10,200

Satisfied by: AR5 R A8 -
Cash Re 10,200
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35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEMB AR (@)
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in EHRHENBATIZHEERSZEEY
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MEFRE AT -

2013 2012
—E—=F — = —&F

RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR

Cash received 2R 4 8,000 1,470
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERE KA CEEY (92,877) (569)
Net (outflow)/inflow of cash and cash EBRALE—HRBARZ
equivalents in respect of the disposal ReRkReEED
of a subsidiary (), WA FRE (84,877) 901
# The English names are for identification purposes only. & EX AT ERER

36. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. FEBREMEKRME
OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transaction (@ ETEHREXH
On 26 November 2013, the Group disposed of a subsidiary, RZE—=F+—A=+H" 'K
Sumptuous Wealth, with a consideration of RMB491,217,000 SELE—HNBARSRKTEL
(note 35(a)) to Mr. Chi by offsetting a promissory note £ REBERAREA91,217,0007T (B
payable to Mr. Chi. The promissory note was issued by the F£35@) AR AEEEMNELE
company to Mr. Chi for the acquisition of Rosy Sun Group, ZEHEE o AR ZEBREARAA
which was early redeemed as a result of the disposal of BT TEEAE - F UL Rosy Sun
Sumptuous Wealth, and a notional interest of B MEALERALHERBME
RMB82,237,000 (note (7)) was recognised to the statement FEER - AMRAANFEERZRER
of profit or loss during the year. Z&F B AR 82,237,000 7T (M =E

7) e
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. IREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RERE AR - BT RS R R 0 S B 2 s oA
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: aEnT

Group
ES 4L
2013 2012

—E—=F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR¥ET AREEFIT

Guarantees on banking facilities provided to ~ [F ZHIEB A R &R~

fellow subsidiaries RITRIE 2 IR 403,195 -
38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. EEHEA
Details of the Group's bank loans and bills payable which are DNAEBEEFERBZAEERITER
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in notes 14, 15, MEMERFBHR S RRME14
and 24 to the financial statements. 15 %24 -
39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 39. REFHLAIE
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had total future R =FR-—T——F+-A=+—A8"
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases REB IR E RIEFRET AT R L ETHL
in respect of offices and buildings falling due as follows: BARRKEESEF 2 ZEHAWT -
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—g—= —E——F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARBTFT
(Restated)
(F2=E%1))
Within one year —FR 3,046 2,579
In the second to fifth years, inclusive “ERAFA(BREEEMRT) 397 3,999
3,443 6,578
As at 31 December 2013, included in the Group’s commitments of RZZE—=F+=A=+—H AEEX
RMB1,872,000 were provided to a fellow subsidiary, with similar ERRERETFT —HBEWNE QAN A
terms to choose offered by the fellow subsidiary to third parties R#¥1,872,0007T - WiEEBHRZWEA
(2012: Nil). AIERRETE=FTHNEUGR(ZE

——4F ) e
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40. COMMITMENTS 40. &I
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note R b SCBT 39 5l 2 48 & A A AR S
39 above, the Group’s capital commitments as at the end of the REBARERARZ BREAENT ¢

reporting period were as follows:

Group
rEH
2013 2012
—EBE—=fF —E——4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARBTET
(Restated)
(k&%)
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI BARBE -
Property, plant and equipment Wz BB RFE 25,835 64,230
Authorised but not contracted for: EREBRETH
Acquisition of equity investments IR A & = 533,053

25,835 597,283
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 4. BEARGRBERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in the financial BB REREM IO RN ZZHN £
statements, the Group had the following transactions with its 7N B B s T AR S
related parties during the year:
(a)

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT

An associate: —fEEE AR
Sales of machineries SHE 2R 0] 1,019 -
Fellow subsidiaries: EESNENGIE
Sales of products SHEEm (ii) 16,855 -
Purchases of products BEEM (iii) 23,806 -
Commission fee paid B AL (iv) 141 -
Rental and utility services fee paid B4 RKEE (v) 213 -
Fee for use of supplier codes paid B fTHtERIGFEHEE (vi) 72 -
Fee for use of supplier codes B HEEREERE
received (Vi) 110 -
Guarantee charges paid BEERE (vii) 714 -
Guarantee charges received BUIERE (vii) 806 -
Notes: B E

(i) The sales to an associate were made according to the published
prices and conditions offered to the major customers of the Group.

(if) The sales to the fellow subsidiaries were made according to the
published prices and conditions offered to the major customers of the
Group.

(iii) The purchases from the fellow subsidiaries were made according to
the published prices and conditions offered by the fellow subsidiaries
to their major customers.

(iv) The commission fee arose from the sale of power cord arranged by a
fellow subsidiary in Taipei, which in return paid a commission based
on the net profit of the transaction at rates ranging from 3% to 17%
arranged by the fellow subsidiary by reference to the terms by the
fellow subsidiary offered to an independent third party.

(ii)

(iif)

- E A RETNHERD - Ty
NRETFAEEEIERFHEAME
& B MG AF KR o

RMRRAMBARETHHEES T
RERTAREEIRZEZFPHE AME
1R B MG BRI -

AR RMWE R RETHRBES - T
NRARWBARREEZRP RHEHR
B AMRER RIGHE SRR -

e BIRN G 1LRZHE A RREE
THERGHEE  EARE I
ERBRMBERRAREIRZ S Z2FH
BENFI%E17%H[EE - HEZ2ER
RMBARG T —RBIUF =77 W%

=
TA
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

V) The rental and service fees were charged based on the direct costs
incurred. The charges are substantially in line with the fellow
subsidiary to third parties. Further details of the operating lease

commitments are included in note 39.

(vi) The fee for use of supplier codes charges were based on 1% of the
sales/purchase amount for the purpose of using the supplier code to
sell the relevant products to the ultimate customers. The charges are
substantially in line with those comparable transactions in the market.

(viij  The guarantee charges were based on 1.92% of the guaranteed
amount on an annual basis for the services provided by the fellow
subsidiaries with reference to the comparable transactions in the

market.

(viiiy ~ The guarantee charges were based on 2.4% of the guaranteed
amount on an annual basis for the guarantee services to the fellow
subsidiaries with reference to the comparable transactions in the

market.

Other transactions with related parties:

() During the year, the Group acquired the Rosy Sun
Group, from the controlling shareholder of the
Company, Mr. Chi, at a consideration of HK$650
million, based on arm’s length negotiations after
taking into account a number of factors. Further
details of the transaction are included in note 34(a) to

the financial statements.

(i) During the year, the Group disposed of a subsidiary,
Sumptuous Wealth Limited, to Jia Ya Developments
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI") and wholly owned by Mr. Chi, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, at a
consideration of HK$621 million. Further details of the
transaction are included in note 35(a) to the financial

Statements.

(i)  During the year, the fellow subsidiaries provided to
the Group certain guarantees on banking facilities
obtained by the Group of RMB446,000,000 (2012: Nil)

as at the end of the reporting period.

41. BEARGRBERZ (@)

(@)

(b)

(&

MiaE - (4)

(vii)

(viii)

HELREEEREBEMELIEEXRA
Bk - W E AR FERRFRHEBARM
E=WEHE B LEREREZ
BEZHHE SR HIES9

HEFRBEABRREHEE BE
B2 %8 EEEENBELAHA
HEPRBRRREFHERRER
B AR EEMS EZRERS K

RRERRERRRMNE R FRKR
B2 REM1.2%RFAE - HBEZE
M EZHERS -

RRERZRERRRNE QB RMRR
BRI 2 REBEFE2A%IRFAE - HB
2EMBLZAERS °

HEETNHEMRS

i)

(if)

(iii)

FA - AEERAR R
HIR AW EERosy SUNEE
X & 650,000,0005% 7T 2 A F
BEEHEREE  WEskaeT
Ex - X7 B M IEER 5%
R 5k 34(a) °

FR - AEBIEMBARRM
BERARIETERERARAD
A HR—MREBERRE
ETRBHBRES]) M
FXAZ I B AN R AR AR BRI 5
E2EBERNNTE - HERE
#%621,000,0007% 7T ° X 5 H
fHFBENMBRRME
35(@a) °

FR - FRHBARREREH
RAAEERAEEES 2R
TRl E A R # 446,000,000 7T
RHEETER(ZZE—ZF:
) o
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND M. BELTRGRBERS (#)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Other transactions with related parties: (b) EHEAEFMNEMS : (&)

(Continued)

(v) During the year, the Group provided to the fellow (iv) FA - AEBRFEHRRA
subsidiaries certain guarantees on banking facilities ZMBARES ZIRITRE A
obtained by those fellow subsidiaries of R 403,195,000 (ZF—=
RMB403,195,000 (2012: Nil) as at the end of the FE)AZERZKEA A
reporting period. For details, please refer to note 37 to RIEETIER - F15H2EY
the financial statements. THFTMIFEST ©

(c) outstanding balances with related parties: (c) EHEEER ZKREEHE:

Details of the Group's outstanding balances with its fellow NE R R EARE [ B A A

subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period are ZABERREE B E N SRR

disclosed in notes 24, 25, 28, 29 and 39 to the financial 524 2528 -29% 39

statements.

(d) compensation of key management personnel (d ZTEBFEZEASHMH :
of the Group:
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBTFT
(RENEIET))
(F&&E75)
Salaries and other benefits e RAMER 3,389 3,182
Contributions to retirement benefit RUREFFT B
schemes 134 102
Share-based payments VAR5 S A4 R 5k 0E = 532
3,523 3,816

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive's EZRITHRBETN & — P

emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial R HREMTZES ©

statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(ii) to (viii) EXFQ@EVINEZBEIRZ AR
above are those transactions with the subsidiaries of Sumptuous ZRERASVZHNBRARBEITZRS -
Wealth after the Disposal. They also constitute connected ZERGNBERBERFHUFEBER
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Z(ERSLMHRANEUUAE) o

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42.
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

2013

ZRERE S EMTA
FEBFREFER BT ANEAENT -

=
Group
REE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
Financial assets receivables assets Total
BEXE AHEE
SHMEE PE W k1B SHEE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T
Available-for-sale investments ~ AJ{EHEHRE - 15,000 15,000
Financial assets included in FTATERIA - e Rk
prepayments, deposits and E fth FEUFRIE Y
other receivables TREE 26,133 - 26,133
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REE R 1,201,430 - 1,201,430
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFSEEY 62,721 - 62,721
Pledged deposits BEHEBER 16,064 - 16,064
1,306,348 15,000 1,321,348
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
Financial liabilities cost
R R A
5l B8R 2
SHREE SHREE
RMB’000
AR¥ T
Trade and bills payable B 5 REBRENK 704,176
Financial liabilities included in AT A EL At A FRTE K
other payables and accruals T ERzemEBE 57,991
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERITREMEE 625,206

1,387,373
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. ZERE s EMI A%
(Continued)
2012 —E-—F
Group
NS E]
Financial
assets at Available-
fair value for-sale
through Loans and financial
Financial assets profit or loss  receivables assets Total
RAFEE
T ABTEA Bk AHHEEZ
EREE TRIEE JE W SR IE SREE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREBTT ARETT ARETT
(Restated) (RENE]E) (Restated) (RENEIE))
(#=E7) (#=E7) (&E=7) (&&E=75)
Available-for-sale investments A fit H &% & - - 15,000 15,000
Financial assets included in st AFEN B - & &
prepayments, deposits and  E-4th e W FRIE Y
other receivables SREE - 32,431 - 32,431
Derivative financial instruments $74 4 g T & 156 - - 156
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REBREMGK - 1,353,534 - 1,353,534
Long-term trade receivables ~ RHAE 5 fElk 18 - 8,598 - 8,598
Pledged deposits BT = 26,799 = 26,799
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEeEEY = 144,082 = 144,082
156 1,565,444 15,000 1,580,600
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
Financial liabilities cost
R SHRC AN
HIARZ
SEAaE =L
RMB’000
AREFIT
(Restated)
(F&=751)
Trade and bills payable B 5 REBRENK 666,423
Financial liabilities included in AT AEL At A FRTE K
other payables and accruals [EstEBRz /A 71,845
Other long-term payables E A REAE 5RIE 7,697
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FPERITREMEER 1,065,752

1,811,717
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. BRI EMIT A #)

(Continued)

Financial assets
SREE

Financial assets included in

SARMRE  RER

2013
—E-=%
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss
BRAYE
fTABEN
SHEE
RMB'000
ARETR

Loans and
receivables

LV
BUHE
RMB'000

ARBTR

Company
NG

Loans and
receivables

ERR
FEHFA
RMB'000

ARETT

st
RMB'000
ARBTR

2012
g
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss
BATE
ST ABEA
CREE
RMB'000
ARBTT

st
RMB'000
ARETT

prepayments, deposits and H it EIRR)
other receivables TREE - - - 15,128 - 15,128
Trade and bills receivables B REBENR = = = 10,720 = 10,720
Derivative financial instruments 14 €I A - - - - 152 152
Cash and cash equivalents BoRBEZEY 575 - 575 1,434 - 1434
575 - 575 27,28 152 27,434

Financial liabilities at

Financial liabilities amortised cost

SREE BREBERNIIRz2EBEE
2013 2012
—_=—= et =
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT

Financial liabilities included in ST AE A AT FIE K&

other payables and accruals EEtBRAz&mAR 69 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAH I B A =) 3R 25,345 10,720
25,414 10,720
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 43. EMITAZAFERAFES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the AEEFEANANEHITAREEER
Company'’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying TEAEEENEE T ERIN HEREEE
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, were as MAFENAT

follows:

Group REE

Carrying amounts Fair values
EEE AVE
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=F —2——F —E-=% —T——F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT ARET T AREFTT

Financial assets SREE
Derivative financial instruments MTESBTE - 156 - 156
Company ¥ /N

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AV E
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=& —E-—F —E-=& —E—-fF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETTT ARETT ARETTT

Financial assets SHEE
Derivative financial instruments MTESBTE - 152 - 152
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 43. EMIAEZAFERAFES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, pledged deposits,
trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and amounts due to subsidiaries approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the long-term trade receivables and other long-
term payables have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using an equivalent market interest rate
approximate to their carrying amounts.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to the
chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various
counterparties, principally financial institutions with high credit
quality. Derivative financial instruments, including forward
commodity contracts, are measured using valuation techniques
similar to forward pricing and swap models, which means using
present value calculations. As at 31 December 2012, the derivative
financial instruments of the Group and the Company were
measured at fair value with Level 1 measurement based on
guoted prices in active markets.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between level 1 and level 2 (2012: Nil).
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and cash
and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills
receivables, trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward commodity contracts. The purpose is to
manage the price risk, interest rate risk and inflation risk arising
from the Group's operations and its sources of finance.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the Group’s
policy that trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken
with due care.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, commodity price risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's United States dollar debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest costs using a mix of
fixed and floating rate debts with respect to the prevailing interest
rate environment. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring
closely the movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking
facilities regularly. The Group has not used any interest rate swap
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
loss before tax and equity as well as the Company’s equity in
response to changes in interest rates of the Group’s floating rate
United States dollar debts (with all other variables held constant).

Group

44. BEEREEEERBE #)

= mEbE (&)

TR B AN SR B A B B R AN A A DA I
AABERH AR E T ERTEBHHH
KB (A EMBEGERTE) WU
o

TEE

(Increase)/
Increase/ decrease (Decrease)/

(decrease) in in loss increase
interest rate before tax in equity

M=EEFH/ BRBE AT 5 18 i
(TR (B, B>  (BD) &

basis points RMB'000 RMB'000
X ARBT ARBTR

2013 —E—=F

US$ debts ETLE

RMB debts ARBER

US$ debts ETLE

RMB debts ARBER

2012 (Restated) —E-CHF(KREY)
US$ debts ETLE

RMB debts ARBER

US$ debts ETLER

RMB debts AR EEAETE

100 (645) (484)
100 (4,025) (3,019)
(100) 645 484
(100) 4,025 3,019

100 (1,083) 812)

100 (3,266) (2,450)
(100) 1,083 812
(100) 3,266 2,450
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. The Group assesses
the respective exposures of each of its operating units.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the holding of monetary
assets and liabilities and entering into transactions denominated
in foreign currencies which will affect the Group’s financial
position and performance as a result of a change in foreign
currency exchange rates. At the end of the financial period,
certain trade receivables, pledged deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group denominated in or linked to foreign
currencies, details of which are set out in the respective notes,
expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
loss before tax and equity in response to changes in exchange
rates (with all other variables held constant) to which the Group
had significant exposure.

Group
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Commodity price risk
The Group’s commodity price risk of financial instruments is
mainly the exposure to fluctuations in the prevailing market price
of copper which is the major raw materials purchased by the
Group through the commaodity derivative contracts.

The Group considers that the commodity price risk effect in post-
tax profit for the two years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is
insignificant and no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. For
transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency
of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
terms without the specific approval of the head of credit control.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale
investments, certain other receivables and derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparties with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, collateral is usually not required. Concentrations of
credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by
geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had certain concentrations of credit
risk as 16% (2012: 11%) of the Group's trade receivables were due
from a customer, within the Terminals segment.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note 24 to
the financial statements.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests with the board of
directors of the Company, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. Having considered the forthcoming business plan,
the Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate banking
facilities and continuously monitoring working capital forecast and
actual cash flows. Should there be any significant change in
banking facilities available, the Group will adjust the working
capital forecast and business plan accordingly to maintain its
liquidity.

Other than endorsed bills with full recourse which were
derecognised by the Group and discussed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the following tables detail the
Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms.

44.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. BiEREEEERKE &)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) BN LB ()
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end RIBEHARTENRK  AEBEREEE
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted WEHARMEI AR T ¢

payments, was as follows:

Group EE

On Less than 31012 Over
demand 3 months months 1 year Total
RERER =@AUT =Zt+=f@A —ENE @t

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREMTR AREMTR ARETR AR®TR

Trade and bills payables EENES L A0E 24,503 445,289 234,384 - 704,176
Financial liabilities included in STAEMENFIER
other payables and accruals EtERzLRAR 1,977 55,994 20 - 57,991
Interest-bearing bank and SRR EMEE
other borrowings - 234,038 411,047 - 645,085
26,480 735,321 645,451 - 1,407,252

On Less than 31012 Over
demand 3 months months 1 year Total
REXEE Z@EANUT =Z+=fA —ENE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
(Restated) ((ENEIE) (GENEIE) (Restated) (GENEIE)
(E=70) (7)) (RE=51) (&=51) (=751

Trade and bills payables BHREBERR 115,354 442,636 108,433 - 666,423
Other long-term payables Hit R EBER IR = - - 8,419 8,419
Financial liabilities included in STARAENFIER

other payables and accruals B ERzZERAR 15,168 54,033 2,644 - 71,845
Interest-bearing bank and STERTREMEES

other borrowings - 508,194 599,396 - 1,107,590

130,522 1,004,863 710473 8,419 1,854,277
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. BiEREEEERKE &)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BB ()
Company RAF]

On Less than 3to12 Over
demand 3 months months 1year Total
REREE =@EAUT =Z+-fEA —F5E @t

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTRE  AR®TR ARMTR AR®Tr AR%TR

Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHBARZE - 25,345 = = 25,345
Financial liabilities included in AEMERZIER

other payables and accruals EirERZERAR = 69 - - 69

- 25,414 = = 25,414

Less than 31012 Over
demand 3 months months 1 year Total
REXER =ZEAUT =Zt=fEA —E)E et

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTE ARETT ARETT ARETR

Amounts due to subsidiaries NGRS - 10,720 - - 10,720

Capital management EXRERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEEBERNEEMNETZBEERERERSE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and B EEE TN BEELEUARERFE
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its businesses BEREARLLE U RHHEBMERRR
and maximise shareholders’ value. BEZKAL -

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments 7 5 (B R A5 AR O 0 B B R AR R B
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk B [ B2 5 B SR B IR AR A R I ELAE
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the T o B GAREREE  ANEER]
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to AERRERENRS - MRFRERA
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. SREEITHTAR (D © ANEE W E B ER MR
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital MM EREZRAHR - RBE-T—=
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies F+-A=t—HEZZE—Z=-F+=A
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 —t+—HIEFE WEHEEEANE

December 2013 and 31 December 2012. 1Z -~ BURSK IR Fr B {2 -
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44.

45.

46.

47.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings divided by the total assets.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

44.

HEEREEEERBEE®)

BEXREE(E)
AEBERAENREL X (AVAG SRIT
REMEERBEEFEILR)ERE
o BHREMROEABBLEMT

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBTFT
(REN | (=)
(F&&E75)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &8 4R1T R HAib & & 625,206 1,065,752
Total asset BEE 2,417,922 3,506,275
Gearing ratio BRAEEE 26% 30%
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 45. HEHREIE

On 10 January 2014, Weihai Electronic, & 35 3¢ # B [h A 2 st
EHABR AR (“Wuhan Yaguang Xinmin”) and j# 4t BE & B B8 B Rl
BBRAF] ("Hubei Kangpusi”) have entered into sale and purchase
agreements, pursuant to which Weihai Electronic will dispose of,
in aggregate, the entire equity interest in Wuhan Technology at a
cash consideration of RMB52,017,729 to Wuhan Yaguang Xinmin
and Hubei Kangpusi.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As explained in note 2.1, the Acquisition is regarded as a business
combination under common control and is accounted for using
the pooling of interests method. Upon completion of the
Acquisition, the financial statements of Rosy Sun Investments
Limited and its subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group as if the combination had
occurred on 13 June 2012, the date when Rosy Sun Investments
Limited and its subsidiaries first came under common control of
the controlling shareholder. Comparative figures as at 31
December 2012 were also restated for presentation on the same
basis.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board on 27 March 2014.

46.

47.
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ERE/BARKES2,017,7297T -
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AARTRE 2.1 Bt - W R B IE AR AR IR
EIESI TS - WARESE2E
A= A BR o 58 X UL BE = 18 18 - Rosy Sun
Investments Limited & £ i & A 718 81 7%
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